NIPISSING
U N T V E R S5 1 T Y
Meeting Book - Friday, May 9, 2025 Senate Meeting

Senate Agenda

1. Acknowledgement of the Traditional Territory Senate Speaker

As we begin this Nipissing University Senate meeting, I would like to acknowledge
that we are in the territory of the Robinson-Huron Treaty of 1850 and that the land
on which we gather is the Nipissing First Nation Traditional Territory and the
traditional territory of the Anishinabek. We respect and are grateful to hold this
event on these lands with all our relations.

2. Approval of the Agenda Motion 1 Senate Speaker
That the agenda of the May 9, 2025 Senate meeting be approved.
3. Adoption of Minutes Motion 2 Senate Speaker
That the minutes of the Senate meeting of April 11, 2025 be adopted.
i. April 11,2025 Draft Senate Minutes and Reports.pdf
Motion 3

4. Business Arising from the Minutes
Motion 3: That Senate adopt the NU-IQAP New Program Proposal, Minor
Revisions to the Approval Steps (pages 26-34) as circulated.

i. FINALUpdatedNipissing IQAPfinalMarch 2025.pdf
5. Reading and Disposing of Communications

6. Reports from Other Bodies

i. President
oral report

ii. Provost & Vice-President Academic
a. May 2025 Provost Senate Report.pdf

iii. Vice-President Finance and Administration
a. Budget Package 2025-2026 - Final.pdf

iv. Board of Governors
no report

v. Alumni Advisory Board
no report

vi. Council of Ontario Universities (Academic Colleague)
a. COU Academic Colleague Report April 2025.pdf

vii. Joint Committee of the Board and Senate on Governance
no report

viii. Nipissing University Student Union (NUSU)
a. NUSU Academic Senate Report - May 2025.pdf

ix. Other

7. Question Period



8. Reports of Standing Committees and Faculty Councils

i. Senate Executive Committee
That the report of the Senate Executive Committee dated May 1, 2025 be
received.

a. Senate Exec Report May 1, 2025.pdf
ii. Graduate Studies Committee
That the Report of the Graduate Studies Committee dated March 19, 2025 be
received.

a. GSC Report to Senate - March 2025.pdf
iii. Senate Research Committee
Motion 6: That the Report of the Senate Research Committee dated March 5,
2025 be received.

Motion 7: That the Report of the Senate Research Committee dated March
14, 2025 be received.

a. SRC March 5, 2025 Report to Senate.pdf

b. SRC March 14, 2025
9. Other Business
10. Amendments of By-Laws

11. Elections

e Elect one (1) faculty Senate representative to serve as Speaker of Senate for a
three-year (3) term effective July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2028.

« Elect one (1) faculty Senator to serve as the Council of Ontario Universities
(COU) Academic Colleague for a three (3) year term effective July 1, 2025 to June
30, 2028.

e Elect one (1) faculty Senator to serve as the Council of Ontario Universities
(COU) Academic Colleague (Alternate) for a three (3) year term effective July 1,
2025 to June 30, 2028.

12. New Business
That Senate grant approval to graduate the students who have completed their
degree requirements prior to June 13, 2025.

13. Announcements

14. Adjournment

Motion 4

Motion 5

Motion 6-7

Senate Speaker

Motion 8



DRAFT

Nipissing University
Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting
April 11, 2025
2:30 p.m.

Room F210 & Zoom Videoconference

Members Present: K. Wamsley (Chair), A. Graff, B. Law, N. Colborne, G.
Raymer, N. Black

L. Chen, A. Hatef, G. McCann, G. Phillips (Deputy
Speaker), S. Renshaw, N. Stevens, T. Stewart, D.
Tabachnick, L. Thielen-Wilson, A. Weeks, R. Wenghofer,
S. Winters,

A. Adler, J. Allison, C. Anyinam, S. Cairns, K. Ferguson, D.
Hay, T. Horton, P. Millar, C. Ricci, A. Schinkel-lvy, T.
Sibbald (Speaker), M. Sullivan, R. Vanderlee, V. Williams

C. Irwin, R. Kasperavicius

F. Couchie

R. Hehn

H. Panchal, T. Miller, D. Cassanto

Absent With Regrets: R. Hacquard, D. lafrate, J. Abbott, R. Gendron, S. Kariuki, K.
Srigley, T. Smith, H. Texiera, H. Zhu, O. Pokorny, C. Greco, T.
McParland, J. Thornborrow, R. Veli, P. English, E. Bonneau, B.
Brown

The Senate Speaker offered a Traditional Territory acknowledgement.

Adoption of the Agenda of the Senate Meeting of: April 11, 2025

Motion 1: Moved by N. Black, seconded by G. McCann, that the agenda of the Senate
meeting of April 11, 2025, be adopted with the amendment that Motion 10 be
removed and included in the next Senate agenda to allow Senators adequate
time to review the NU-IQAP New Program Proposal, as the provided document
link was not functioning.

CARRIED

Adoption of the Minutes of the Senate Meeting of: March 14, 2025

Motion 2: Moved by G. McCann, seconded by S. Winters that the minutes of the Senate
meeting of March 14, 2025 be adopted.
CARRIED



Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting April 11, 2025

Business Arising From the Minutes

The Provost clarified the process for submitting course proposals and program changes,
confirming that the existing procedure remains unchanged. Course proposals are reviewed by
the Centre for Teaching and Learning (CTL), and the Deans to ensure a shared understanding
of requirements across faculties. These reports are synthesized at the Faculty level before
being forwarded to the Academic Curriculum Committee (ACC) for further consideration.

Reports From Other Bodies

The President’s report, appended to the minutes, highlighted several key items. He recognized
Research Month and acknowledged significant philanthropic contributions, including a $1 million
gift from John and Adrienne Peacock and a $2 million endowed fund established by the Joyce
Foundation. The President extended his congratulations to students, staff, and faculty for their
collective efforts and achievements. He also informed Senate that Convocation ceremonies are
scheduled to take place from June 10-12, 2025. Additionally, he was pleased to announce that
the second annual fundraising event, An Evening at Nipissing, will be held on June 13, 2025.

The Provost and Vice-President Academic provided an oral report. She extended well wishes to
students, faculty and staff during the exam period. She commended the Manager of Quality
Assurance and Program Innovation, Robin Gibson, and Executive Assistant, Christine Benait,
for their exceptional work on the Quality Assurance Audit. A team of seven QA auditors were on
campus for three days reviewing our QA processes from 2013 to present. We look forward to
the QA review results.

An update on spring/summer enrolment was provided, noting that 553.9 FFTE students are
currently enrolled.

The Provost congratulated the Office of Research Services on a successful Research Month,
highlighting the engagement of high school students and community members who served as
judges in NU360 and 3MT. She emphasized the value of “town and gown” collaboration in
fostering opportunities for conversations.

The Provost expressed appreciation to the Registrar, the Registrar’s office team, and the Office
of Institutional Planning for their efforts in organizing the March 19 Open House. This event
served as an important opportunity to showcase the services offered across the institution and
to reflect on the roles of various offices. As the University begins work on the Efficiency and
Accountability Report, the Provost encouraged all members to consider whether we are
operating at peak effectiveness and meeting our accountability to students.

The Provost announced that both the NOUS and Governance Review reports have been
submitted to the province. She thanked all who contributed to these processes. The University
Governance Committee and the Senate Executive Committee will jointly form a subcommittee
to develop recommendations and an implementation plan for the Governance Review. The
Audit & Finance Committee of the Board will meet to review and plan implementation of the
NOUS Report recommendations. Final implementation plans will be presented for Board
approval on June 25, 2025, with submission to the Ministry prior to June 30, 2025.

In response to a question from the last Senate meeting regarding the institution’s commitment to
academic writing, the Provost referenced the adopted Academic and Operational Plan,
particularly the institutional learning outcomes. She emphasized outcome #1, which states that
“graduates will analyse critically and creatively,” and outcome #4, that graduates will



Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting April 11, 2025

“‘communicate effectively upon their graduation.” These outcomes reflect a core institutional
commitment from which programs are charged with backward engineering our degrees to
ensure that students meet these institutional objectives. Senate through ACC provides oversight
of these efforts.

The Nipissing University Student Union (NUSU) provided a report, which is appended to the
minutes.

Question Period

Senators asked the President various questions about the student protest which occurred on
April 3. The President described, from his point of view, why the protest occurred and what the
outcomes of the protest have been to date. He assured Senators that the important work that
has been done to date will not be compromised; that a series of meetings with protestors and
other students have been held and will be held in the near future; everyone remains invested in
Reconciliation and we will continue along this path; the University's reputation will not be
damaged, in fact, we are proud of our students who are thinking critically and putting theory into
practice - it's the sign of a healthy university campus. Finally, the President implored all
members of campus to participate in the Equity, Diversity, Inclusion, and Accessibility (EDIA)
Audit conducted by the ParriagGroup to ensure that their voices are heard in the service of
making this a more inclusive campus.

In response to a question regarding the low participation in the EDIA Audit to date, the President
noted that the timing coincides with a busy end-of-year cycle for students, faculty and staff. He
suggested that some individuals may prefer to complete the survey rather than participate in an
interview. He emphasized that there is still an opportunity to provide responses through both the
interview and the survey.

A question was raised regarding APOP Action #10, which tasks the Director of Teaching and
Learning with convening an ad hoc committee to examine the use of artificial intelligence
technologies in instructional settings, with a report due by April 30, 2025. It was noted that
progress has stalled during the Director’s leave; however, committee members have expressed
their desire to continue the work, recognizing its urgency. In response, the Provost advised that
she would appoint an Acting Chair in the Director’s absence to ensure the committee’s work can
proceed. Graydon Raymer has agreed to serve as Acting Chair.

A question was raised regarding the status of breadth requirements related to Indigenous
awareness. The Provost confirmed that the institutional learning outcomes reflect a commitment
to ensuring all students develop knowledge of Anishnabek ways of knowing and being, which
will be integrated and expand to program structures. Through curriculum mapping, the
University is working to ensure that institutional outcomes are being achieved across all courses
and programs. Extra curriculum opportunities and other experiential learning could also be
recognized as part of students’ overall development within a program.

Through APOP, the Schulich School of Education, School of Business, Social Work and
Criminal Justice have been asked to provide a strategic vision of their programs. This will be a
significant exercise as there has never been a forced alignment between an institutional and
program level mission, vision, and value. Over its history, Nipissing has distinctively allowed its
programs to be self-contained and attached to the institution but we have not aligned to
strategic priorities. Work is also going on in A&S as well because the institutional outcomes are
meant to be an opportunity to share commitments across the faculties. We are trying to move
away from individuals solely doing the work in order to instantiate the work institutionally. Work



Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting April 11, 2025

is going on in APOP and the University Management Group and the Deans and Associate
Deans have the competencies to do this work. Conversations are evolving and we will be able
to measure ourselves in term of effectiveness.

In response to a question as to whether the spring/summer enroliment numbers included the
Indigenous summer education programs, and whether marketing on the programs is taking
place, the Provost advised that the enrollment numbers she provided include the Indigenous
summer education programs, and that marketing is ongoing.

Reports of Standing Committees and Faculty or University Councils

Senate Executive Committee

Motion 3: Moved by K. Wamsley, seconded by N. Black that the Report of the Senate
Executive Committee dated April 3, 2025 be received.
CARRIED

Academic Curriculum Committee

Motion 4: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by N. Colborne that the Report of the Academic
Curriculum Committee dated March 18, 2025 be received.
CARRIED

Faculty of Education & Professional Studies

Substantive:

Motion 5: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by G. Raymer that Senate approve that the course
EDUC 1615 Special Education Part | - French as a Second Language Focus be
added to the list of In-Service offerings as outlined in the attached document.
CARRIED

Substantive:

Motion 6: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by G. Raymer that Senate approve that the course
EDUC 2285 Reading, Part Il - French as a Second Language Focus be added to
the list of In-Service offerings as outlined in the attached document.

CARRIED

Substantive:

Motion 7: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by G. Raymer that Senate approve that the course
EDUC 3285 Reading, Specialist - French as a Second Language Focus be
added to the list of In-Service offerings as outlined in the attached document.
CARRIED

Academic Calendar

Substantive:

Motion 8: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by G. Raymer that Senate approve the publication
of the 2025/26 academic calendar, effective May 1, 2025.
CARRIED

The Provost thanked Senate for returning to the process of approving the academic calendar.



Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting April 11, 2025

Academic Quality Assurance and Planning Committee (AQAPC)

Motion 9: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by N. Black that the Report of the Academic
Quality Assurance and Planning Committee dated March 21, 2025 be received.
CARRIED

Senate Budget Advisory Committee

Motion 10: Moved by R. Wenghofer, seconded by S. Winters that the Report of the Senate
Budget Advisory Committee dated February 21, 2025 be received.
CARRIED

Amendment of By-laws

Motion 11: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by G. Phillips that Senate approve that Article
6.0(a) be amended as outlined below:

6.0 Regular Senate Meetings
(a) Unless otherwise determined and announced by the Senate Executive Committee,
regular meetings of Senate shall normally be held on a 10-meeting schedule from
September to June.
CARRIED

Motion 12: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by M. Sullivan that Senate approve that Articles 9.3
and 9.12 be amended as outlined below:

9.3 Academic Curriculum Committee
Ex Officio and Student Members:
(i) the PVPA, or designate (Chair);
(i) the AVPRIGS, or designate;
(i) Faculty Deans, or designates;
(iv) the Registrar, or designate;
(v) the Executive Director, Library Services;
(vi) the Director of Teaching and Learning (non-voting);
(vii) a Student Senator from the NUSU Executive;
(viii) two (2) undergraduate student representatives; one elected from each Faculty by
NUSU;
(ix) one (1) graduate student representative.

9.12 Teaching and Learning Committee
Ex Officio and Student Members:
(i) the Dean of Education and Professional Studies;
(ii) the Director of Teaching and Learning (non-voting);
(iii) the Executive Director of Library Services, or designate;
(iv) two (2) undergraduate student representatives; one elected from each Faculty;
(v) one (1) graduate student representative.
CARRIED

Motion 13: Moved by A. Graff, seconded by M. Sullivan that Senate approve that Article 9.3
be amended as outlined below:

9.3 Academic Curriculum Committee
Ex Officio and Student Members:



Minutes of the Academic Senate Meeting

April 11, 2025

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

the PVPA, or designate (Chair);

the AVPRIGS, or designate;

Faculty Deans, or designates;

the Registrar, or designate;

the Executive Director, Library Services;
the Manager of Quality Assurance and Program Innovation (non-voting);
a Student Senator from the NUSU Executive;

two (2) undergraduate student representatives; one elected from each Faculty by

NUSU;

one (1) graduate student representative.

CARRIED

New Business

Motion 14:

meeting dates for the 2025-2026 academic year.

CARRIED

Moved by A. Graff, seconded by N. Black that Senate approve list of Senate

Senate Executive Committee
Meeting Dates

Senate Meeting Dates

Thursday, September 4, 2025

Friday, September 12, 2025

Thursday, October 16, 2025

Friday, October 24, 2025

Thursday, November 13, 2025

Friday, November 21, 2025

Thursday, December 4, 2025

Friday, December 12, 2025

Thursday,January-22.-2026

Friday;January-30,-2026

Thursday, February 19, 2026

Friday, February 27, 2026

Thursday, March 19, 2026

Friday, March 27, 2026

Thursday, April 16, 2026

Friday, April 24, 2026

Thursday, May 14, 2026

Friday, May 22, 2026

Thursday, June 4, 2026

Friday, June 12, 2026

Adjournment

Senate was adjourned at 3:35 p.m.

K. Wamsley (Chair)

S. Landriault (Senate Secretary)



President’s Senate Report
11 April 2025

Good afternoon Senators. As we are in the middle of final examinations, | want to wish our
students all the best and professors too for the grading period, and our staff for all of the
work they will do to get us from this point to Convocation and to enable students to return
in the following term. | want to add my voice to congratulating the office of Research,
Innovation, and Graduate Studies for a spectacular research month. The quality of work
was outstanding — our professors played to a packed house for NU360; the keynote address
and the work of our students for our undergraduate conference was first rate; and the
quality of the 3MT was very, very good. Thanks to everyone who played a role in making this
year’s events so successful.

Since the last Senate meeting, we have had the pleasure of announcing a generous $1m
gift from John and Adrienne Peacock. These funds will be spent over the next five to six
years and will be directed towards undergraduate research in the field, post doctoral
research fellowships, and activities related to Reconciliation on our campus. We are also
the recipients of a $2m endowed fund from the Joyce Foundation which will provide tuition
support to 12 students spread out over four-year cycles in perpetuity.

Convocation has been set for June 10 to June 12. We are working on scheduling an
outstanding slate of honorary doctorate candidates and will be announcing those
candidates very soon.

Our second annual fundraising dinner — An Evening at Nipissing will be held on June 13.
This year we are continuing to celebrate research at Nipissing University and all proceeds
from the dinner will go to the Student Research Opportunities Fund which will add to our
Day of Giving and Year End Giving funds and will add to the Peacock gift. We will have a very
strong program of supporting undergraduate research at Nipissing University for at least the
next five years, which will certainly enhance the student experience, will increase our
research capacity and productivity, and will enhance our national reputation to attract the
next cohorts of students. We are working on policies and procedures and terms of
reference for these awards and will be sure to communicate these terms to everyone.



NIPISSING UNIVERSITY STUDENT UNION NUSU Student Centre
221 College Drive, North Bay, ON PIB 0G1
Tel: (705) 474-3450 ext. 4801 Fax: (705) 474-7732
Web: www. nusu.com

NUSU Academic Senate Report: April 2025

NUSU Executives Start May 1st

The Outgoing NUSU Executives want to thank staff, administration, and faculty for the
past year. We, as student leaders, have learnt a lot and are excited for what’s to come
in our futures.

NUSU Food Pantry

We have updated our Emergency Food Bank to now be called the NUSU Food Pantry.
This is to decrease stigmatization and the stereotypes that come with a Food Bank or
using the Food bank. The Food Pantry includes different kinds of food for students,
including dietary and food restrictions.

Equity Audit with ParriagGroup

The NUSU Executives have had two meetings with Amanda from ParriagGroup
discussing the Equity Audit and equity on campus. These have been great discussions,
and we are excited for the recommendations that will come from this audit!

Good Luck on Exams
We want to wish all students good luck on their upcoming final exams! We are here to
support in any way we can.



NIPISSING

vV E R S

Nipissing University
Institutional Quality Assurance Protocol (NU-IQAP)

Governing
Cyclical Program Reviews, New Programs
and
Major Modifications (Program Renewal and Significant Change)

Recommended to Senate
by the Academic Quality Assurance and Planning Committee

Submitted to the Quality Council of the Council of Ontario Universities
November 27, 2018
Re-ratified April 26, 2019

Revised and submitted to Quality Council of the Council of Ontario Universities

November 3, 2022
Re-ratified May 5, 2023

Page 1 of 56



Purpose of Policy

Nipissing’s Institutional Quality Assurance Policy (IQAP) governs the development of new programs and the
review and revision of existing programs.

Quality assurance is a shared responsibility between the Ontario Universities Council on Quality Assurance (the
Quality Council) and Ontario’s universities. This collaboration ensures a culture of continuous improvement and
supports a vision of a student-centred education. Quality assurance processes result in an educational system
that is open, accountable, and transparent. Bringing Ontario’s universities quality assurance practices into line
with the latest international quality assurance standards facilitates greater international acceptance of an
institute’s degrees and improves graduate access to university programs and employment worldwide.

The Quality Council is the provincial body responsible for assuring the quality of degree programs/graduate
diploma programs and the integrity of the universities’ quality assurance processes as set by the Quality
Assurance Framework (QAF). Every publicly assisted Ontario university that grants degrees and diplomas is
responsible for ensuring the quality of its programs and for developing a policy that meets the requirements of
this Framework.

Based on the Quality Assurance Framework, Nipissing University has created a holistic and integrated approach
to quality assurance that is built on the Guiding Principles that inform every aspect of quality assurance and
provide broad terms of best practices. The most relevant Principles (4 of the 15) have been included here, as
they best reflect the quality assurance processes at the university level, and support Nipissing’s approach to
continuous improvement.

o Principle 1 - Experience of the Student
The best interest of students is at the core of quality assurance activities. Quality assurance is ultimately
about the centrality of the student experience in Ontario. It is about student achievement in programs
that lead to a degree or diploma about ensuring the value of the university degree in Ontario, and of
ensuring that our highly qualified graduates continue to be strong and innovative contributors to the well-
being of Ontario’s economy and society.

e Principle 9 — Transparency
The Quality Council operates in accordance with publicly communicated principles, policies, and
procedures. Both the Quality Council’s assessment process and the internal quality assurance process of
individual institutions is open, transparent, and accountable, except as limited by constraints of laws and
regulations for the protection of individuals.

e Principle 13 — Continuous Monitoring and Quality Improvement
Quality is not static, and continuous improvement should be a driver of quality assurance and be
measurable. An important goal for quality assurance is to reach beyond merely demonstrating quality at a
moment in time and to demonstrate ongoing and continuous quality improvement. The Quality Council is
committed to sharing effective best practices in quality assurance to assist institutions in their quality
improvement work.

e Principle 14 — Expert Independent Peer Review

Whether for new programs or cyclical review of existing programs, expert independent peer review is
foundational to quality assurance.

Page 2 of 56


https://oucqa.ca/
https://oucqa.ca/resources-publications/quality-assurance-framework/
https://oucqa.ca/resources-publications/quality-assurance-framework/
https://oucqa.ca/resources-publications/quality-assurance-framework/

The full set of Principles guide and inform all aspects of quality assurance while each Protocol includes a set
of specific and detailed procedures that aligns with the Principles and best practices to ensure the ongoing
improvement and enhancement of program offerings, specifically:

To ensure that educational experiences of students are engaging and rigorous

To actively monitor and review curriculum, to identify opportunities and develop plans for change, as
necessary, to improve the student experience

To meet evolving standards and measures of quality in the program and in response to the ongoing
evolution of the discipline

To focus on the continuous improvement of those facets of education that most directly impact academic
experiences of students

To ensure the continuing quality and relevance of programs to stakeholders, including the university,
students, the public and the government

The IQAP and its associated Procedures establish the requirements and criteria for each of the Protocols and are
in compliance with the Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) as developed by the Ontario Council of Academic

Vice P

residents (OCAV) and have been adopted by the Council of Ontario Universities (COU).

Protocols governed by the IQAP include:

Cyclical Program Review — Section 1

New Program Protocol - Section 2

Expedited Approval Protocol - Section 3

Major Modification Protocol (Program Renewal and Significant Change) — Section 4
Audit Protocol — Section 5

Acronyms you may encounter in the document:

ACC

Academic Curriculum Committee

AQAPC  Academic Quality Assurance and Planning Committee

ARCC
cou
DLEs
FAR
GDLEs
GSC
IQAP
IP

IRC
OCAV
OIPA
QAF
UDLEs

Academic Regulations and Curriculum Committee
Council of Ontario Universities

University Degree Level Expectations

Final Assessment Report

Graduate Degree Level Expectations
Graduate Studies Council

Institutional Quality Assurance Policy
Implementation Plan

Internal Review Committee

Ontario Council of Academic Vice Presidents
Office of Institutional Planning and Analysis
Quality Assurance Framework
Undergraduate Degree Level Expectations

Page 3 of 56


https://oucqa.ca/resources-publications/quality-assurance-framework/
https://cou.ca/members-groups/affiliates/ocav/
https://cou.ca/members-groups/affiliates/ocav/
https://oucqa.ca/

Table of Contents
Click on each content and it will take you to that section within the
document!

Scope and Purpose of Protocols

Responsibilities and Supports

Section 1 — Cyclical Program Review Protocol

Section 2 — New Program Approval Protocol

Section 3 — Expedited Approval Protocol

Section 4 — Major Modification Protocol (Program Renewal and Significant Change)

Section 5 — Audit Protocol

Appendix A - Evaluation Criteria for Cyclical Program Review

Appendix B - Evaluation Criteria for New Program Approvals

Appendix C - Undergraduate Degree Level Expectations (UDLEs)

Appendix D — Graduate Degree Level Expectations (GDLEs)

Appendix E — Definitions

Page 4 of 56



Scope and Purpose of Protocols

Cyclical Program Review Protocol (CPR)

The purpose of this protocol is to assess the quality of existing academic programs and identify ongoing
improvements, resulting in Final Assessment Report (FAR) and an Implementation Plan (IP) that will become the
basis of a continuous improvement process through the monitoring of key performance indicators. Cyclical
program review is a self-regulatory process subject to periodic audit by the Quality Council.

e All existing undergraduate degree programs, graduate degree programs, and for-credit graduate
diploma programs will be subject to a periodic Cyclical Program Review conducted at a minimum once
every eight years. The Office of the Provost may request a review prior to the eighth year.

e Programs that have been closed or for which admission has been suspended are out of the scope of this
review.

e Cyclical Program Review is a self-regulatory process subject to periodic audit by the Quality Council with
the express purpose of assessing the quality of existing academic programs and identifying ongoing
improvements.

New Program Protocol
The purpose of this protocol is to ensure that new academic programs are developed using internationally
accepted practices and are based on the Degree Level Expectations that identify expectations of performance by
graduates at a specified level of learning, e.g., Bachelor, Master and Doctoral.
e This protocol applies to new undergraduate and new graduate programs whether offered by one
institution or jointly with another institution.
e New degree programs require approval by the Quality Council.

Expedited Approval Protocol
The purpose of this protocol is to enable universities to secure approvals more efficiently for changes that are
considered less wide-ranging than new programs and do not require an external review.

e The scope of this protocol will apply to new for-credit graduate diplomas (Types 2 and 3), major
modifications that may require Quality Council approval, as well as the creation of a new standalone
degree from an existing field in a graduate program.

e Final approval for this protocol rests with the Quality Council Appraisal Committee

Major Modification Protocol
The purpose of this protocol is to allow for timely program renewal of existing programs on an ongoing and
continuous basis. Academic units are encouraged to actively evaluate and identify revisions and modifications to
curriculum and experiences that can be implemented at the University level. Major modifications will be
reported annually to Quality Council.
e The scope of this protocol will include significant changes made to existing programs that are considered
less than a new program and greater than a minor modification.
e The Provost will be the final arbiter in determining if a major modification should be considered a new
program.

Audit Protocol
The purpose of the Audit, to be conducted by the Quality Council once every eight (8) years, is to ensure
transparency and accountability in the development and review of academic programs, and to assure
stakeholders (students, citizens, and the government) of the international standards of Nipissing’s quality
assurance processes.
e This protocol will monitor the extent to which the University has improved/enhanced its quality
assurance processes and practices, created an ethos of continuous improvement, and developed a

Page S of 56



culture that supports program-level learning outcomes and student-centered learning.

The Audit will include an evaluation of past and current practices, a review of institutional changes made
in policy, procedures, and practices in response to recommendations from the previous audit,
confirmation that university’s practices comply with its ratified IQAP and a review of the university’s
approach to continuous improvement of programs.

Page 6 of 56



Responsibilities and Supports

Provost and Vice President, Academic (Provost)

The Provost and Vice President, Academic (from here on in referred to as Provost) is the administrative
authority responsible for the University’s quality assurance policy and procedures and serves as Nipissing’s
authoritative contact with the Quality Council. The Provost is the arbiter in deciding whether a proposal
constitutes a new program or a major modification. The Office of the Provost supports the day-to-day workings
of the processes governed by the IQAP.

Deans
The Deans are responsible for the following:

e For Cyclical Review — ensures that Chairs/Directors or academic units, scheduled to undergo cyclical
program review, understand their roles and responsibilities; sign off on the Self-Study and Appendices;
consult with the Office of Provost on the ranking of external reviewers; provide a Decanal Response to the
External Reviewers’ Report and Departmental Response; consult on the Implementation Plan; and, ensure
academic units are considering and acting on the recommendations requiring action. The Dean will be
responsible for ensuring that the academic unit submits the follow-up Monitoring Report in accordance
with the deadline provided in the Final Assessment Report

e For New Programs — provide guidance and support for the development of new program proposals;
ensure broad consultation (with interested parties including faculty, academic units and decanal councils);
approval of budgets and proposed resources, review and sign-off on the Program Proposal and
Appendices; consult with the Office of the Provost on the ranking of external reviewers; and completion
and submission of Monitoring Reports.

Academic Units

Academic Unit refers to a department or a school. Reference to a ‘Chair of a department’ in this policy is taken
to include a Chair or Director of an undergraduate or graduate program, department or a school. Academic units
will be responsible for the following:

e For Cyclical Review — Academic Units will be responsible for: writing the Self-Study and Appendices for
degree programs/diplomas under their responsibility for cyclical program; nominating external reviewers,
participating in the site visit; responding to the External Reviewers’ Report; implementing and reporting
on recommendations identified for action in the Implementation Plan of the Final Assessment Report; and
providing a Monitoring Report.

e For New Programs — Academic units are often the proponents of new academic programming and are
significantly involved in the development and consultation processes for new program proposals.

Provost’s Council (PC)
PC is the senior administrative committee that reviews and approves initial proposals for, major modifications
and new programs.

Registrar’s Office (RO)

The Registrar's Office provides the first stage of consultation to ensure major and minor modifications and new
degree programs follow the university degree structures.

Page 7 of 56



Senate
Senate is responsible for:

e approving the Institutional Quality Assurance Policy and any subsequent revisions,

e approving new degree programs, new graduate diplomas, major modifications to existing programs.
Senate receives:

e information on Final Assessment Reports on Cyclical Program Reviews,

e notification that the cyclical review process is completed,

e notification that Monitoring Reports for new programs have been reviewed and accepted by AQAPC.

Academic Quality Assurance and Planning Committee (AQAPC)

AQAPC, a committee of Senate, is responsible for long-range academic planning, including quality assurance, in
accordance with the overall academic objectives of the University and or making recommendations to Senate as
necessary and appropriate. AQAPC reviews and recommends for approval to Senate all new degree programs
and graduate diplomas. AQAPC — (1) initial review of program proposals prior to external review; (2) final review
and approval of program documentation following external review and makes recommendations to Senate; and
(3) review of Monitoring Reports. AQAPC is also responsible for recommending to Senate the termination of an
existing degree program.

Provision of Support

Teaching Hub (TH)

The Teaching Hub provides workshops and consultations to academic units to assist in the articulation of
program objectives, program-level learning outcomes and mapping of curricula against degree level
expectations.

Registrar’s Office
The Registrar’s Office provides support to academic units to ensure adherence to program and degree
structures.

Deans
The Deans are responsible for the following:

e For Cyclical Review — provides guidance and support to academic units undergoing a cyclical review;
consults with academic units on recommendations identified for action and ensures that
recommendations are being carried out prior to submission of the Implementation Plan.

e For New Programs — provides guidance and support for the development of new programs.

Finance Office
At the request of the Academic Unit, the Dean(s) or Provost, the Associate Vice President Finance will review
and consult on budgets for new program proposals.

Library

The Library will provide a Statement of Support for new degree programs and for degree programs undergoing
cyclical review. The Office of the Provost will provide the University Librarian with a list of programs coming up
for cyclical review.

Office of Institutional Planning and Analysis (OIPA)
e For Cyclical Review: OIPA collects, aggregates, and distributes institutional data to assist undergraduate
academic units in writing their Self-Studies, including but not limited to enrolment, retention and
graduation data as well facilitating current student and alumni surveys. This ensures data being used for

Page 8 of 56



the Self-Studies are both accurate and consistent across university degree programs. Programs are
responsible for providing an analysis of the data. OIPA will aim to provide data by the beginning of May of
the spring that academic units are preparing their Self-Studies. The Office of the Provost will notify OIPA
of upcoming reviews.

o For New Programs: At the request of the Academic Unit for new programs, OIPA will review and consult
on budgets for new program proposals.

Research Office
At the request of the Office of the Provost or the Academic Unit, the Office of Graduate Studies and Research
will provide information on faculty and related research funding.

School of Graduate Studies
e For Cyclical Review of Graduate Programs: the School of Graduate Studies will provide relevant graduate
data, including but not limited to enrolment and retention, for graduate programs coming up for cyclical
program review. This ensures data being used for the Self-Studies are both accurate and consistent across
university degree programs. Programs will be responsible for providing an analysis of the data. The Office
of the Provost will notify the School of upcoming reviews.

Templates
The Office of the Provost develops and posts templates that, where appropriate, clearly reflect the Evaluation
Criteria outlined in the QAF. Available templates will include the following:
e For Cyclical Reviews: Self-Study, Nomination of External Reviewers, External Reviewers’ Report,
Monitoring Reports
e For New Degree Programs: Program Proposal, Nomination of External Reviewers, External Reviewers’
Report, Monitoring Reports

Workshop

Each fall, the Office of the Provost holds a workshop for academic units who will undergo a cyclical review in the
following year. Normally chairs/directors will attend the workshop. Deans may also attend. The workshop
provides an overview of the cyclical review process and guidance in completing the self-study and appendices.

Page 9 of 56



Section 1 — Cyclical Program Review Protocol

1.1 Prelude

Periodic cyclical reviews will be conducted of all undergraduate and graduate degree programs, as well as for-
credit graduate diploma programs. Undergraduate and related graduate degree programs will be reviewed
concurrently, as determined by the unit, but will appear separately on the schedule of reviews. Programs that
have been closed or have had admissions suspended will not be part of the cyclical review process.

The Review will look closely at the key performance indicators including:
e performance by graduates at specified levels of learning (DLEs);
e clearly identified program objectives,
e articulation of program-level learning outcomes
e student achievement of the learning outcomes.

Specifically, the cyclical review process will look at the program’s approach to and plans for continuous
improvement of the program to ensure that educational experiences offered to students are engaging and
rigorous, and that plans for monitoring the program are sufficient to ensure continuous improvement.

Continuous improvement factors significantly in the Cyclical Program Review Protocol, therefore, those facets of
education that most directly impact the academic experiences of students will be considered.
e The Self-Study and External Reviewers’ Reports will provide internal and external perspectives on the
program’s objectives, program-level learning outcomes and graduate outcomes.
e Degree level expectations, combined with the expert judgment of external disciplinary scholars, will
provide the benchmarks for assessing a program’s standards and quality.
e The internal response to the external report will identify changes required to maintain the quality of the
academic programs and will be identified through the Final Assessment Report (FAR) and associated
Implementation Plan (IP).

Broad Outcomes of the Cyclical Program Review will include recommendations:
e to ensure the continuous improvement of the program
e to provide information to help make decisions for improvements or enhancements
e to provide benchmarks for assessing program’s standards and quality
e to ensure that curriculum remains relevant, current and effective
e to provide assurance of quality to students, partners and government

The key outcomes in this process will be the Final Assessment Report (FAR) and the Implementation Plan (IP),
both of which will become the basis of a continuous improvement process through the monitoring of key
performance indicators.

The FAR provides an institutional synthesis of the external evaluation of the program and strategies for
continuous improvement, and:
e identifies significant strengths of the program;
e identifies opportunities for further program improvement and enhancement with a view towards
continuous improvement;
e lists all recommendations of the external reviewers, separate internal responses and assessments
e incudes any additional recommendations requiring action
e identifies who is responsible for approving the recommendations

Page 10 of 56



The IP:
e sets out and prioritizes the recommendations that are selected for implementation
e identifies who is responsible for acting on the recommendations
e provides specific timelines for acting on and monitoring the implementation of the recommendation

1.2 Schedule of Reviews

The Office of the Provost establishes and maintains a Schedule of Review dates that consists of the university’s
full complement of undergraduate and graduate degree programs, as well as graduate diplomas. Each program
must be reviewed every eight years. The Office of the Provost may request a review prior to the eighth year.
New programs will be subject to an interim monitoring process after the program’s first enrolment
(approximately in year 4) with the first cyclical review scheduled no more than 8 years from the first enrolment.

A master list of Nipissing’s review schedule will be posted to the website of the Office of the Provost. The list
includes all independent offerings for each program. The plan identifies the academic unit responsible for each
degree program, year of next review and year of previous review, if applicable.

Note: The Schedule of Reviews indicates the year in which the site visit will take place and academic units are
expected to begin preparing review documentation in the academic year prior to the site visit.

Undergraduate and related graduate programs. Undergraduate and related graduate degree programs will be
reviewed concurrently, as determined by the unit, and approved by the Provost and Dean, but will appear
separately on the schedule of reviews.

Multiple Locations and/or Modes of Delivery. In cases where a degree program is delivered in more than one
location with different faculty and resources or is offered through more than one mode of delivery, each distinct
offering will occur on the master list of degree programs, though reviews of related degree programs will
normally occur concurrently.

Joint Programs with Other Institutions. The University will work with other Quality Assurance offices to identify
the date for review where a program is offered in partnership with another university and/or college, and with
institutions federated and affiliated with the university.

1.3 Principal Components and Timelines

The Cyclical Program Review takes place over a three-to-five-year period and centres around five components.

a) Principal Components

o Self-Study — a critical self-appraisal of the strengths and weaknesses and a plan for continuous
improvement for the degree program from the perspective of members of the academic unit responsible
for delivery of the degree program

e External Reviewers’ Report — external evaluation of program quality by disciplinary/interdisciplinary
experts including recommendations for the improvement of the degree program

¢ Internal Responses by both the Program and Dean(s) — provides internal perspective in response to
External Reviewers’ Report

o Final Assessment Report and Implementation Plan — institutional evaluation by AQAPC based on the
review of the Self-Study, the External Reviewers’ Report, and the Responses by the academic unit(s) and
the Dean(s); will include a Summary and an Implementation Plan.

e Monitoring Report — follow-up reporting on the principal findings of the review and the implementation

Page 11 of 56



of the recommendations. The academic unit will provide detailed reporting on each recommendation
identified as requiring action.

b) Timeline:

e Year 1- Preparation of Self-Study and Appendices (in academic year prior to site visit)

e Year 2-Site Visit (takes place in academic year indicated on Schedule of Reviews) and External Reviewers’
Report submission

e Year 2— Program and Decanal Responses (prepared in response to External Reviewers’ Report)

e Year 2- Final Assessment Report and Implementation Plan

e Years 3-5 — Monitoring Report (academic unit will follow up on recommendations identified for action in
Implementation Plan)

1.4 Relationship with Accreditation Processes

In the case of programs which must also receive review by a professional accreditation body (e.g. Business,
Nursing, Social Work, etc.), some review documents may be substituted for or added to those prescribed by this
policy if all information required by the policy is contained and appended. The Provost will make a
determination of the suitability of accreditation documents for the purposes of program review. In these cases,
adaptations may be made for certain components of the program review process, but only when these elements
are fully consistent with the requirements established in this Protocol.

A Record of Substitution or Addition (for elements of the CPR that are substituted or augmented with elements
from an accreditation review, together with a description of the grounds on which such
substitution/augmentation decisions were made), including rationales for each, must be kept and is subject to
audit.

1.5 Joint Degree Programs

In cases where a Nipissing degree program is offered jointly or in partnership with another institution, the Office
of the Provost will work with the partner institution’s counterpart office to ensure that the requirements of both
institutions’ quality assurance policies and procedures will be met in a way that avoids duplication and
streamlines the process as much as possible. In cases where Nipissing’s processes are different from the partner
institution, all efforts will be made to comply with the QAF.

Specifically:

e There will be a single Self-Study that will explain how input was received from faculty, staff and students
at each partner institution.

e Each partner institution will be involved in nominating, selecting and ranking of external reviewers.

e Each partner institution may include an internal representative that will participate in the site visit with
the external reviewers.

o Site visits will include all partner universities and, at least where partners are institutions in Ontario, will
include all sites.

e There will be a single Response to the External Reviewers’ Report, prepared jointly by members of the
academic units of each partner institution. There will be a single Decanal Response prepared jointly by the
Deans of each partner institution.

e There will be a single Final Assessment Report (FAR) and an Implementation Plan (IP).

e The FAR will be subject to the governance processes at each partner institution and will require approval
by both institutions.

e Partner institutions will agree on an appropriate monitoring process for the Implementation Plan.

e The FAR and the Implementation Plan will be posted on the websites of affiliated institutions.

Page 12 of 56



1.6 Steps in the Cyclical Program Review Process

Site visits will be conducted in the fall or the winter. The timing of the visit will determine the deadline for
completing review documentation.

External Reviewer Completion of Self-Study & Appendices
Date of Site Visit Nomination
To Dean & Office of To Dean To Office of Provost
Provost
Fall (Sept — Dec) March 1 August 1 September 1
Winter (Jan — Mar) May 1 October 1 November 1
. Documentation Required -
Steps Description for Auditing Purposes Responsibility
Stlep Notification of Cyclical Program Review o Notification Letter Provost’s Office
Step Workshop/Orientation Session © mgelel . Provost’s Office
2 e Presentation
Preparation and Collection of Data for Self-
Study & Appendices
e Establish an Internal Review Committee
(IRC)
e Review/revision of Program Objectives,
Program-Level Learning Outcomes,
Step Curriculum Mapping
3 e Conduct surveys of current students and Academic Unit
alumni
e Collect and compile Course Syllabuses
and Curriculum Vitae
e Receive Data from OIPA/Grad
Office/Research Office and Library
Statement of Support
e Analyse Data
Nomination, Ranking and Selection of
Step | External Reviewers o . .
4 « Nomination and Ranking ° Nommatlon.For.m e Academic Unllt
e Letters of Invitation o Letter of Invitation e Provost’s Office
St: P EZLer::ednfae':i/c:I((:)np'(c)i];lrgs mal e No Documentation Provost’s Office
Step | Writing and Completion of Self-Study using | e SeIf-Sthjy and Academic Unit
6 Template Appendices
Step | Dean Sign-Off on Self-Study and ° §|gnature Or‘ P
. Appendices (included W|’Fh Step 6 Dean
documentation)
St8ep AQAPC Reviews Self-Study and Appendices | e Compliance Checklist Provost’s Office

Page 13 of 56



Ste e Site (Virtual) Visit
9 P | site (Virtual) Visit and Instructions Schedule Provost’s Office
e Reviewer Instructions
St i i Ext |
°p External Reviewers’ Report * External Reviewers X grna
10 Report Reviewers
Ste Program Response to External Reviewers’ . .
P 8 P e Program Response Academic Unit
11 Report
St D IR to Ext | Revi !
ep ecanal Response to External Reviewers « Decanal Response Dean
12 Report
Development of Final Assessment Report
Step | and the Implementation Plan to be shared e FAR
. N Provost
13 with the Dean and the unit prior to o |P
distribution
Ste e FAR with Provost’s
14p FAR Approval and Distribution Signature Provost’s Office
e QC Letter of Review
Step | Monitoring Report by Academic Units . . .
. Acad Unit
15 (Completed 2 years after site visit) * Monitoring Report cademic Uni
e Signature on
Step . o Monitoring Report
Dean Signs Off Monitoring Report Dean
16 & ghrep (included with Step 15
documentation)
St
Sp AQAPC Reviews Monitoring Report e AQAPC Minutes Provost’s Office
Step e S . ) :
18 Notification that the Review is Complete o Letter of Completion Provost’s Office

Step 1 — Notification of Cyclical Program Review

In the academic year prior to site visit, the Office of Provost notifies the academic units of degree programs that
will be reviewed in the following year. This notification will specifically indicate distinct offerings for each

program.

Step 2 — Workshop/Orientation Session

The Provost’s Office organizes workshop(s) for academic units to review cyclical review process and required
steps to complete self-study and appendices.

Step 3 — Preparation & Collection of Data for Self-Study & Appendices

Establish an Internal Review Committee (IRC) to prepare the self-study document. The role of the IRC is to
prepare the self-study document based on broad consultation with faculty, students and staff and to respond to
the external reviewer report based on input from the academic unit. The IRC will select its Chair. The
composition of the IRC will consist of a minimum of one faculty member from the program under review, a
faculty member from another program who is at arm’s length from the program under review, and one upper-
year student and one student from first or second year who are majoring in the program under review.

In the academic year prior to the site visit, the academic unit will:

Develop/review/revise Program Objectives, Program-Level Learning Outcomes, Curriculum Mapping

Page 14 of 56



Conduct surveys of current students and alumni

Collect and compile Course Syllabi and Curriculum Vitae
Receive data from OIPA, Grad Studies, Office of Research
Receive Library Statement of Support

Begin/complete analysis of data

A number of supports are available to assist academic units in the preparation and completion of cyclical review
documentation. See Provision of Support

For Fall site visits (September to December) — Nomination Form due March 1°
For Winter site visits (January to March) — Nomination Form due May 1st

Number of Reviewers Required

Degree Program External Reviewers
Undergraduate 2 reviewers
Graduate 2 reviewers
Concurrent Undergraduate and Graduate 2-3 reviewers

a) Qualifications of External Reviewers

Be Associate or Full Professors

Have suitable disciplinary expertise, qualifications, and experience in developing, assessing and/or
managing degree programs

Have combined professional experience to cover the majority areas of study and/or fields of expertise

At least one of the reviewers will have expertise in teaching and learning — content and program delivery,
assessment/evaluation, curriculum mapping, and learning outcomes

In the case of graduate degree programs, have experience with graduate teaching and supervision

Be at arm’s length.

b) Arm’s Length Requirement

An arm’s length peer reviewer is an external disciplinary expert who has not been a supervisor, collaborator,
departmental colleague (past or present) or co-author of faculty members in the previous six years, and who
does not have personal connections with members of the academic unit or:

e Be aclose friend or relative of a member of the Academic Unit or of someone with whom the
Academic Unit has consulted

& Have been a supervisor within the past six years of a member of any academic unit involved in the

development of the proposal for the program being reviewed

e Have been a student within the past six years in any academic unit involved in the development of the
proposal for the program being reviewed, or

e Have received an undergraduate or a graduate degree from Nipissing in the past six years.

c) Process

The Office of the Provost will notify academic units of the deadline for submission of Nominations of External
Reviewers. Members of the academic unit are not to contact possible external reviewers for any reason. The
academic unit will complete the Nomination of External Reviewers’ template that includes the names and
required information of no fewer than six qualified persons who they are nominating to serve as external
reviewers, all of whom are to be at arm’s length.

Page 15 of 56



¢ |[f there are two or more distinct areas of study within the degree program(s) to be reviewed, all
efforts will be made to ensure a balance of external reviewers with the required expertise. Areas of
expertise should be clearly identified for each nominated external reviewer.

¢ Inthe case of a concurrent review of an undergraduate degree program(s) and a related graduate
degree program(s), nominated external reviewers should be qualified by discipline and experience to
review both program levels.

e Inthe case of joint programs, the list of External Reviewers will be developed jointly with the partner
institution(s).

The completed Nomination of External Reviewers’ form will be sent to the Dean(s). On behalf of the Academic
Unit, the Dean(s) will submit the Nominations of External Reviewers to the Office of the Provost.

d) Ranking of External Reviewers

The Office of the Provost will develop a ranked list of nominated external reviewers. In the case of degree
programs to be offered jointly with another institution, the Office of the Provost will develop a ranked list of
External Reviewer(s) in consultation with the partner institution.

e) Invitation to External Reviewers
The Office of the Provost will contact the proposed reviewers in ranked order.

The inclusion of an internal representative will be optional and whether to have an internal will be determined
by the Office of the Provost in consultation with the Dean(s).

a) Role of Internal Representative (Optional)

Using his/her knowledge of institutional practices and culture, the internal faculty representative facilitates the
work of the External Reviewers during the site visit. The internal representative accompanies the external
reviewers throughout the site visit and attends meetings with the Dean(s), Chair(s) and/or Director(s), faculty,
students, and staff. The internal representative does not participate in the writing of the External Reviewer
Report, except to answer questions, as appropriate.

b) Process

The Dean(s) under whose authority the degree program(s) is being delivered will provide a list of potential
faculty members from within the appropriate division. Based on previous experience and past practice, the
University has determined that the internal should be from within the same decanal division and not from the
academic unit whose program is being reviewed.

c) Joint Program

The selection of an internal faculty member requires joint input and may include one internal member from
each partner institution, or preference may be given to an internal member from another academic unit offering
a joint program, preferably with the same partner institution.

An additional member, appropriately qualified and experienced, may be assigned from industry or the
professions at the discretion of the Provost, in consultation with the Dean.

The academic unit(s) responsible for a program(s) under review will prepare a Self-Study using the Self-Study

Page 16 of 56



template and data collected in Step 3. The template is designed to incorporate all Evaluation Criteria as outlined
in Appendix A.

a) Writing of Self-Study — Participation and Involvement

The Self-Study will describe extent of participation of faculty, staff and students. Indicate how the Self-Study was
written, including how the views of faculty, staff, and students were obtained. All faculty in the program(s) being
reviewed should be involved in the writing and/or review of the Self-Study and Appendices; this includes
partnering institutions; academic units that share responsibility for the program, and faculty from all degree
programs where multiple degree programs are being reviewed. The Self-Study document may include the views
of others deemed to be relevant, including staff, students, graduates of the degree program(s), representatives
of industry, related professions, and practical training programs, and employers, as appropriate. In the case of
professional programs, the views of employers and professional associations should be solicited through surveys
and be incorporated into the review. The views of staff and students will be considered in the process of writing
the self-study.

b) Components of Self-Study
The Self-Study will:

e Be broad-based, reflective, forward-looking

e Address how continuous improvement has been incorporated into processes and practices to
improve/enhance student experience and program quality

e Be a critical analysis of each degree program being reviewed; an assessment of program strengths; and
opportunities to improve and enhance the program

e For the first Cyclical Review of a new program, include steps taken to address any issues/items flagged
in the Monitoring Report for follow-up and items identified for follow-up by the Quality Council during
the approval process

e Describe how concerns and recommendations raised in previous reviews have since been addressed,
specifically those marked for follow-up in the FAR, the Implementation Plan and subsequent
Monitoring Reports.

e Address each of the required Evaluation Criteria as outlined in Appendix A

e Include program-related data and measures of performance, including applicable provincial, national
and professional standards (where available)

e Identify any unique curriculum or program innovations, creative components or significant high impact
practices.

e Describe areas that the program’s faculty, staff and /or students have identified as requiring
improvement, or as holding promise for enhancement and/or opportunities for curricular change

e Assess the adequacy of all relevant services and supports that directly contribute to the academic
quality of each program under review

c) University Priorities
Academic units may reflect on University priorities, commenting on the following initiatives and how each is
integrated into or reflected in the offering of the program: through program objectives, program-level learning
outcomes, curriculum, program delivery, instruction and/or student recruitment:

e Indigenization

e Equity, Diversity and Inclusion

e Anti-Racism

d) Multiple Programs Being Reviewed
In cases where multiple programs are being reviewed, academic units will discuss with the Office of the Provost

Page 17 of 56



whether one or more self-studies should be developed. In cases where multiple programs are being presented
in one self-study, the self-study will:

e Review and clearly identify and discuss each distinctive offering (e.g., mode of delivery) of the program
throughout the self-study template

e Explicitly address quality of each program and learning environment of students in each program

¢ Identify the program objectives, program-level learning outcomes, and complete curriculum mapping
for each degree program.

The Self-Study and Appendices will be submitted to the Dean(s) for review. Where the head of an academic unit
whose program(s) is being reviewed is a Dean, the Self-Study and Appendices will be submitted directly to the
Office of the Provost.

The Dean(s) will provide feedback and facilitate improvements. When the Dean(s) is satisfied that the
documentation is complete and accurate, they will sign off on the document and submit it to the Office of the
Provost for distribution to AQAPC.

The AQAPC is responsible for ensuring the self-study and appendices address all the evaluation criteria for the
program review. Two members, outside of the academic unit being reviewed, will review the Self-Study and
Appendices, and complete the compliance checklist provided by the Office of the Provost. The applicable
Dean(s) typically attend the AQAPC meeting. AQAPC will either approve the documentation or advise the unit of
revisions to be considered. The academic unit will be given the opportunity to make revisions prior to
distribution to the External Reviewers. Once revisions are completed, the documentation is ready to be
distributed to the External Reviewers.

Once the Self-Study has been approved by AQAPC, it is ready for external review.
a) On-Site or Virtual Site Visit

e External review of a new doctoral program will incorporate an on-site visit.

e External review of a new undergraduate program proposal will normally be conducted on-site, except
when the Provost (or delegate) may propose that the review be conducted by desk review, virtual site
visit, or equivalent method if the external reviewers are satisfied that the off-site option is acceptable;

e External review of a new master’s program proposal will normally be conducted on-site, but certain
new master’s program’s (e.g., professional master’s programs) may be conducted by desk review,
virtual site visit, or equivalent method if both the Provost (or delegate) and external reviewers are
satisfied that the off-site option is acceptable. An on-site visit is required for all other proposed
master’s programs.

b) Site Visit Schedule
The Office of the Provost will oversee the arrangements for the in-person or virtual site visit. An in-person site

Page 18 of 56



visit will normally be scheduled for two to three consecutive days. A virtual site visit may be scheduled over a
longer period of time. The Office of the Provost will assist with travel and accommodation arrangements.

The Office of the Provost will draft the schedule for the site visit in consultation with the academic unit. External
reviewers will typically meet with the Provost, relevant Dean(s), Chair(s)/Directors(s), faculty, and students. An
in-person site visit may include a tour of facilities and the library. The Office of the Provost has final approval of
the schedule.

c) Documentation to Share with External Reviewers
The Office of the Provost will provide External Reviewers and the internal representative (optional) with review
documentation.

Documentation will include:

o Nipissing’s Institutional Program Quality Assurance Policy (IQAP) — that will include Evaluation Criteria
and Degree Level Expectations

e Self-Study and Appendices (course syllabuses, faculty CVs, data, student surveys, library statement of
support)

e Template for External Reviewers’ Report. The template includes all Evaluation Criteria set by the
Quality Council (see Appendix A)

e Site Visit Schedule

d) Pre-Meeting (For both in-person and virtual site visits)

A pre-meeting of the external reviewers and the internal representative (optional) will be scheduled to provide
guidance and direction. The Office of the Provost will review the instructions with the external reviewers,
explain their roles and obligations, and respond to any questions related to documentation, process, and the
final report.

Reviewers will be asked to recognize the University’s autonomy to determine priorities for funding, space, and
faculty allocation and respect the confidentiality of all aspects of the review process. The external reviewer(s)
will also be invited to contact the Office of the Provost should any questions arise during the review process.

Timing: One month following site visit

The External Reviewers will submit one joint report, using the Template provided, to the Office of the Provost.
The preference is for one report with a distinct set of recommendations for each program under review. There
may be situations, as determined by the Office of the Provost, where separate reports may be submitted.

a) Preliminary Feedback. The External Reviewers will provide preliminary oral feedback to the Provost (or
designate) before the conclusion of the site visit.

b) Substance of Report. The Report will:
e Address the substance (clarity and completeness) of the Self-Study.
e Address all required Evaluation Criteria as specified in Appendix A.
e Address the quality of each academic program and the learning environment of the students for each
distinct program being reviewed in the Self-Study.
e Describe the program’s strengths. Identify and commend distinctive attributes of each discrete
program (i.e., multiple campuses, online), identify any notable strong and creative and/or clearly

Page 19 of 56



innovative aspects. Provide evidence of any significant innovation or creativity in the content and/or
delivery of the program relative to other such programs.

e Describe areas for improvement and opportunities for enhancement — include at least three (3)
recommendations for specific steps that will lead to the continuous improvement of the program,
distinguishing between those the program can act upon and those that require external action.

e Respect the confidentiality required for all aspects of the review process.

e Recognize the university’s autonomy to determine priorities for funding, space and faculty allocation.
Recommendations related to resources, specifically faculty and space requirements must be directly
linked to issues of program quality and/or sustainability.

c) Special Instructions. In addition, External Reviewers may be asked to respond to any additional questions
from the Provost/Dean(s) in their final report. Such instruction may include a request to respond to:

e Issues of special concern identified for the degree program(s) under review, for example,
appropriateness of the curriculum, breadth of the curriculum, enrolment levels, recruitment, quality of
the permanent or limited-term faculty, adequacy of staffing, space or equipment, program-specific
library resources, etc.; and/or

e Concerns and/or recommendations raised in previous external reviews

e For initial reviews, issues identified in the ‘Notes’ from the Quality Council’s approval letter

d) Submission of Report. The Report(s) should be submitted electronically to the Provost no later than one
month from the date of the site visit or desk audit. The Report should be complete and comprehensive (see
Step 10b), and specifically include a minimum of three distinct recommendations for specific steps that will
lead to the continuous improvement of each distinct program under review.

Upon receipt of the External Reviewers’ Report, the Report will be reviewed by the Office of the Provost to
ensure that it provides a comprehensive assessment of the degree program(s). If the Report is not
satisfactory, the Office of the Provost, in consultation with the Dean(s) will identify any gaps and request
additional information from the External Reviewers.

e) Distribution of Report
Once the Report is deemed satisfactory, the Office of the Provost will distribute the External Reviewers’
Report to the Chair/Director of the academic unit. The External Reviewers’ Report is considered a
confidential document and will be distributed to the Chair/Director. Where appropriate, any confidential
and/or sensitive information will be redacted prior to distribution. Confidential/sensitive information will be
discussed with the Dean, and any action taken will be determined in consultation with the Office of the
Provost.

Timing: One month from date of request from Office of Provost
The Office of the Provost will ask the Chair/Director to provide a Response from their academic unit to the
External Reviewers’ Report and specifically to the Report’s recommendations. The Chair/Director will consult

with members of the academic unit in finalizing a Response. The Response will be submitted to their Dean
within one month of the request.

Timing: One month from receiving response from academic unit

Page 20 of 56



After receipt of the Response by the academic unit, the Dean(s) will provide a written Response within one
month, responding to the plans/recommendations proposed in the External Reviewers’ Report, and the
Program’s Response. The Dean will respond to each of the recommendations identified in the External
Reviewers’ Report, specifically addressing:

e Any changes in curriculum, program organization, policy or governance necessary to meet the
recommendations.

e Any resources, financial and otherwise, that will be provided to support the implementation of those
recommendations requiring resources; and

e A proposed timeline for the implementation of any recommendations.

Exception to Decanal Response: In cases where the Dean is the Divisional Head (e.g., Nursing, Education), a joint

response will be prepared by the faculty and the Dean.

Step 13 —Development of Final Assessment Report (FAR) & the Implementation Plan (IP)

Timing: Normally, six (6) months following site visit

The Office of the Provost will review the Self Study, External Reviewers’ Report, Academic Unit and Decanal
Responses and will develop and finalize the FAR and share it with the Dean and the unit prior to distribution. An
Executive Summary of the Final Assessment Report will become the public document; therefore, it will not
include any confidential or personal information.

The Final Assessment Report / Executive Summary will include the following:

A clear and accountable synthesis of the outcome of the cyclical review and the plans to improve the
program.
A timeline for the key elements of the program’s review process:
a. The timing of when the review was launched;
The date the self-study was submitted/approved;
The site visit dates;
When the external reviewers’ report was received;
When the program’s response was received; and
f.  When the Dean’s response was received.
A summary of the groups and individuals (by role) met with during the (in person or virtual) site visit.
A summary of the outcome(s) of the review, including:
a. That the Senate (or equivalent) QA Committee has approved the FAR and IP
b. When a monitoring report(s) is due
c. When the next Cyclical Review of the program is scheduled to take place, with an expected
timing for the associated site visit (e.g., Fall of 2027)
A summary of the program’s strengths and opportunities for further improvement and enhancement.
A summary of the number of recommendations received, potentially by theme.

© oo o

The Implementation Plan will:

Identify those recommendations needed to maintain the quality of the programs, and promotes the
ongoing and continuous improvement of the program; this process will require looking at key
performance indicators of the program

Set out and prioritize the recommendations that are selected for implementation and/or action
Identify appropriate timelines for acting on and monitoring the implementation of the
recommendations

Page 21 of 56



e |dentify and explain the circumstances related to any recommendations that will not be implemented

e Identify who will be responsible for the timely implementation and monitoring of the recommendations
(e.g., Dean(s), University Librarian, Chair of a department, Director of a graduate degree program)

e If applicable, identify the source(s) of any additional resources required to implement the
recommendations (e.g., Provost, Dean)

Confidential information will be excluded from the FAR and will be documented separately; documentation will
be shared with and handled in consultation with the appropriate Dean(s) and the Provost.

The Provost will approve the Final Assessment Report and the Office of the Provost will be responsible for the
timely distribution of the Final Assessment Report to the following:

e Relevant Dean(s)

e Academic Unit (chairs/directors) to take responsibility and act on as appropriate (with confidential
information removed)

o AQAPC for information

e Senate (for information, with confidential information removed)

e Quality Council for information

e Board of Governors for information

e An Executive Summary and Implementation Plan becomes the public document and is posted to the
University’s website. The Executive Summary will not contain any confidential and/or personnel

information. Academic units are not required to post the FAR or Executive Summary on their own
websites.

Timing: Normally, two (2) years following approval of Final Assessment Report; a shorter or longer time may be
recommended based on complexity of recommendations marked for action.

The Chair/Director will be responsible for executing the identified recommendations in consultation with the
Dean(s). The Dean(s) will be responsible for ensuring that the academic unit implements the recommendations
and submits the follow-up Monitoring Report in a timely manner. The Office of the Provost will remind academic
units and Deans of upcoming deadlines.

The Dean will review Monitoring Report and sign off and forward to the Office of the Provost.

AQAPC reviews the Monitoring Report to ensure that the program has satisfactorily addressed the
recommendations identified for action in the Implementation Plan. AQAPC may request additional information,
and in some cases may require a follow-up report from the academic unit.

Page 22 of 56



Once AQAPC accepts the Monitoring Report, the cyclical review for that degree program is completed, and is
reported to: Chairs/Directors of reviewed degree programs, Dean(s) under whose authority the degree
program(s) being reviewed is offered; and Senate (for information).

1.7 Publication of Documentation

a) Documents Subject to ‘Public Access’
The following documents will be posted publicly on the university’s website:
e Schedule of Reviews
e Final Assessment Reports (with Exec Summary and Implementation Plan)
e Monitoring Reports

b) Documents Not Subject to ‘Public Access’
Given the highly sensitive nature of the documentation used in the cyclical program review process, in which
academic units and external reviewers are asked to be critical in their evaluations, the documents produced
will be deemed confidential. Institutional failure to protect the confidentiality of the documents could
seriously impair frank appraisal, discourage free flow of analytical information, and compromise the efficacy
of the review process.

The following documents will be deemed to be confidential and therefore not subject to ‘public access’:

e Information made available in preparation for the Self-Study

e Specialized instructions to the External Reviewers

e Self-Study and Appendices

e External Reviewers’ Reports

e Internal Responses of the Academic Unit and Dean(s); a summary of the academic and decanal
responses will be included in the Final Assessment Report, absent confidential information.

c) External Reporting

The Office of the Provost will submit an annual report to the Quality Council listing the past years completed
FAR’s, IP’s and monitoring reports providing an attestation that all IQAP-required CPR processes have been
followed. The report will include a link to Nipissing’s quality assurance web postings.

Page 23 of 56



Section 2 — New Program Approval Protocol

2.1 Prelude

The development of new undergraduate and graduate programs will ensure that educational experiences are
both engaging and rigorous. New programs will meet the degree level expectations, which are the academic
standards of Ontario universities that identify expectations of performance by graduates at a specified level of
learning, e.g., Honours, Master, and Doctoral.

The process will look closely at the key performance indicators including degree level expectations, program
objectives, program-level learning outcomes, student achievement of learning outcomes, as well as the
instructional and physical resources needed to achieve the program-level learning outcomes.

The program proposal will include a plan for the continuous improvement of the program, and the interim
monitoring report will review and evaluate the program’s success in realizing its objectives.

The monitoring of a new program is an essential element of continuous improvement, not only in the
development of the program but also for the monitoring and continuous improvement of the program once the
new program is running.

2.2 Approval Requirements and Timelines

New degree programs and graduate diplomas must be approved by Nipissing University’s Senate and by the
Ontario Universities Council on Quality Assurance (Quality Council). The Office of the Provost manages the
approval process for new program development and will direct and facilitate the process through the approval
stages.

a) Approval by Senate — Following the internal procedures laid out below, the Chair of the Academic Quality
Assurance and Planning (AQAPC) will submit a new program proposal to Senate for approval.

b) Approval by the Quality Council — The Office of the Provost will send Senate-approved proposals to the
Quality Council for approval. Decisions on a proposed new degree program are normally received within 45 days
of submission. When the Appraisal Committee of the Quality Council requires additional information, decisions
will normally be made within a further 30 days of the Committee receiving a satisfactory response to its request.
The Appraisal Committee will make a decision on Graduate Diplomas whereas new programs require the
approval of Quality Council.

2.3 Intention to Offer New Programs and Offers of Admission

Intention to Offer New Program — Subject to approval by the Provost, the University may publicly announce its
intention to offer a new undergraduate or graduate degree program in advance of having received approval by
the Quality Council. When such announcements are made in advance of Quality Council approval, they must
contain the following statement: ‘Prospective students are advised that the program is subject to formal
approval’ as per QAF 2.7 Public announcement of new programs.

Offers of Admission — Students cannot be admitted to a new degree program until notification of approval of
the degree program has been received from the Quality Council.

Page 24 of 56



2.4 Joint Degree Programs

In cases where a proposed new degree program will be offered jointly or in partnership with another institution,
the Office of the Provost will work with the partner institution’s counterpart office to streamline the process to
meet requirements of both institutions’ quality assurance policies and procedures and avoid duplication. In
cases where Nipissing’s processes are different from the partner institution, all efforts will be made to comply
with the QAF.

Specifically:
e Representatives from each institution will be members of the Academic Unit.
e Each institution will be involved in the consultation and development of the Program Proposal.
e Each partner institution will be involved in nominating, selecting and ranking of external reviewers.
e Site visits will include all partner institutions, at least where partners are institutions in Ontario.
e There will be a coordinated single internal response by the Academic Unit to the External Reviewers’
Report.

Page 25 of 56



Documentation

St2¢;5ps Description Required for Responsibility
Auditing Purposes
Step 1 | In-Principal Approval by Provost/Provost Council o Letter of Intent * Provost’s Office
Development of Full Program Proposal and Appendices using
Template
e Consultation —faculty, academic units, Decanal Councils
e Budget — in consultation with Dean(s) and Finance Office
e Program Objectives, Program Level Learning Outcomes Academic Unit
. . Program Proposal
Step 2 and Curriculum Mapping B e .
e New Course Development Frameworks at a high-level
structure and-Course Syllabuses Collection
e Current Syllabuses Collection
e (Vs — Collection of Faculty CVs
e Library — Statement of Support
Step 3 | Dean Sign-Off on Program Proposal and Appendices Dean Signature on Dean
Proposal
e Nomination, Ranking and Selection of External Reviewers Nomination Form Academic Unit
Step 4 | ¢« Nomination and Ranking Ranking confirmation | Provost Office
o Letters of Invitation Letter of Invitation Provost’s Office
Step5 | Stage1—ACC Review—of Program Proposaland-Appendices ACC Minutes/Report | ProvestsOttiee
Stage-H—AQAPC Initial Review — of Program Proposal and AQAPC Provost’s Office
Step 65 . .
Appendices Minutes/Report
Step 76 | Site Visit and Instructions Site.Visit SChedUk:f Provost's Office
Reviewer Instructions
Step 87 | External Reviewers’ Report External Reviewers External Reviewers
Report Template
Step 98 | Academic Unit’s Response to External Reviewers’ Report Al i Academic Unit
Response
Step , . , , Dean
109 Dean’s Response to External Reviewers’ Report Dean’s Response
Step Stage-H—AQAPC Final Review — of Program Proposal, AQAPC Provost’s Office
1110 External Reviewers’ Report, Academic Unit’s Response, Dean’s Vi es RenoTt
= | Response; AQAPC recommends program to Senate
i;z Senate for Approval Senate Minutes Senate
Quality Council Provost’s Office
Step | Submission and Approval by Quality Council and Ministry of Approval Letter
1312 | Colleges and Universities Ministry Approval
Letter
Follow-up and Reporting o Link to program Provost’s Office
Step e Post Program Description to Website description
13 |° Verbal Update to Senate e BoG Annual Report

e Report to Board of Governors (BoG)
e Add to Schedule of Reviews

o Year of First Cyclical
Review

Page 26 of 56




St Provost’s Office
15(212 Implementation Window and Monitoring Report to AQAPC Monitoring Report

The initial idea for a new degree program may come from several different sources, including groups of faculty
members one or more academic units, administration, and collaborations with other institutions. The initial idea
for a new degree program will be discussed with the Dean(s) under whose authority the degree program would
be delivered.

The Dean, in consultation with the proponents of the new degree program, will develop a Letter of Intent for the
new degree program (template available upon request). The Dean(s) will take the Letter of Intent to the Provost
Council for discussion and in-principle approval. Should the Provost grant in-principle approval, the Dean(s) will
direct the Academic Unit to move forward with developing a Full Program Proposal. If the Provost does not think
that the proposal merits further development, it will direct feedback to the proponents through the Dean(s). An
amended Initial Proposal may be reconsidered by the Provost at a later date.

A number of supports are available to assist academic units in the preparation of the new program proposal and
appendices. See Provision of Support.

a) Template and Evaluation Criteria
The Academic Unit will prepare, and complete in full, a proposal for a new degree program for approval, using
the Program Proposal Template that:
e Includes required Evaluation Criteria as specified in Appendix B (as defined in QAF)
e Indicates if the program is a ‘professional’ or ‘cost-recovery’ program
e Highlights unique curriculum or program innovations, creative components, or significant high impact
practices.

b) University Priorities
Academic units may reflect on University priorities, commenting on the following initiatives and how each is
integrated into or reflected in the offering of the program: through program objectives, program-level learning
outcomes, curriculum, program delivery, instruction and/or student recruitment:

e Indigenization

e Equity, Diversity and Inclusion

e Anti-Racism

c) Consultation
The Academic Unit is encouraged to begin early consultations and continue consulting throughout the entire
process of the new degree program development to allow for feedback and comment. Recommended
consultation should include affected/interested parties, including:
e Members of academic units who may be affected by the proposed degree program or who have
expertise relevant to the proposal
e Faculty Councils - Deans will announce at their faculty councils that a proposal for a new degree
program is being developed; Chairs/Directors will convey this information to their academic units as
appropriate
o Where applicable, include input and perspectives of potential employers and professional associations
e Where possible, consultation should include students.

Page 27 of 56



d) Proposed Budget

The Academic Unit will work closely with their Dean to develop a proposed budget for the new program. The
budget is for internal use only; it will be submitted to AQAPC and Senate. The proposed budget is an estimate of
proposed resources; actual resources will be dependent upon a number of factors including enrolment.
Proposed budgets should be shared with OIPA and the Associate Vice-President, Finance in the Finance Office
for review and comment.

e) Program Objectives, Program-Level Learning Outcomes and Curriculum Mapping
The Teaching Hub is available to assist with the development of program objectives, program-level learning

outcomes, course-level learning outcomes and curriculum mapping.

f) New Course Development and Course Syllabi Collection

han San ha Annand i H mphn

of-coursesylabuses—new-and-existing-course-syllabi-New course frameworks should be developed at a high-

level structure and appendices should include a collection of current course syllabuses.

g) Curriculum Vitae
CVs for faculty involved with the degree program should be collected and compiled into an Appendix.

h) Library Statement of Support
The Academic Unit should request from the University Librarian a report showing the extent to which the library
resources can support the new degree program.

i) Office of Research

Graduate programs should include information on research funding and grants. Academic Unit should request
this information from the Office of Research.

Step 3 — Dean Sign-Off on Program Proposal and Appendices

The Dean will review the Program Proposal and Appendices and recommend revisions as appropriate. The Dean
will review the document for accuracy and clarity and will be responsible for ensuring resources are acceptable
and reasonable as presented in the proposed budget. Once the Dean(s) has signed off on the completed
Program Proposal, the proposal will be forwarded to the Office of the Provost for distribution to AQAPC.

Step 4 — Nomination, Ranking and Selection of External Reviewers

Number of Reviewers Required

Degree Program External Reviewers

Undergraduate 2 reviewers

Graduate 2 reviewers

Joint Undergraduate and Graduate 2 external reviewers, plus internal
reviewers, one from each institution

a) Qualifications of External Reviewers — will normally:
e Be Associate or Full Professors
e Have suitable disciplinary expertise, qualifications and experience in developing, assessing and/or
managing degree programs
e Have combined professional experience to cover the majority areas of study and/or fields of expertise.
e At least one of the reviewers will have expertise in teaching and learning — content and program delivery,

Page 28 of 56



assessment/evaluation, curriculum mapping, and learning outcomes
e |nthe case of graduate degree programs, have experience with graduate teaching and supervision
e Be atarm’s length.

b) Arm’s Length Requirement
An arm’s length peer reviewer is an external disciplinary expert who has not been a supervisor, collaborator,
departmental colleague (past or present) or co-author of faculty members in the previous six years, and who
does not have personal connections with members of the academic unit or:
e Be aclose friend or relative of a member of the Academic Unit or of someone with whom the
Academic Unit has consulted
e Have been a supervisor within the past six years of a member of any academic unit involved in the
development of the proposal for a new degree program
e Have been a student within the past six years in any academic unit involved in the development of the
proposal for a new degree program, or
e Have received an undergraduate or a graduate degree from Nipissing in the past six years.

c) Process

The Nomination of External Reviewers should be submitted to the Office of the Provost as soon as the Dean(s)
has signed off on the Program Proposal. This enables the Office of the Provost time to confirm the availability of
the external reviewer(s). Members of the Academic Unit are not to contact possible external reviewers for any
reason.

The Academic Unit will complete the Nomination of External Reviewers’ template that includes the names and
required information of at least six qualified persons who they are nominating to serve as external reviewers of
the proposed degree program, all of whom are to be at arm’s length.

e |If there are two or more distinct areas of study within the proposed degree program, all efforts will be
made to ensure a balance of external reviewers with the required expertise. Areas of expertise should
be clearly identified for each nominated external reviewer.

e Inthe case of joint programs, the list of External Reviewers will be developed jointly with the partner
institution(s).

The completed Nomination of External Reviewers’ form will be sent to the Dean(s). On behalf of the Academic
Unit, the Dean(s) will submit the Nominations of External Reviewers to the Office of the Provost.

d) Ranking and Selection

The Office of the Provost, in consultation with the Dean(s), will develop a ranked list of nominated external
reviewers. In the case of a degree program to be offered jointly with another institution, the Office of the
Provost will develop a ranked list of External Reviewer(s) in consultation with the partner institution. The Office
of the Provost will contact the proposed reviewers in ranked order.

Page 29 of 56



6-5 —Stage H-—

The Dean will forward the Program Proposal to the Office of the Provost, who will submit it to AQAPC for
review. The documentation will include the Program Proposal and Appendices, including the budget. AQAPC will
review the documentation and may approve the Program Proposal as submitted or ask for revisions prior to the
Office of the Provost forwarding the Program Proposal for external assessment.

76
Once the Program Proposal for a new degree program has been approved by AQAPC, it is ready for external
review.

a) Site Visits: In-person, Virtually or Desk Review

e External review of a new doctoral program will incorporate an on-site visit.

e External review of a new undergraduate program proposal will normally be conducted on-site, except
when the Provost (or delegate) may propose that the review be conducted by desk review, virtual site
visit, or equivalent method if the external reviewers are satisfied that the off-site option is acceptable;

e External review of a new master’s program proposal will normally be conducted on-site, but certain
new master’s program’s (e.g., professional master’s programs) may be conducted by desk review,
virtual site visit, or equivalent method if both the Provost (or delegate) and external reviewers are
satisfied that the off-site option is acceptable. An on-site visit is required for all other proposed
master’s programs.

b) Site Visit Schedule

The Office of the Provost will oversee the arrangements for the in-person or virtual site visit. An in-person visit
will normally be scheduled for one to two days, whereas a virtual site visit may be scheduled over a longer
period. The Office of the Provost will assist with travel and accommodation arrangements. The Office of the
Provost will be responsible for drafting the schedule for the site visit. External reviewers will typically meet with
the Provost, relevant Dean(s), Chair(s)/Directors(s) and faculty. An in-person site visit may include a tour of
facilities and the library. The Office of the Provost has final approval of the schedule.

c) Documentation to Share with Reviewers
The Office of the Provost will provide external reviewers with review documentation normally no less than two
weeks prior to the site visit.

Documentation will include:
o Nipissing University’s IQAP Policy and Procedures, including Evaluation Criteria and Degree Level
Expectations
& Program Proposal and Appendices, including Library Statement of Support, Course Syllabuses and
Faculty CVs
e Template for the External Reviewers’ Report. The template includes all Evaluation Criteria set by the

Quality Council (see Appendix B)
e Site Visit Schedule.

Page 30 of 56



d) Pre-Meeting — For both in-person and virtual site visits

A pre-meeting of the external reviewers will be scheduled to provide guidance and direction. The Office of the
Provost will review the instructions with the external reviewers, explain their roles and obligations, and respond
to any questions related to documentation, process, and the final report.

e) Reviewers will be asked to recognize the University’s autonomy to determine priorities for funding, space,
and faculty allocation and respect the confidentiality of all aspects of the review process. The external
reviewer(s) will also be invited to contact the Office of the Provost should any questions arise during the review
process.

87

Timing: One month following site visit

External reviewers will submit one joint report using the External Reviewers’ Report Template provided by the
Office of the Provost.

a) Substance of Report. The Report will:

e Address the substance (clarity and completeness) of the New Program Proposal

e Address all required Evaluation Criteria as specified in Appendix B

e Address the quality and learning environment of the program

e Describe the program’s strengths. Identify, commend and provide evidence of any distinctive attributes of
the program, identify any notable strong and creative and/or clearly innovative aspects, including
significant innovation or creativity in the content and/or delivery of the program relative to other such
programs.

e Describe areas for improvement and opportunities for enhancement.

e Include a Summary and a clearly defined list of recommendations that are clear, concise and actionable to
improve and/or enhance the quality of the program

e Respect the confidentiality required for all aspects of the review process.

Recognize the university’s autonomy to determine priorities for funding, space and faculty allocation.
Recommendations related to resources, specifically faculty requirements must be directly linked to issues of
program quality and/or sustainability.

b) Submission of Report
The final report will be submitted electronically to the Office of the Provost no later than one month from the
date of the visit (on-site, virtually or desk).

Upon receipt of the External Reviewers’ Report, the Report will be reviewed by the Office of the Provost to
ensure that it provides a comprehensive assessment of the new program. If the Report is not satisfactory, the
Provost, in consultation with the Dean(s) identify any gaps and request additional information from the External
Reviewers.

c) Distribution of Report

Once the Report is deemed satisfactory, the Office of the Provost will distribute the External Reviewers’ Report
to the Academic Unit Chair/Director. Where appropriate, any confidential and/or sensitive information will be
redacted prior to distribution.

d) Honorarium
Page 31 of 56



Upon satisfactory completion of the External Reviewers report, each reviewer will receive an Honorarium for
their work. The Office of the Provost will administer the Honorarium.

98

The Academic Unit will prepare a response to the External Reviewers’ Report that will address each of the
recommendations; the response may include further explanation or details in response to the comments or
recommendations.

e If minor revisions are required, it is expected that these will be detailed in the Academic Unit’s Response

e For substantial revisions, the Academic Unit will revise the Program Proposal using track changes. A
detailed summary of these revisions will be included as part of the Academic Unit Response or in an
appended document with the formal response. The Academic Unit will submit their response to the
Dean(s).

109

The Dean(s) will provide a response to the External Reviewers’ Report, that is separate from that of the
Academic Unit, to each of the recommendations. In cases where a Dean is the Working Chair for a new Program
Proposal, members of the Academic Unit will prepare a response independently from the Dean; the Dean will
provide a separate response.

Exception to Decanal Response: In cases where the Dean is the Divisional Head (e.g., Nursing, Education), a joint
response will be prepared by the Academic Unit and the Dean.

1110 —Stage -~

AQAPC will review the final Program Proposal, the External Reviewers’ Report, the Academic Unit’s Response
and Dean’s Response. Relevant Dean(s) will be invited to attend AQAPC. AQAPC will assess whether the new
degree program meets Nipissing’s quality assurance standards, and will make one of the following
determinations:

e Recommends to Senate for approval

e Requests modifications

e Recommends that the proposal not be pursued further

Should AQAPC request modifications or recommend that the proposal not be pursued further, the Dean or the
Office of the Provost will convey the committee’s views to the Academic Unit.

1211

The Final Program Proposal and related documentation (with confidential and/or sensitive information
removed) will be shared with Faculty Council for information and Senate for approval.

Documentation will include:
e Program Proposal,
e Budget,
e Executive Summary of the External Reviewers’ Report,
e Academic Unit’s Response,
e Dean’s Response.

Page 32 of 56



The Dean and/or a member of the Academic Unit will be called upon to speak to the proposal and/or to answer
questions.

If Senate does not approve the recommendation from AQAPC, the Provost, in consultation with the Dean, will
determine the next step, which may include modification of the proposal or discontinuation of the initiative.

1312

Once Senate has approved a proposal for a new degree program, the Office of the Provost will submit the
program to the Quality Assurance Secretariat. The submission to the Quality Council will be a single, clearly
bookmarked PDF file arranged in the order required by the Quality Assurance Appraisal Committee (see the
Quality Assurance Submission Checklist).

a) Documentation to Quality Council will include:
e Quality Assurance Submission Checklist
e Program Proposal
e Appendices (excluding CVs and Budget)
e External Reviewers’ Report
e Academic Unit’s Response
e Dean’s Response
e Letter of Support from the Provost.

The submission will also include:
e A Checklist (with a summary of key changes as required)
e Date approved by Senate
e Bios for external reviewers specifically indicating qualifications in the following areas: sufficient

expertise in content and program delivery; connections to industry (where appropriate); and expertise
in teaching and learning.

b) Quality Council Decision

The Quality Council Appraisal Committee will review the proposal and may request clarification and/or
additional information. Once satisfied, they will make a recommendation to Quality Council, who in turn will
review the proposal and make one of the following recommendations:

i) Approved to Commence
ii) Approved to Commence with Report — The University will be required to report on specified issues
with a pre-determined deadline, e.g., one to three years from program commencement

iii) Deferred for up to one year during which time the university may address identified issues and report
back

iv) Not Approved
v) Such other action as the Quality Council considers reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.

The Quality Assurance Secretariat will convey the decision of the Quality Council to the university. Requests for
clarification and follow-up will be handled by the Office of Provost, and internally by the Dean(s) with the

Chair/Director of the Academic Unit.

If approved by the Quality Council, the Office of the Provost will submit the approved proposal to the Ministry of
Colleges and Universities for approval and program funding.

Page 33 of 56



c) Public Announcement of new programs

The Provost may publicly announce its intention to offer a new undergraduate or graduate program in advance
of receiving approval by the Quality Council with the following statement: “Prospective students are advised that
the program is still subject to formal approval.”

d) Appeals and Resubmissions

Should the Quality Council not grant approval to commence, the Provost, in consultation with the Dean(s), will
reassess the proposal considering the Quality Council’s comments and will determine whether to amend and
resubmit the brief, appeal the decision, or discontinue the proposal. When the recommendation is ii), iii) or iv),
the University has 30 days to request a meeting with and/or reconsideration by the Appraisal Committee.

Should the decision be made to amend and resubmit, the Dean(s) will work with the Academic Unit to develop a
revised proposal. The Provost can approve minor changes made to the original proposal; major changes will be
reviewed and/or approved through Senate Committees (ACC for changes to degree requirements or new
courses, AQAPC for approval of the revised Full Proposal). When AQAPC deems that the revised Full Proposal for
the new degree program addresses the issues highlighted by the Quality Council, it will be resubmitted to the
Quality Assurance Secretariate for approval.

1413

a) Description of Program
Will be posted on the Office of the Provost’s website once the program is approved by the Quality Council.

b) Senate
Senate will be verbally informed of decisions of the Quality Council.

c) Reports to Board of Governors
The Provost will keep the Board of Governors regularly apprised of new degree program proposals, normally in
an annual report.

1514

a) Implementation Window

After a new degree program is approved to commence by the Quality Council and the Ministry of Colleges and
Universities, the degree program must begin within 36 months of the date of approval; otherwise, the approval
from the Quality Council will lapse.

b) Monitoring Report

The purpose of the monitoring report is to ensure that the degree program has been successfully initiated and
to identify early, and work to address, any unforeseen implementation issues. There is an element of continuous
improvement that ensures a program that is recently launched is closely monitored to identify challenges and
issues with the program and address them in a timely manner.

e The Dean, in consultation with the Chair, Director or Program Coordinator, will provide a monitoring
report to the Office of the Provost for distribution to the AQAPC on a new degree program, normally
after the degree program has been operating for five years. In cases where enrolment is low in the first
few years, the date for submitting a Monitoring Report may be delayed. The Monitoring Report will
take place after the program’s launch and prior to the program’s first cyclical review.

e The Monitoring Report will address any issues identified in the ‘Notes’ provided by the Quality
Page 34 of 56



Assurance’s Appraisal Committee and will include an evaluation of the program’s success in realizing
its objectives, requirements and outcomes, as originally proposed and approved, as well as any
changes that have occurred in the interim.

e AQAPC will review the Report prepared by the Dean, in consultation with the Chair, Director or
Program Coordinator, and determine if it is sufficient or if additional information is required. Senate
will be notified that AQAPC has accepted the Monitoring Report.

e The ongoing monitoring process of the new program will continue to consider issues identified in the
report, and the Office of the Provost will ensure that any concerns from the Monitoring Report are
included in the first Cyclical Review.

2.6 Process

Graduate Diploma Note

The approval process for proposing a new graduate diploma will follow an abbreviated process of the new
program approval as diplomas are not subject to external assessment. Steps 1, 2, 3 and 5 will be required as will
Steps 12 through 15.

2.7 Publication of Documentation

The following documentation will be published to the website:
e Description of New Program — once approved by Quality Council®

2.8 First Cyclical Program Review
The first cyclical review for any new degree program must be conducted no more than eight years after the date
of the degree program’s initial enrolment. The degree program will be added to the Cyclical Schedule of

Reviews.

Issues identified in the Monitoring Report and any ‘Notes’ from Quality Council’s approval letter will be
addressed in the first Cyclical Review.

Page 35 of 56



Section 3 — Expedited Approval Protocol

3.1 Prelude

This protocol is designed to ensure that decisions can be made quickly and efficiently to launch new graduate
diploma programs or program changes in a timely manner, e.g., to meet upcoming term application deadlines,
support innovation., etc.

The protocol for Expedited Approvals applies to:
e New Graduate Diploma — Types 2 and 3
e Expedited Major Modifications — as determined by the Provost
e Creation of new standalone degree from an existing field in a graduate program

Expedited proposals are granted in a shorter time with less required documentation and do not require an
external review. Proposals sent to the Appraisal Committee for Expedited Approval require Senate approval and
will follow the processes set out in Section 2.6 Graduate Diploma Note for new Graduate Diplomas and Section 4
— for Major Modifications. Expedited proposals will be submitted to Quality Council for approval following
Senate approval.

3.2 Graduate Diplomas — Types 2 and 3

The approval process for proposing a new graduate diploma will follow an abbreviated process of the New
Program Approval Protocol and will not be subject to external assessment. Steps 1, 2, 3 & 5 and Steps 12
through 15 will be required, as per the required Evaluation Criteria (QAF 2.1.2).

In cases where a Graduate Diploma is not associated with a parent graduate program, it is recommended (not
required) that an external Desk Review be conducted.

Once approved by Senate, the program will be submitted to Quality Council’s Appraisal Committee for decision:

i Approved to Commence
ii.  Approved to Commence with Report
iii. Not Approved.

3.3 Expedited Major Modifications

The Provost will determine if a Major Modification to an existing program should be sent to the Quality Council’s
Appraisal Committee for expedited approval rather than reported to Quality Council in the Annual Report on
Major Modifications. In such cases, these will be referred to as ‘expedited major modifications’.

3.4 Creation of new standalone degree from an existing field in a graduate program

A program may choose to create a standalone degree from a long-standing field provided it has undergone at
least two Cyclical Program Reviews and has had at least two graduating cohorts.

The internal approval process will follow that of Graduate Diplomas (2 and 3), an abbreviated process of the
New Program Approval Protocol, Steps 1, 2, 3 and 5 and Steps 12 through 15, as per the required Evaluation
Criteria (QAF 2.1.2). Once approved by AQAPC, the recommendation will move forward to Senate for approval,
followed by submission to Quality Council’s Appraisal Committee for approval.

Page 36 of 56



3.5 Final Decision of Appraisal Committee

The Appraisal Committee will make one of the following decisions:
iv. Approved to Commence
v.  Approved to Commence with Report
vi. Not Approved.

Page 37 of 56



Section 4 — Major Modification Protocol
(Program Renewal and Significant Change)

4.1 Prelude

The Major Modification Protocol encourages and reinforces the ongoing and continuous improvement of
programs and associated curriculum. Academic units are encouraged to have a plan in place to actively monitor
key performance indicators (i.e., program structure, requirements, objectives, learning outcomes, assessment
and student achievement) that will help them identify modifications to the program that will improve and
enhance the quality of the program. The University values the importance of this self-reflection and self-
assessment to ensure the delivery of high-quality programming and student learning and experiences.

Major Modifications may be made to:

e Implement the outcomes of cyclical program review;

e Reflect the ongoing evolution of the discipline;

e Accommodate new developments in a particular field,;

e Facilitate improvements in teaching and learning strategies;

e Respond to the changing needs of students, society and industry; and/or
e Respond to improvements in technology.

The distinction between major modifications and new programs can, at times, be difficult to determine. The
Quality Council has the final authority to decide if a major modification constitutes a new program. In such a
case, the submission must follow the Protocol for New Programs.

4.2 Definition and Examples of Major Modifications

Major modifications result in substantial changes to an existing program requirement, learning outcomes,
faculty complement, or delivery mode, usually creating significant new choices or experiences for students, but
not as considerable as to qualify as a new program. The Provost, in consultation with the Deans and the Office of
the Registrar, will determine what constitutes a significant modification, and hence qualifies as a major
modification, or is a minor modification or a new program.

Major modifications typically include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following:

a) Requirements that differ significantly from those existing at the time of the previous cyclical program
review, for example:
e course requirements comprising more than one third of the entire program
e amerger of two programs
e The introduction or deletion of an undergraduate thesis or capstone project
e The introduction or deletion of a work experience, co-op option, internship or
practicum, or portfolio
b) Change to at least one third of the program-level learning outcomes.
c) Significant changes to the program’s delivery, including:
e 50% or more of the program’s faculty;
e Loss of or addition to the essential physical resources, where these changes impair or
enhance the delivery of the approved program.
e the existing mode(s) of delivery (e.g., different campus and/or changes to online/hybrid
delivery impacting 30% or more of program, introduction or deletion of full- or part-
time program options). For more detail on mode of delivery changes, please see 4.3.

Page 38 of 56



d) Change in program name and/or degree nomenclature, when this results in a change in learning
outcomes; and/or
e) Addition of a single new field to an existing graduate program.

4.3 Considerations for Changes to Mode of Delivery

When changing the mode of delivery of a program to online for all or a significant portion of a program that was
previously delivered in-person, consideration of the following criteria is strongly encouraged as part of the
approval process for the proposed major modification:

a) Maintenance of and/or changes to the program objectives and program-level
learning outcomes.

b) Adequacy of the technological platform and tools.

c) Sufficiency of support services and training for teaching staff.

d) Sufficiency and type of support for students in the new learning environment; and

e) Access.

4.4 Program Closure

Program closures will not be considered a Major Modification. These closures will be recommended by Faculty
Executive to AQAPC and Senate for approval.

4.5 Submission Process for Major Modifications

An academic unit intending to propose a major modification to an existing program will submit a Letter of Intent
to the Dean using the appropriate template. The Dean will present the LOI to the Provost for in-principle
approval. If granted in-principle approval, the academic unit be notified to complete the full Proposal for Major
Modification template and submit it to Academic Regulations and Curriculum Committee (ARCC) (if an
undergraduate program) or Graduate Studies Council (GSC) (if a graduate program). Upon approval, the
proposal will next move to Faculty Executive, then ACC (if an undergraduate program), and then Senate. If the
Provost determines the Major Modification may require substantial changes to resources/infrastructure, the
proposal will also need to be heard at AQAPC following ACC (for undergraduate programs) or GSC (for graduate
programs).

The proposal for a major modification to a program will include:

e Adetailed description of the change to the program along with rationale for those changes

e Discussion of the modification’s relationship to the University’s Strategic Plan and the approved
Strategic Mandate Agreement (SMA).

e Consideration of the changes in regard to the previous cyclical program review, where
appropriate

e Details of existing and new resources (human, physical and budgetary) required to modify the
program.

e  Proposed program requirements if the curriculum will change along with this modification

¢ Anindication of how the change aligns with the relevant program objectives and program-level
learning outcome(s); or changes to the objectives and learning outcomes

e Details of the appropriateness of the proposed mode(s) of delivery to facilitate students’
successful completion of the program-level learning outcomes

e Anassessment of how students will be impacted as well as a statement as to how the
modification will improve the student experience

Page 39 of 56



e Evidence of consultation with all affected academic units; consultation will include input from
current students and recent graduates
o Evidence that the Dean has been consulted.

4.6 Annual Reporting

The Registrar’s Office will maintain a list of major modifications approved by Senate that will be reported by the
Office of the Provost in the Annual Report to the Quality Council. The Annual Report will reflect the period from
July to June and will include a summary of major program modifications, including program closures approved
through the internal approval process. Note that major modifications are not normally subject to the
institution’s Cyclical Audit.

4.7 Other Program Changes

Changes to an existing Emphasis, Option, or Minor Program; the creation of a new micro-credential(s);
undergraduate certificate(s); and laddering, stacking or similar options, or comparable elements that do not rise
to the level of a Major Modification will follow an internal approval process as follows:

e Academic Unit

e ARCC (for undergraduate studies) or GSC (for graduate studies)

e Faculty Executive

e ACC (for undergraduate studies)

e Senate

Page 40 of 56



Section 5 — Audit Protocol

5.1 Prelude

Cyclical Audit provides the necessary accountability to post-secondary education’s principal stakeholders,
students, government, employers, and the public, by assessing the degree to which a university’s internally
defined quality assurance processes, procedures, and practices align with and satisfy the internationally agreed
upon standards, as set out in the Quality Assurance Framework.

The University will be subject to a Cyclical Audit at least once every eight years. The scope of this protocol will
include an evaluation of past and current practices; review of institutional changes made in policy, procedures,
and practices in response to recommendations from the previous audit; confirmation that university’s practices
comply with its ratified IQAP; and review of the university’s approach to continuous improvement.

Specifically, the Audit will:
e Evaluate past and current practices
e Review institutional changes made in policy, procedures and practices in response to the
recommendations from the previous audit
e Confirm that university’s practices comply with its IQAP as ratified by the Quality Council and note any
misalignments of its IQAP with the QAF
e Review the university’s approach to continuous improvement.

5.2 Outcomes of Audit Report

The Audit Report describes the extent to which the institution is compliant with its quality assurance polices and
achieves best practice. Based on the findings in its Report, the Audit Committee will make recommendations
about future oversight by Quality Council and/or one or more of its Committees, and may include any of the
following:

e Direct specific attention of issue(s) to auditors in the subsequent audit

e Schedule a larger selection of programs for the university’s next audit

e Require a Focused Audit. A Focused Audit may be required in cases where at least one Cause for Concern
has been identified. The Audit will focus on specific areas of concern and follow similar steps to the
Cyclical Audit. A Focused Audit does not replace the Cyclical Audit.

e Adjust the degree of oversight and any associated requirements for more or less oversight.

5.3 Key Elements and Process for Cyclical Audit

a) Pre-Audit Orientation Briefing
The University will participate in a pre-audit orientation/briefing with the Quality Council Secretariat and an
Audit Team member approximately one year prior to the scheduled Cyclical Audit. The purpose of this
briefing will be to outline the expectations of the cyclical audit.

b) Selection of Sample Programs for Audit
The Audit Team will select a sample of programs for audit that represent the New Program Approval Protocol
and the Cyclical Program Review Protocol as described in the Quality Assurance Framework. New programs
approved and existing programs that have undergone cyclical review since the previous Cyclical Audit will be
eligible for selection in the University’s next Cyclical Audit. The audit process cannot reverse the approval of a
program to commence.

Page 41 of 56



d)

e)

f)

g)

A small sample of new programs or cyclical program reviews in progress may be selected, and in these cases,
documentation will not be required. In these cases, auditors will meet with program representatives to gain a
better understanding of current quality assurance practices in the institution.

Programs created or modified through the Protocols for Expedited Approvals and Major Modifications are
not normally subject to the institution’s Cyclical Audit.

Institutional Self-Study

The university will prepare a self-study that presents and assesses its quality assurance processes, including
challenges and opportunities, within its own institutional context. The self-study will include the process
undertaken to prepare the self-study, flag any issues from the previous audit, and most importantly, reflect
on current policies and practices that demonstrate the university’s focus on continuous improvement. The
self-study will be submitted to the Quality Assurance Secretariat in advance of the desk audit and will form
the foundation of the Cyclical Audit.

Process and Documentation

In its preparation, the Provost, Deans, and relevant committees will be consulted and requested to provide
input. The Office of the Provost will be responsible for the preparation of the self-study and for submission of
Audit documentation to the Quality Council Secretariat, including:

e Relevant documents and other information related to the programs selected for audit, as requested by
the Audit Team

e Record of any revisions of the university’s IQAP, as ratified by the Quality Council

e Annual Report of any minor revisions of the University’s IQAP that did not require Quality Council re-
ratification.

Desk Audit and Site Visit

The Audit Team will review documentation prior to a two-to-three-day site visit. During the site visit, the
Audit Team will meet with the university’s senior academic leadership, quality assurance staff, and
representatives from programs selected for audit. The purpose of the visit will be to gain a sufficiently
complete and accurate understanding of the university’s application of its IQAP, and to specifically address
any information gaps that may arise during the desk audit and to assess the degree to which the institutions’
quality assurance practices contribute to continuous improvement of its programs.

Audit Report and Summary

The Audit Report includes an assessment of the overall performance of the university and includes
recommendations to the Quality Council, based on their assessment. The Audit Report will focus on
compliancy with the University’s IQAP; misalignment of the IQAP with the Quality Assurance Framework;
identifying and recording notable effective policies or practices; and the university’s approach to ensuring
continuous improvement in quality assurance through the implementation of the outcomes of cyclical
program reviews and the monitoring of new programs. The Report will include findings in the form of:

e Recommendations that will require an institutional response
e Causes for Concern that are potential structural and /or systemic weaknesses
e Suggestions to strengthen quality assurance practices

Focused Audit
When an Audit Report identifies at least one Cause for Concern, the University will participate in a Focused
Audit as recommend by the Audit Committee. This Audit will require closer scrutiny and further support to

Page 42 of 56



address the specific area(s) of concern.

h) Follow-up Response by University and Auditors’ Report on the University’s Response
e Follow-up. The University may be required to respond to the Audit Report, within the recommended
timeframe for submission, by detailing the steps taken to address the recommendation and/or any
Causes for Concern.
e Associated Auditors’ Report. The Audit Team will report on the institution’s sufficiency of response.
Once satisfied, the Audit Committee will submit a recommendation to the Quality Council to accept
the university’s follow-up response and associated auditors’ report.

5.4 Publication of Documentation

The following documentation will be publicly posted to the University’s website, absent any confidential
information:

o Audit Report (excluding addendum)

e Follow-Up Response Report (to Audit Report)
e Auditors’ Response Report

e Focused Audit Report

Page 43 of 56



Appendix A
Evaluation Criteria for Cyclical Program Review
Existing undergraduate and graduate programs will be evaluated against the following criteria as set out in the
Quality Assurance Framework (5.1.3.1)

1. Objectives
a) Consistency of the program’s objectives with the institution’s mission and academic plans.

2. Program Requirements

a) Appropriateness of the program’s structure and the requirements to meet its objectives and the
program-level learning outcomes.

b) Appropriateness of the program’s structure, requirements and program-level learning outcomes in
meeting the institution’s own undergraduate or graduate Degree Level Expectations

c) Appropriateness and effectiveness of the mode(s) of delivery to facilitate students’ successful
completion of the program-level learning outcomes

d) Ways in which the curriculum addresses the current state of the discipline or area of study

3. Program Requirements for Graduate Programs Only
a) Clear rationale for program length that ensures that students can complete the program-level learning
outcomes and requirements within the time required
b) Evidence that each graduate student in the program is required to take a minimum of two-thirds of the
course requirements from among graduate level courses
c) For research-focused graduate programs, clear indication of the nature and suitability of the major
research requirements for degree completion.

4. Assessment of Teaching and Assessment
a) Appropriateness and effectiveness of the methods for assessing student achievement of the program-
level learning objectives and degree level expectations.
b) Appropriateness and effectiveness of the plans to monitor and assess:
i. The overall quality of the program
ii. Whether the program continues to achieve in practice its objectives
iii. Whether its students are achieving the program-level learning outcomes
iv. How the resulting information will be documented and subsequently used to inform continuous
program improvement

5. Admission Requirements
a) Appropriateness of the program’s admission requirements given the program’s objectives and
program-level learning outcomes
b) Sufficient explanation of alternative requirements, if applicable, for admission into graduate, second-
entry or undergraduate program, e.g., minimum grade point average, additional languages or
portfolios, and how the program recognizes prior work or learning experience

6. Resources
Given the program’s class sizes and cohorts as well as its program-level learning outcomes:

a) Participation of a sufficient number of qualified core faculty who are competent to teach and/or
supervise in and achieve the goals of the program and foster the appropriate academic environment

b) If applicable, discussion/explanation of the role and approximate percentage of adjunct and part-time
faculty/limited term appointments used in the delivery of the program and the associated plans to
ensure the sustainability of the program and quality of the student experience

c) If required, provision of supervision of experiential learning opportunities

Page 44 of 56



d) Adequacy of the administrative unit’s utilization of existing human, physical and financial resources

e) Evidence that there are adequate resources to sustain the quality of scholarship and research activities
produced by students, including library support, information technology support, and laboratory
access.

7. Resources for Graduate Programs Only
Given the program’s class sizes and cohorts, as well as its program-level learning outcomes:

a) Evidence that faculty have the recent research or professional/clinical expertise needed to foster an
appropriate intellectual climate, sustain the program, and promote innovation

b) Where appropriate to the program, evidence that financial assistance for students is sufficient to
ensure adequate quality and numbers of students

c) Evidence of how supervisory loads are distributed, in light of qualifications and appointment status of
the faculty

8. Quality and Other Indicators

a) Evidence of the quality of the faculty (e.g., qualifications, funding, honours, awards, research,
innovation and scholarly record, appropriateness of collective faculty expertise to contribute
substantively to the program and commitment to student mentoring)

b) Any other evidence that the program and faculty ensure the intellectual quality of the student
experience

c) For students: grade-level for admission, scholarly output, success rates in provincial and national
scholarships, competitions, awards and commitment to professional and transferable skills, and times-
to-completion and retention rates.

Page 45 of 56



Appendix B
Evaluation Criteria for New Program Approvals
New undergraduate and graduate programs will be evaluated against the following criteria as set out in the
Quality Assurance Framework (2.1.2)

1. Program Objectives
a) Clarity of the program’s objectives
b) Appropriateness of degree nomenclature given the program’s objectives
c) Consistency of the program’s objectives with the institution’s mission and academic plans

2. Program Requirements

a) Appropriateness of the program’s structure and the requirements to meet its objectives and program-
level learning outcomes

b) Appropriateness of the program’s structure, requirements and program-level learning outcomes in
meeting the institution’s undergraduate or graduate Degree Level Expectations

c) Appropriateness of the proposed mode(s) of delivery to facilitate students’ successful completion of
the program-level learning outcomes

d) Ways in which the curriculum addresses the current state of the discipline or area of study

3. Program Requirements for Graduate Programs Only
a) Clear rationale for program length that ensures that students can complete the program-level learning
outcomes and requirements within the proposed time
b) Evidence that each graduate student in the program is required to take a minimum of two-thirds of the
course requirements from among graduate-level courses
c) For research-focused graduate programs, clear indication of the nature and suitability of the major
research requirements for degree completion

4. Assessment of Teaching and Learning
a) Appropriateness of the methods for assessing student achievement of the program-level learning
outcomes and degree level expectations
b) Appropriateness of the plans to monitor and assess:
i. The overall quality of the program
ii. Whether the program is achieving in practice its proposed objectives
iii. Whether its students are achieving the program-level learning outcomes
iv. How the resulting information will be documented and subsequently used to inform continuous
program improvement

5. Admission Requirements
a) Appropriateness of the program’s admission requirements given the program’s objectives and
program-level learning outcomes
b) Sufficient explanation of alternative requirements, if applicable, for admission into a graduate, second-
entry or undergraduate program, e.g., minimum grade point average, additional languages or
portfolios, and how the program recognizes prior work or learning experience

6. Resources
Given the program’s planned/anticipated class sizes and cohorts as well as its program-level learning
outcomes:
a) Participation of a sufficient number and quality of core faculty who are competent to teach and/or
supervise in and achieve the goals of the program and foster the appropriate academic environment
b) If applicable, discussion/explanation of the role and approximate percentage of adjunct and part-time

Page 46 of 56



faculty/limited term appointments used in the delivery of the program and the associated plans to
ensure the sustainability of the program and quality of the student experience

c) If required, provision of supervision of experiential learning opportunities

d) Adequacy of the administrative unit’s planned utilization of existing human, physical and financial
resources including implications for the impact on other existing programs at the university

e) Evidence that there are adequate resources to sustain the quality of scholarship and research activities
produced by students, including library support, information technology support, and laboratory
access

f) If necessary, additional institutional resource commitments to support the program in step with its
ongoing implementation

7. Resources for Graduate Programs Only
Given the program’s planned/anticipated class sizes and cohorts as well as its program-level learning
outcomes:
a) Evidence that faculty have the recent research or professional/clinic expertise needed to sustain the
program, promote innovation, and foster an appropriate intellectual climate
b) Where appropriate to the program, evidence that financial assistance for students will be sufficient to
ensure adequate quality and number of students
c) Evidence of how supervisory loads will be distributed, in light of qualifications and appointment status
of the faculty

8. Quality and Other Indicators
a) Evidence of the quality of the faculty (e.g., qualifications, funding, honours, awards, research,
innovation and scholarly record; appropriateness of collective faculty expertise to contribute
substantively to the program and commitment to student mentoring)
b) Any other evidence that the program and faculty will ensure the intellectual quality of the student
experience

Page 47 of 56



Appendix C

Undergraduate Degree Level Expectations (UDLEs)
Formulated by the Ontario Council of Academic Vice Presidents (OCAV) and affirmed by Nipissing University
Senate February 15, 2011

Expectations

General Bachelor’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

Honours Bachelor’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who have
demonstrated the following

1. Depth and
Breadth of
Knowledge

a) a general knowledge and
understanding of many key concepts,
methodologies, theoretical approaches
and assumptions in a discipline;

b) a broad understanding of some of
the major fields in a discipline,
including, where appropriate, from an
interdisciplinary perspective, and how
the fields may intersect with fields in
related disciplines;

c) an ability to gather, review, evaluate
and interpret information relevant to
one or more of the major fields in a
discipline;

d) some detailed knowledge in an area
of the discipline;

e) critical thinking and analytical skills
inside and outside the discipline; and

f) the ability to apply learning from one
or more areas outside the discipline.

a) a developed knowledge and critical
understanding of the key concepts,
methodologies, current advances, theoretical
approaches and assumptions in a discipline
overall, as well as in a specialized area of a
discipline;

b) a developed understanding of many of the
major fields in a discipline, including, where
appropriate, from an interdisciplinary
perspective, and how the fields may intersect
with fields in related disciplines;

c) a developed ability to: gather, review,
evaluate and interpret information; and
compare the merits of alternate hypotheses or
creative options, relevant to one or more of the
major fields in a discipline;

d) a developed, detailed knowledge of and
experience in research in an area of the
discipline;

e) developed critical thinking and analytical
skills inside and outside the discipline; and

f) the ability to apply learning from one or more
areas outside the discipline.

2. Knowledge of
Methodologies

... an understanding of methods of

enquiry or creative activity, or both, in

their primary area of study that enables

the student to:

¢ evaluate the appropriateness of
different approaches to solving
problems using well established ideas
and techniques; and

¢ devise and sustain arguments or solve
problems using these methods.

... an understanding of methods of enquiry or

creative activity, or both, in their primary area

of study that enables the student to:

¢ evaluate the appropriateness of different
approaches to solving problems using well
established ideas and techniques;

¢ devise and sustain arguments or solve
problems using these methods; and

o describe and comment upon particular
aspects of current research or equivalent
advanced scholarship.

3. Application of
Knowledge

a) the ability to review, present, and

interpret quantitative and qualitative

information to:

o develop lines of argument; and

o make sound judgments in accordance
with the major theories, concepts and

a) the ability to review, present and critically

evaluate qualitative and quantitative

information to:

¢ develop lines of argument;

¢ make sound judgments in accordance with
the major theories, concepts and methods of

Page 48 of 56



Expectations

General Bachelor’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

Honours Bachelor’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who have
demonstrated the following

methods of the subject(s) of study;

b) the ability to use a basic range of

established techniques to:

e analyze information;

o evaluate the appropriateness of
different approaches to solving
problems related to their area(s) of
study; and

e propose solutions; and

c¢) the ability to make use of scholarly

reviews and primary sources.

the subject(s) of study;

¢ apply underlying concepts, principles, and
techniques of analysis, both within and
outside the discipline; and

¢ where appropriate use this knowledge in the
creative process;

b) the ability to use a range of established

techniques to:

e initiate and undertake critical evaluation of
arguments, assumptions, abstract concepts
and information;

e propose solutions;

o frame appropriate questions for the purpose
of solving a problem;

¢ solve a problem or create a new work; and

c) the ability to make critical use of scholarly

reviews and primary sources.

4. Communica-
tion Skills

... the ability to communicate accurately
and reliably, orally and in writing to a
range of audiences.

... the ability to communicate information,
arguments, and analyses accurately and
reliably, orally and in writing to a range of
audiences.

5. Awareness of
Limits of
Knowledge

... an understanding of the limits to their
own knowledge and how this might
influence their analyses and
interpretations.

... an understanding of the limits to their own
knowledge and ability, and an appreciation of
the uncertainty, ambiguity and limits to
knowledge and how this might influence
analyses and interpretations.

6. Autonomy
and Professional
Capacity

a) qualities and transferable skills

necessary for further study,

employment, community involvement

and other activities requiring:

o the exercise of personal responsibility
and decision-making; and

o working effectively with others;

b) the ability to identify and address

their own learning needs in changing

circumstances and to select an

appropriate program of further study;

and

c) behaviour consistent with academic

integrity and social responsibility.

a) qualities and transferable skills necessary for

further study, employment, community

involvement and other activities requiring:

¢ the exercise of initiative, personal
responsibility and accountability in both
personal and group contexts;

« working effectively with others; decision-
making in complex contexts;

b) the ability to manage their own learning in

changing circumstances, both within and

outside the discipline and to select an

appropriate program of further study; and c)

behaviour consistent with academic integrity

and social responsibility.

Page 49 of 56




Appendix D

Graduate Degree Level Expectations (GDLEs)
Formulated by the Ontario Council of Academic Vice Presidents (OCAV) and affirmed by Nipissing University
Senate February 15, 2011

Expectations

Master’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

Doctoral Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

1. Depth and
Breadth of
Knowledge

A systematic understanding of knowledge,
and a critical awareness of current
problems and/or new insights, much of
which is at, or informed by, the forefront of
their academic discipline, field of study, or
area of professional practice;

A thorough understanding of a substantial
body of knowledge that is at the forefront of
their academic discipline or area of
professional practice.

2. Research and

A conceptual understanding and

a) The ability to conceptualize, design, and

Scholarship methodological competence that implement research for the generation of
e Enables a working comprehension of new knowledge, applications, or
how established techniques of research understanding at the forefront of the
and inquiry are used to create and discipline, and to adjust the research design
interpret knowledge in the discipline; or methodology in the light of unforeseen
e Enables a critical evaluation of current problems;
research and advanced research and b) The ability to make informed judgments
scholarship in the discipline or area of on complex issues in specialist fields,
professional competence; and sometimes requiring new methods; and
e Enables a treatment of complex issues c) The ability to produce original research, or
and judgments based on established other advanced scholarship, of a quality to
principles and techniques; and, satisfy peer review, and to merit publication.
On the basis of that competence, has
shown at least one of the following:
e The development and support of a
sustained argument in written form; or
e Originality in the application of
knowledge.
3. Level of Competence in the research process by The capacity to:
Application of applying an existing body of knowledge in o Undertake pure and/or applied research
Knowledge the critical analysis of a new question or of at an advanced level; and

a specific problem or issue in a new setting.

¢ Contribute to the development of
academic or professional skills,
techniques, tools, practices, ideas,
theories, approaches, and/or materials.

4. Professional
Capacity/
Autonomy

a) The qualities and transferable skills

necessary for employment requiring

¢ The exercise of initiative and of personal
responsibility and accountability;

e Decision-making in complex situations;
and

b) The intellectual independence required

for continuing professional development;

a) The qualities and transferable skills
necessary for employment requiring the
exercise of personal responsibility and
largely autonomous initiative in complex
situations;

b) The intellectual independence to be
academically and professionally engaged and
current;

Page 50 of 56




Expectations

Master’s Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

Doctoral Degree

This degree is awarded to students who
have demonstrated the following

c¢) The ethical behavior consistent with
academic integrity and the use of
appropriate guidelines and procedures for
responsible conduct of research; and

d) The ability to appreciate the broader
implications of applying knowledge to
particular contexts.

c) The ethical behavior consistent with
academic integrity and the use of
appropriate guidelines and procedures for
responsible conduct of research; and

d) The ability to evaluate the broader
implications of applying knowledge to
particular contexts.

5. Level of
Communication
Skills

The ability to communicate ideas, issues
and conclusions clearly.

The ability to communicate complex and/or
ambiguous ideas, issues and conclusions
clearly and effectively.

6. Awareness of
Limits of
Knowledge

Cognizance of the complexity of knowledge
and of the potential contributions of other
interpretations, methods, and disciplines.

An appreciation of the limitations of one’s
own work and discipline, of the complexity
of knowledge, and of the potential
contributions of other interpretations,
methods, and disciplines.

Page 51 of 56




APPENDIX E
Definitions

Academic Curriculum Committee (ACC): ACC is a committee of Senate, which engages in on-going review and
oversight of all matters related to undergraduate studies, (including degree and program requirements), to the
criteria and policies with respect to admission of all students to the University and the transfer of credits from
other educational institutions and to makes recommendations to Senate as necessary and appropriate.

Academic Support Unit: An academic support unit is a unit whose primary mission is to support the teaching,
learning and/or research interests of students and faculty. Academic support units include, but are not limited
to, the Office of the Registrar, Library Services, Student Development and Services, University Technology
Services and the Office of Indigenous Initiatives.

Academic Unit: The Department/School where the program is housed.

Academic Quality Assurance and Planning Committee (AQAPC): AQAPC is a committee of Senate, which is
responsible for long-range academic planning, including quality assurance, in accordance with the overall
academic objectives of the University, and for making recommendations to Senate as necessary and
appropriate.

Academic Services

Those services integral to a student’s ability to achieve the program-level learning outcomes. Such services
would typically include, but are not limited to, academic advising and counselling appropriate to the program;
information technology, library and laboratory resources directed towards the programs; and internship,
cooperative education and practicum placement services, where these experiential components are a required
part of a program.

Arm’s Length External Peer Reviewer: An arm’s length peer reviewer is an external disciplinary expert who has
not been a supervisor, collaborator, departmental colleague (past or present) or co-author of faculty members
in the previous six years, and who does not have personal connections with members of the academic unit.

Degree

An academic credential awarded on successful completion of a prescribed set and sequence of requirements at
a specified standard of performance consistent with OCAV’s Degree Level Expectations and the university’s own
expression of those Expectations and achievement of the degree’s associated learning outcomes.

Degree Level Expectations

Academic standards that identify the knowledge and skill outcome competencies and reflect progressive levels
of intellectual and creative development, as established by OCAV. The Degree Level Expectations (as detailed in
the Appendices) are the Quality Assurance Framework’s link to the Ontario Qualifications Framework (OQF).
Degree Level Expectations may be expressed in subject-specific or in generic terms. Graduates at specified
degree levels (e.g., BA, MSc) are expected to demonstrate these competencies. Each university has undertaken
to adapt and describe the degree level expectations that will apply within its own institutions. Likewise,
academic units will describe their university’s expectations in terms appropriate to their academic programs.

Degree Program
The complete set and sequence of courses, combinations of courses and/or other units of study, research and
practice prescribed by an institution for the fulfillment of the requirements for each particular degree.

Page 52 of 56


http://www.tcu.gov.on.ca/pepg/audiences/colleges/oqf.html

Desk Audit

The process associated with the Audit Team’s auditing of documents that have been submitted for a university’s
audit, as required as a preliminary step of the Cyclical Audit. A desk audit is one part of the process to determine
an institution’s compliance with its own IQAP and/or the Quality Assurance Framework.

Desk Review

A review of a New Program Proposal or Self-Study conducted by external reviewers that is conducted
independently of the university (i.e., does not typically include interviews or in-person or virtual site visits). Such
a review may, with the agreement of both the external reviewers and the Provost, replace the external
reviewers’ in-person or virtual site visit in the New Program Approval process and Cyclical Program Review
process for certain undergraduate and master’s program reviews.

Diploma Program

The complete set and sequence of courses, combinations of courses and/or other units of study prescribed by a
university for the fulfillment of the requirements for each particular for-credit or not-for-credit undergraduate
and graduate diploma. Not-for-credit and for-credit undergraduate or post-graduate diploma programs are not
subject to approval or audit by the Quality Council. The Quality Council recognizes three types of Graduate
Diplomas, with specific appraisal conditions applying to each. In each case, when proposing a new graduate
diploma, a university may request an Expedited Approval process. All such programs, once approved, will be
subject to the normal cycle of program reviews, typically in conjunction with the related degree program.

¢ Type 1 - Awarded when a candidate admitted to a master’s program leaves the program after completing
a prescribed proportion of the requirements.

o Type 2 — Offered in conjunction with a master’s or doctoral degree, admission to which requires that the
candidate be already admitted to the master’s or doctoral program. This represents an additional, usually
interdisciplinary, qualification.

e Type 3 — A stand-alone, direct-entry program, generally developed by a unit already offering a related
master’s or doctoral degree and designed to meet the needs of a particular clientele or market.

Expedited Approval

Generally, approvals are granted in a shorter time span with less required documentation. The Expedited
Protocol requires submission to Quality Council of the proposed program change/new program and the
rationale for it. This process does not require the use of external reviewers.

Field

In graduate programs, an area of specialization or concentration that is related to the demonstrable and
collective strengths of the program’s faculty and to a new or existing program. Universities are not required to
declare fields at either the master’s or doctoral level.

Focused Audit

A close examination of a specific aspect of an institution’s quality assurance processes and practices that have
not met the standards/requirements set out by the Quality Council in the QAF or in the institution’s IQAP. A
Focused Audit does not replace a Cyclical Audit.

Graduate Level Course

A course offered by a graduate program and taught by institutionally approved graduate faculty, where the
learning outcomes are aligned with the Graduate Degree Level Expectations and most students are registered as
graduate students.

Page 53 of 56



Inter-Institutional Program Categories

For the following categories, the Protocol for New Program Approvals or the Protocol for Major Modifications
will be used, as appropriate, and Quality Council’s Cyclical Program Review Processes will apply to all elements
of those programs as offered by all partner institutions involved.

e Conjoint Degree Program — A program of study, offered by a postsecondary institution that is affiliated,
federated or collaborating with a university that is approved by the University’s Senate or equivalent
body, and for which a single degree document signed by both institutions is awarded.

¢ Dual Credential/Degree Program — A program of study offered by two or more universities or by a
university and a college or institute, in which successful completion of the requirements is confirmed by a
separate and different degree/diploma document being awarded by each of the participating institutions.

e Joint Degree Program — A program of study offered by two or more universities or by a university and a
college or institute in which successful completion of the requirements is confirmed by a single degree
document.

Major Modification

A ‘significant change’ in the program requirements, intended learning outcomes and/or human and other
resources associated with a degree program or program of specialization as defined by the university. Major
modifications typically include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following:

e Requirements that differ significantly from those existing at the time of the previous cyclical program
review;

e Significant changes to the program-level learning outcomes that do not, however, meet the threshold of
a new program;

e Significant changes to the program’s delivery, including to the program’s faculty and/or to the essential
physical resources as may occur, for example, where there have been changes to the existing mode(s) of
delivery (e.g., different campus and/or online / hybrid delivery — see below);

e Change in program name and/or degree nomenclature, when this results in a change in learning
outcomes; and/or

e Addition of a single new field to an existing graduate program. Note that universities are not required to
declare fields for either master’s or doctoral programs. Note also that the creation of more than one
field at one point in time or over subsequent years may need to go through the Expedited Protocol.

Microcredentials

A designation of achievement of a coherent set of skills and knowledge, specified by a statement of purpose,
learning outcomes, and strong evidence of need by industry, employers, and/or the community. They have
fewer requirements and are of shorter duration than a qualification and focus on learning outcomes that are
distinct from diploma/degree programs. While requiring recognition in the IQAP, proposals for the introduction
or modification of a microcredential do not require reference to the Quality Council unless they are part of a
New Program.

Mode of Delivery

The means or medium used in delivering a program (e.g., lecture format, distance, online,
synchronous/asynchronous, problem-based, compressed part-time, multi-campus, inter-institutional
collaboration or other non-standard forms of delivery).

New Program
Any degree credential or degree program (within an existing degree credential), currently approved by Senate or
Page 54 of 56



equivalent governing body that has not been previously approved for that institution by the Quality Council, its
predecessors, or any intra-institutional approval processes that previously applied. A change of name, only, does
not constitute a new program; nor does the inclusion of a new program of specialization where another with the
same designation already exists (e.g., a new honours program where a major with the same designation already
exists). For the purposes of the Quality Assurance Framework, a ‘new program’ is brand-new; the program has
substantially different program objectives, program requirements and program-level learning outcomes from
those of any existing approved programs offered by the institution.

Options, Minor, Specialization, and Streams

An identified set and sequence of courses and/or other units of study, as well as research and practice within an
area of disciplinary or interdisciplinary study that are completed on an optional basis in partial fulfillment of the
requirements for the awarding of a degree, and that may be recorded on the graduate’s academic record. While
requiring recognition in the IQAP, proposals for their introduction or modification do not require reference to
the Quality Council unless they are part of a New Program.

Professional Master’s Program

Typically, a professional master’s degree is a terminal degree that does not lead to entry into a doctoral
program. Such programs are designed to help students to prepare for a career in specific fields such as
occupational therapy, physical therapy, finance or business among others. A professional master’s degree often
puts a great deal of focus on real-world application, with many requiring students to complete internships or
projects in their field of study before graduation. In contrast, a research master’s degree provides experience in
research and scholarship and may be either the final degree or a step toward entry into a doctoral program.

Program
For purposes of this policy, ‘Program’ will refer to all undergraduate and graduate degree programs, as well as
for-credit graduate diploma programs.

Program-Level Student Learning Outcomes

Clear and concise statements that describe what successful students should have achieved and the knowledge,
skills and abilities that they should have acquired by the end of the program, however an institution defines
‘program’ in its IQAP. Program-level student learning outcomes emphasize the application and integration of
knowledge — both in the context of the program and more broadly — rather than coverage of material; make
explicit the expectations for student success; are measurable and thus form the criteria for
assessment/evaluation; and are written in greater detail than program objectives. Clear and concise program-
level learning outcomes also help to create shared expectations between students and instructors.

Program Objectives

Clear and concise statements that describe the goals of the program, however an institution defines ‘program’
in its IQAP. Program objectives explain the potential applications of the knowledge and skills acquired in the
program; seek to help students connect learning across various contexts; situate the program in the context of
the discipline as a whole; and are often broader in scope than the program-level learning outcomes that they
help to generate.

Program of Specialization (e.g., a Major, Honours Program, Concentration)
An identified set and sequence of courses, and/or other units of study, research and practice within an area of
disciplinary or interdisciplinary study, completed in full or partial fulfillment of the requirements for the
awarding of a degree and is recorded on the graduate’s academic record.
e A program constitutes complete fulfillment of the requirements for the awarding of a degree when the
program and degree program are one and the same.
e A program constitutes ‘partial’ fulfillment of the requirements for the awarding of a degree when the

Page 55 of 56



program is a subset of the degree program. Typically, a bachelor’s degree requires the completion of a
program of specialization, often referred to as a major, an honours program, a concentration or similar
designation.

Quality Council

The Ontario Universities Council on Quality Assurance (the Quality Council) is an arm’s length body designed to
ensure rigorous quality assurance of university undergraduate and graduate programs. The Quality Council is
responsible for the approval of new undergraduate and graduate programs, as well as auditing each university’s
quality assurance processes on an eight-year cycle. The NU-IQAP will be ratified by the Quality Council.

Undergraduate Certificate

A short form credential that forms a coherent program of study organized around a clear set of learning
outcomes. Undergraduate certificates are comprised of undergraduate level academic content at least 15
credits. While requiring recognition in the IQAP, proposals for the introduction or modification to an
undergraduate certificate do not require reference to the Quality Council unless they are part of a New Program.

Virtual Site Visit

The practice of conducting all required elements of the external reviewers’ site visit using videoconferencing
software and/or other suitable platforms. A virtual site visit will still include elements such as virtual meetings
with students, faculty and other stakeholders. It may also include remote attendance at performances or events,
and virtual facility tours. A virtual site visit may replace an in-person site visit for certain undergraduate and
master’s program, with agreement from both the external reviewers and the Provost.

Page 56 of 56



Nipissing University NIPISSING

Ue NSSTTEVESR GROSSEIR 4T - Y

Provost & Vice-President, Academic

Report to Senate — May 2025

PVPA's Report

1. We are at the end of the Winter 2024-25 term. And | want to commend the work of students,
staff and faculty to conclude another successful term.

Thanks you to those of you who were able to attend March Research Month events. The Office
of Research Innovation and Graduate Studies supported a variety of events, including NU360 —
an opportunity for 6 faculty to each present their research in 6 minutes, 3 minute thesis (3MT)
competition, and the Undergraduate Research Conference which engaged the avid participation
of students and faculty and was kicked off by a keynote address by Dr. Kirsten Greer in which she
reflected on her life and career as an historical geographer. A special thank you to local
community members Donna Backers, Chad Evans and Kathy Wilcox who served as judges for the
3MT competition.

2. The staff in the Registrar’s Office and Institutional Planning are to be thanked for posting the
course master in early March, for spring/summer enrollment. At April 11, 2025, we have 554 FTE
in SS (466 UG, 54 GR, and 34 other). In 2024-25, we concluded SS with 628 FTE, so are
anticipating exceeding last year’s total final enrolment.

The Fall/Winter course master is posted and will launch for registration in late April. We will
continue to push for a February launch of the course master, so that students have the
opportunity to discuss their prospective plans with their families over Reading Week. With staff
restructuring, as well as procedural and technological improvements, it is the expectation that
the course master for 2026-27 will launch in February 2026.

The domestic recruitment team is undertaking a calling campaign to all students with offers.
NSO is scheduled for July 3 and 4.

Domestic Applications Offers Acceptances
Snapshot

2025-26 6640 4273 12671
2024-25 6275 3617 1007
2023-24 5852 3667 1072
2022-23 5824 3195 835

3. We have begun Annual Program Review with the goal of rolling it out to all programs by June
2025. As we have discussed, the Annual Program Review is designed to provide an annual
snapshot into program health in order that we are able to assess investment and the
effectiveness of innovation on the long-term sustainability of programs. (Rubrics attached).

T At November 1, 2024, Nipissing University realized 1619 headcount, total new enrollment.



Nipissing University NIPISSING

Ue NSSTTEVESR GROSSEIR 4T - Y

6. |am happy to report increasing stability in senior management positions. The Board is receiving
two recommendations for academic administrative appointment committees:
a. The Dean EPS.
b. The Associate Dean, Arts and Science.
c. The Associate Dean, School of Nursing is just commencing its process.



Rubric for Undergraduate Program Review

1.1 Alignment to Strategic | Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

Plan, Institutional Mission, Self-

Vision, & Values Assessment
Rating:

Is the mission statement

consistent with the L1 Program L1 Program demonstrates a strong and direct link to the university’s missions, vision and

Institutional Act of
Incorporation, Strategic
Plan, mission, vision,
values?

e |s the mission
statement
appropriate for an
institution like
Nipissing
(primarily
undergraduate,
Northern, largely
residential)?

e Isthe mission
relevant to the
needs of the
community or
communities
serviced by the
institution?

e Is the mission
explicitand legible
to constituents?

demonstrates little
or no link to the
university’s missions,
vision and strategic
goals and makes no
case for its
essentiality to the
university.

strategic goals and makes a convincing case for its essentiality to the university.




1.2 Enrolment Goals and Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Retention Self-
Assessment
Rating:
What are the enroliment O Goals are vague, | [ Goals are O Goals are clear, L1 Goals are exceptionally clear, specific,
goals for the program? (1 | jacking in specificity, | somewhat clear but | specific, measurable, | measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-
year and 5 years) and not measurable. | may lack specificity | achievable, relevant, | bound (SMART).
or measurable and time-bound
outcomes. (SMART). L Targets are well-defined and aligned with

Ul Targets are poorly
defined or absent.

L1 Outreach and
marketing strategies
are poorly defined,
lacking in focus, or
absent.

L] Sometargetsare
present, but
alignment with
program objectives
is inconsistent.

L1 Outreach and
marketing
strategies are
present but may
lack depth or
consistency. Some
tactics and channels
are identified, but
their effectiveness is
questionable.

L] Targets are
defined and aligned
with program
objectives.

L1 Outreach and
marketing strategies
are well-defined and
appropriate for the
target audience. The
planincludes a range
of effective tactics
and channels.

program objectives.

L] Outreach and marketing strategies are
innovative, comprehensive, and highly
targeted. The planincludes a diverse range of
effective tactics and channels.

Has the first-time full time
fall to fall retention rate
increased (y-o0-y)?

L] 5-year avg. of Y1
to Y2 retention rate
is > 2% lower than

L] 5-yearavg. of Y1
to Y2 retention rate
is within 2% of the

L] 5-yearavg. of Y1
to Y2 retention rate
is between 3% and
5% higher than the

L] 5-year avg. of Y1 to Y2 retention rate is >
5% higher than the institutional average.




See Program Review
Dashboard table 1.2

the institutional
average.

or

L] Most recent Y1 to
Y2 retention rate is >
9% lower than

institutional average.

institutional
average.

institutional
average.

1.3 Curriculum

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Is the curriculum map up

L1 Not clear,

L1 Clear, coherent

[ Students have

L] Elective courses outside program are

to date, clear, specificand | coherent curriculum | curriculum map. consistent access to | encouraged, provided there is a clear link to
distinct? map. electives and program-level learning outcomes.

streams (courses

cycled adequately,

etc.).
Does the curriculum map U Curriculum U Curriculum U Curriculum L1 Program-level learning outcomes include
demonstrate a demonstrates no designed with an includes consideration of decolonization and anti-

commitment to equity,
diversity, inclusion, and
accessibility?

commitment to
equity, diversity,
inclusion, and

eye to inclusion of
students with
diverse abilities and

consideration of
decolonization and
anti-racism among

racism.

accessibility. from diverse course learning
backgrounds. outcomes.
Does the curriculum map L1 Program L1 Program L1 Program accounts | [] Program assesses obstacles, bottlenecks
demonstrate a progression is progression is clear, | for non-traditional that interfere with student progression at
commitment to flexibility, | inconsistent, coherent, and well- | student access in regularintervals and adjusts program design.

especially in support of
access?

incoherent, or poorly
planned.

planned.

progression plan
(college transfers,




part-time students,
etc.).

Does the curriculum map
demonstrate a
commitment to
reasonable breadth
balanced against core
requirements?

L] Connection
between program
requirements and
program learning
outcomes is unclear.

L1 All program
requirements are
explicitly tied to
program learning
outcomes.

L] Program
requirements are
necessary for
program learning
outcomes.

L1 Program requirements are thoughtfully
coordinated with course-level learning
outcomes.

Does the curriculum map
demonstrate a
commitmentto a
developmental approach
to learning?

U Program
progression is
inconsistent,
incoherent, or poorly
planned.

U] Progression is
provided through
the curriculum map,
the course
requirements, and
the sequencing and

U] Program accounts
for non-traditional
student access in
progression plan
(college transfers,
part-time students,

L] Program assesses obstacles, bottlenecks
that interfere with student progression at
regularintervals and adjusts program design.

mapping of etc.).

progression of PLOs

and ULOs to

courses.
Does the curriculum map O pedagogical O Program U1 Program explicitly | 1 WIL (Work Integrated Learning) and
demonstrate a approaches are explicitly matches includes a diversity experiential learning are explicitly integrated
commitment to disconnected from pedagogical of pedagogical into program.
experiential, program learning approaches to approaches,
collaboration, community- | outcomes. program learning | including
based pedagogy? outcomes. experiential learning

opportunities.

1.4 Economic Viability of | Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

the Program

Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Enrollment Based
Measurement: Is the
program meeting a

U] Program has
fewer than 100
students spread

U] Program has
between 100 and
150 students spread

] Program has
between 150 and
300 students spread

L] Program has 300 or more students spread
across all years of study (3yr avg).




minimum enrollment

across all years of

across all years of

across all years of

requirement? study (3yravg). study (3yravg). study (3yravg).
e for4-yrUG

programs,

minimum 100

students and 4 FT

faculty.

e for GR programs,

minimum targets

are being met.
See Program Review
Dashboard table 1.4
Production ratio: total U1 Offering program | [ Offering L1 Offering program | [ Permanent faculty have expertise in the
credit hours as a relies on contingent | program has has a multi-yearplan | key subdisciplines of the program, supporting
percentage of credit hours | faculty to support sufficient for cohort delivery in all areas/courses.
generated by the faculty. | program delivery. permanent faculty | progression that

to supportprogram | accounts for
See Program Review delivery. anticipated changes
Dashboard table 1.4 in faculty
complement
(sabbatical,

L1 Program has a
sufficient number of
students to support
delivery of required
and elective courses
to meet student
needs and program

retirement...)

U Individualized
study courses are
required only where
necessary to achieve
program-learning
outcomes.




learning outcomes.

Replenishment Ratio: Is
the program meeting the
graduating to incoming
ratio.

NOTE: not all programs
will meet this threshold.

See Program Review
Dashboard table 1.4

L] Program
consistently
graduates fewer
than 25 students a
year.

L1 The incoming
student to graduate
student ratio is <1.0

(3yravg).

L] Program
consistently
graduates between
25 to 40 students a
year

L1 The incoming
student to graduate
student ratio is
>=1.0 (3yravg).

L] Program
consistently
graduates between
40and 75 studentsa
year.

L1 The incoming
student to graduate
studentratiois >=1.5

(3yravg).

L] Program consistently graduates 75 or
more students a year.

L1 The incoming student to student ratio is
>=2.0 (3yravg).

1.5 Competitiveness of the
Academic Program

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Identify/Confirm three to
five directly related CIP
Codes that can be used for
forecasting and trends
analysis.

Some suggestions are pre-
populated in Program
Review Dashboard table
1.5

Consult: Statscan CIP 2021
Guide (hyperlinked)

L1 Programs have
not completed an
environmental scan
of similar programs
offered in at
universities in
Ontario.

L1 Programs have
completed an
environmental scan
and maintain an
ongoing index of
similar programs
offered at
universities across
Ontario.

L1 Programs have
completed an
environmental scan
and maintain an
ongoing index of
similar programs
offered at
universities and
colleges in Canada.

L1 Programs have completed an
environmentalscan and maintain an ongoing
index of similar programs offered at
universities Internationally.




Additional questions can
be fielded to
ir@nipissingu.ca

Are students joining this
program instead of similar

L1 Institutional
enrolment (FTE) in

L] Institutional
enrolment (FTE) in

L1 Institutional
enrolment (FTE) in

L1 Institutional enrolment (FTE) in the
program represents at least 5% of sector

programs (here or the program the program the program enrolment.
elsewhere)? represents less than | represents at least | represents at least
1% of sector 1% of sector 2% of sector
See Program Review enrolment. enrolment. enrolment.
Dashboard table 1.5
Is the academic program L] Distinctive L1 Program is L] Distinctive U1 Distinctive elements of program result in
different and better than elementsof program | distinct from elements of program | above average sector market share.
similar programs (here or | nonexistent or not comparators and give it access to
elsewhere)? If yes, how reflected in distinction is desirable sector of
do we articulate that statement of reflected in student market.
difference? program purpose. statement of

program purpose.

What appetite is there for

[ Sector-wide

[ Sector-wide

O Sector-wide demand is sufficient and growing

the program? demand for program | demand for
is low or in decline. program is stable
See Program Review and sufficient for
Dashboard table 1.5 sustainable
program.

2.1 Students’ Recruitment | Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

and Enrolment Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Does the program have a L Faculty members | [ Faculty L1 Al faculty L] Distinctive program recruitment plan is

proactive recruitment are not involved in members, in members have and | constantly updated by faculty members using

agenda, supported by the
Office of recruitment?

recruitment of

students to program.

consultation with
the Recruitment
Offices, have

fulfill roles in
recruitment strategy

data and feedback from Recruitment Office.




developed a

distinctive to

recruitment program.
strategy distinctive
to program.
Is the program meeting
admission goals outlined O Falls significantly L1 Achieves SEM L] Surpasses SEM L1 Significantly surpasses SEM admission
in the SEM plan? short of SEM admission targets admission targets targets (by a margin of 20% or more).
admission targets (+/-10%). (by a margin of 10% o )
(by more than 10%). or more). [ Significant (i.e., >10 students and >20%)

See Program Review
Dashboard table 2.1

[1 Overall decreases
in the number of
new first time
undergraduate
student applications,
acceptances and
registrations
("shows") (y-0-y)

L] Overall decreases
in the number of
undergraduate
transfer student
admissions applied,
accepted and
registered ("show")

(y-0-y)

[ Mixed trends
across phases
(increasein some,
decrease in others)
in the number of
new first time
undergraduate
student
applications,
acceptances and
registrations
("shows") (y-0-y)

[ Mixed trends
across phases
(increase in some,
decrease in others)
in the number of
undergraduate
transfer student
applications,
acceptances and

1 Moderate(i.e., >5
students and >10%)
increases across all
phases in the
number of new first
time undergraduate
student applications,
acceptances and
registrations
("shows") (y-0-y)

L] Moderate (i.e., >5
students and >10%)
increases across all
phases in the
number of
undergraduate
transfer student
applications,
acceptances and

increases across all phases in the number of
new first time undergraduate student
applications, acceptances and registrations
("shows") (y-0-y))

L1 Significant (i.e., >10 students and >20%)
increases across all phases in the number of
undergraduate transfer student applications,
acceptances and registrations ("shows") (y-o-

y)




registrations
("shows") (y-0-y)

registrations
("shows") (y-0-y)

Are the graduates
interested in being
ambassadors for the
program?

1 Ambassador
program for
graduates does not
exist.

U] Graduates of the program have the opportunity to participate in an organized
ambassador program.

Are contacts established

[ School contacts

[ Contacts established and in regular use.

with schools in the region | nonexistent or

offering assistance and underutilized.

support in areas of

specialization?

2.2 Recent Graduates Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

How successful are O Graduate O Graduate O Graduate U Graduate placement in employment or

graduating students at placement in placement in placement in further schooling exceeds average across the

advancing to a next degree | employment or employment or employment or sector.

or employment? (Where | further schooling further schooling further schooling

they want to go next.) under average or consistent with exceeds average

e Number of untracked. average rates at rates at Nipissing.

graduates
employed related
to their field / or
not

e What percentage
of graduates are
employed within 6
months of
graduation?

e What percentage
of graduates are

Nipissing.




employed within 2

years of

graduation?

See Program Review
Dashboard table 2.2

2.3 Student Satisfaction Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
and Feedback Self-
Assessment
Rating:
Student Feedback L1 Offering program | [ Offering L1 Offering program | [ Offering program openly shares student

How well does the
program solicit
and respond to
students'
feedback?

How well does the
program
communicate
results of feedback
from students?
How does the
program improve
inits use of
student feedback?

does notconsult with
current and former
students to obtain
feedback on the
program.

program consults
with current and
former students,
including students
who discontinued
studies, to obtain
feedback on how
well their education
prepared them for
work they are doing
including the use of
Community
Advisory Circles.

has a clear
evaluation plan to
use student
outcomes to assess
program success and
inform curriculum
refinement.

outcomes and feedback data on how it is
continuing to refine curriculum.

What are students'
perceptions about key
components of the
program?

[add qualitative response]




e Whatare the
students'
perceptions of the
program's quality?

e Whatare
students’
perceptions of the
program's learning
environment?

e Whatare the
students'
perception of the
value of the
program?

e Whatare the
students’
perceptions of the
program preparing
them for atime
post-graduation?

e Whatare the
students’
perceptions about
how the program
met their
expectations?

See Program Review
Dashboard table 2.2




Does the program have a
well-defined procedure for
identifying the program
need to recruit faculty and
staff?

L1 No well-defined
procedure exists.

L1 Well-defined procedure exists.

Does the
program/university have
an established exit
interview instrument and
procedure to better
understand the exact
causes and influences that
induce faculty/staff to
separate from the
program/university?

L] No exit interview
instrument and
procedure exist.

L] Exit interview instrument and procedure exist.

Is the program satisfied
with the retentional rate
of faculty/staff?

L1 Retention rate
unsatisfactory.

L1 Retention rate satisfactory.

Does the program have

] Administrative

L1 Administrative support adequate.

skilled technical support?

sufficient qualified and support unqualified

skilled administrative or otherwise

support? inadequate.

Does the program have U] Tech support [ Tech support adequate.
sufficient qualified and unqualified or




otherwise
inadequate.

2.6 IT and Facilities
Infrastructure

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Classroom infrastructure is
sufficient to support
student learning and
program effectiveness.

L1 Classroom
infrastructure is
inadequate (Please
elaborate).

O Classroom infrastructure is adequate.

O Classroom infrastructure easily
accommodates new approaches to learning
and new technology.

Laboratory infrastructure
is sufficient to support
student learning and
program effectiveness.

Ll Lab infrastructure
is inadequate (Please
elaborate).

LI Lab infrastructure is adequate.

LI Lab infrastructure easily accommodates
new approaches to learning and technology.
L1 Lab infrastructure allows for sufficient
time to work independently or unsupervised
during off hours.

The IT infrastructure is
sufficiently robust,

Ul IT infrastructure
inadequate (Please

Ul IT infrastructure adequate.

Ul IT infrastructure easily accommodates new
approaches to learning and new technology.

scalable, and efficient to elaborate).

support the academic

program.

2.7 Library Support Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

Satisfaction and Feedback

Self-
Assessment
Rating:

The library resources and
information literacy
supports are sufficient.

Ul Library resources
inadequate.

Ul Library resources adequate.

The library resources and
budget allocation
contribute to program
effectiveness.

Ul Library resource
investment poorly
planned.

U1 Multi-year plan for library resources and budget allocation reflects program needs.




2.8 Marketing and
Communication

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Is the program
represented effectively on
the website/social
media/print collateral and
why?

L] Poor marketing
and communication.

L1 Program consults with marketing to develop and implement clear strategy.

2.9 Budget Allocation

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Is the budget allocated
based on program needs?

L] Budget allocation
indicates poor
evaluation of
program needs.

L1 Budget allocation reflects program needs.

3.1 Research Culture

Unsatisfactory (0)

Satisfactory (1)

Good (2)

Excellent (3)

Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:

Has the right environment
for faculty to balance
teaching and research
been established?

The University has
established and clear
policies to provide active
researchers with
appropriate teaching
load/release time to
establish their research

O Faculty members
in program are not
able to balance
teaching and
research, with the
majority
demonstrating very
low level of research
productivity.

O Majority of
faculty members in
the program are
demonstrating a
low level of
research
productivity while
on a teaching-
intensive or reqular
teaching load.

O Some faculty
members in the
program are
demonstrating high
research productivity
while on a research-
intensive or reqular
teaching load.

L] Some faculty (10-
30%) areon a

O Majority of faculty members in the
program are demonstrating high research
productivity while on a research-intensive or
regular teaching load.

L1 More than a 30% of faculty are on a
research-intensive load.




agenda and conduct
research in their area of
expertise.

O No faculty
members are on a
research-intensive
load.

O Few faculty (less
than 10%) are on a
research-intensive
load.

research-intensive
teaching load.

Faculty are integrating
research in their courses
and classrooms.

U Faculty members
do not integrate
students into
research, nordo they
integrate their
research into courses

L1 Students have
opportunities to
support faculty in
research and/or
faculty sometimes
integrate their

L] Student
participation in
faculty research is
sometimes
integrated into the
program and/or

L] Student participation in faculty research is
often integrated into the program and/or
faculty regularly integrate their research into
courses and classrooms.

and classrooms. research into faculty regularly
courses and integrate their
classrooms. research into courses
and classrooms.
3.2 Alumni Relations Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:
Does the university have a | [ Program does not | [ Program rarely | [ Program LI Program regularly (more than twice a
well-established alumni access alumni service | (once every 12+ sometimes year) accesses alumni service office.

service office which the
program accesses?

Alumni are serving as
mentors, volunteers,
ambassadors and
advocates for the
program/university.

Alumni are participating in
university's governance,

office.

] Alumni do not
serve as mentors,
volunteers,
ambassadors, and
advocates for the
program/university.

months) accesses
alumni service

office.

O Alumni rarely (1
or 2 times a year)
serve as mentors,
volunteers,
ambassadors, and

(approximately 1 -2
times a year)
accesses alumni
service office.

O Alumni
sometimes
(approximately 3 —4
times a year) serve
as mentors,
volunteers,

L1 Alumniregularly (semi-monthly or monthly
—6to 12 times a year) serve as mentors,
volunteers, ambassadors, and advocates for
the program/university.

O Alumni regularly (more than twice a year)
attend recruitment / graduation events,
attend lectures/events as speakers, serve as a




assist with recruitment,
serve as guest speakers,
and serve as a resource to
faculty and current
students.

L] Alumni do not
attend recruitment /
graduation events,
attend
lectures/events as
speakers, serve as a
resource to students
and faculty in the

advocates for the
program/university.

O Alumni rarely
(once every 12+
months) attend
recruitment /
graduation events,
attend

ambassadors, and
advocates for the
program/university.

O Alumni
sometimes
(approximately 1 —2
times a year) attend
recruitment /

resource to students and faculty in the
program.

program. lectures/events as | graduation events,
speakers, serve as a | attend
resource to lectures/events as
students and speakers, serve as a
faculty in the resource to students
program. and faculty in the
program.
3.3 Government and Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Industry Self-
Assessment
Rating:
Local employers and L1 Employers and L1 At least one L1 At least 2 L1 Three or more Employers and members of

members of professions or
NGOs are invited to join
appropriate advisory
committees (Please
elaborate if not

members of
professions or NGOs
related to the
program’s discipline
are not invited or

Employer or
member of
profession or NGO
related to the
program’s discipline

Employers and
members of
professions or NGOs
related to the
program’s discipline

professions or NGOs related to the program’s
discipline are invited or are represented on an
advisory committee.

applicable). represented on an is invited or is are invited or are
advisory committee. | represented on an | represented on an
advisory advisory committee.
committee.
3.4 Community Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

Self-




Assessment
Rating:

The commitments of the
program are defined in a
way that reflects the
community or
communities within which
the university operates.

The contributions to the
community made by
faculty in the program are
recorded and reported
upon an annual basis.

Initiatives in working with
the community are
coordinated with
responsible programs in
the university to avoid
duplication and possible
confusion.

L1 The commitments
of the program do
not reflect an
awareness of EDIA

L] The contributions
of faculty members
to the community
are not recorded or
reported upon.

L] The program does
not coordinate their
community activity
with any other
programs at the
university.

L] Some of the
commitments of the
program reflect an
awareness of EDIA

L1 The
contributions to the
community of less
than half of faculty
members in the
program are
recorded and
reported upon
annually (ex.
Through the annual
reports submitted
to the Dean).

L] The program
rarely coordinates
their work in the
community with
other programs at
the university who
are involved in
similar community
work (ex.

L] Most of the
commitments of the
program reflect
respect and
commitment to EDIA
and some program
components
demonstrate this.

L1 The contributions
to the community of
at least half of
faculty members in
the program are
recorded and
reported upon
annually (ex.
Through the annual
reports submitted to
the Dean).

L] The program
sometimes
coordinates their
work in the
community with
other programs at
the university who
are involved in
similar community
work (ex.

L] The commitments of the program clearly
reflect respect and commitment to EDIA and
program components demonstrate this.

L1 The contributions to the community of all

faculty members in the program are recorded
and reported upon annually (ex. Through the
annual reports submitted to the Dean).

L] The program coordinates their work in the
community with all other programs at the
university who are involved in similar
community work (ex. Placements, research
projects, field trips).




Placements, Placements, research
research projects, projects, field trips).
field trips).
In professional programs, | [ The program has | L The program has | [ The program has | [ The program has multiple, well-
relationships are no relationships at least one several, well- established relationships with local industries
established with local established with established established and employers, with few related industries or
industries and employers. | Jocal industries and | relationship with a | relationships with employers for which a relationship has yet to
employers. localindustry or localindustries and | be developed.
employer, but there | employers, but there
are related are related
industries / industries/employers
employers for which | for which
relationships have | relationships have
yet to be developed. | yet to be developed.
4.1 Academic Planning Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:
The academic planning ] Academic O A basic planning | 1 A clear, U Planning is conducted through a
process of the programis | planning process is process is in place, documented purposeful, inclusive, and transparent
meaningfully completed, | eitherincomplete, ad | though planning process is process, with broad constituent engagement.
is informed by the hoc, or inconsistently | implementation used and followed
university’s strategic plan, | documented. may be consistently. L1 The planning process is deeply integrated
and academic and inconsistent. with the university’s strategic and academic
operational plan, andisin and operational goals, reinforcing and
alignment with quality advancing institutional priorities.
assurance and senate’s L] Little to no L1 Some alignment | [ Strong alignment
requirements evidence of with the university’s | with the university’s

alignment with the
university’s strategic
or academic and
operational plan.

strategic or
academic and
operational plan is
apparent, but not
fully articulated.

strategic and
academic and
operational plans is
evident, with goals
and objectives

[ Surpasses AQAPC and senate requirements
by incorporating continuous quality
improvement measures.




O Requirements and
guidelines set by
AQAPC and senate
are largely unmet or
ignored.

O Minimum
requirements under
AQAPC and senate
guidelines are met,
but with limited
depth or rigor.

L] Few formal
mechanisms for

mapped to these
plans.

L1 AQAPC and
senate requirements
are met.

L1 Regularly
scheduled review

O Shows clear evidence of data-informed
decision-making, consistent reviews, and
demonstrable impact on both program
quality and institutional objectives.

O No clear monitoring and cycles use data to
milestones or review. inform
deadlines improvements.
established, beyond
the cyclical IQAP
review.
4.2 Academic Leadership | Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for

Self-
Assessment
Rating:

The program has regular
and ongoing conversations
about the delivery of its
program(s).

Ul Discussions about
program delivery are
infrequent or occur
only when urgent
problems arise.

L1 There is no clear
structure or schedule

L1 Conversations
about program
delivery take place
on a semi-regular
basis, such as at
periodic faculty
meetings.

] Some structure
exists (e.g., a

L1 There is a clear,
ongoing process for
discussing program
delivery (e.qg.,
regularly scheduled
programor program
meetings).

[ Discussions are
supported by basic

L] A well-structured and continuous cycle of
dialogue on program delivery is embedded in
the program’s culture.

L] Diverse constituents (faculty, staff,
students, external advisors/networks,
institutional advisors, etc.) are engaged, and
discussions are consistently evidence-based




for reviewing
program delivery.

O Little to no
documentation or
follow-up actions
result from any
conversations that
do occur.

L] Constituent
involvement (e.q.,
faculty, staff,
students,
community) is
minimal or absent.

standing agenda
item), but it may
not be consistently
applied.

U1 Discussions
mainly focus on
immediate needs
rather than long-
term improvement.

O Constituent
feedback is
acknowledged but
not systematically
gathered or used.

evidence (e.g.,
student feedback,
course evaluations,
institutional
planning) and
contribute to
informed decision-
making.

L] Conversations
involve relevant
constituents, and
follow-up actions are
usually tracked.

(e.g., data on student outcomes, quality
assurance metrics).

L] Tracking mechanisms ensure that action
items and improvements are implemented
and reviewed for impact.

L] The process demonstrates clear alignment
with strategic priorities and fosters ongoing
innovation.

The program engages in
strategic conversations
with the Dean.

O The program
rarely or only
sporadically meets
with the Dean, often
on an ad hoc basis.

U] Discussions, if
they occur, lack
strategic focus and

O The program
meets with the
Dean on a
predictable but
infrequent schedule
(e.g., once per
year).

L] Conversations
touch on some

O Regularly
scheduled meetings
occur, with clear
agendas thatinclude
strategic and
programmatic
discussions.

U1 Discussions
reference
institutional

O Strategic conversations with the Dean are
routine, well-documented, and deeply
integrated into the program’s planning cycle.

L1 Meetings are data-informed and
proactively address future directions, aligning
program goals with faculty and institutional
priorities.

O Follow-up actions and continuous
improvement measures are systematically




are primarily driven

strategic aspects

priorities and inform

tracked, reviewed, and communicated to

by immediate but are typically planning or constituents.
operational high-level or improvements.
concerns. reactive.
L1 Action items are
L1 Little to no L] Limited follow- tracked, and the
alignment with up or tracking of program makes
institutional action items visible efforts to
priorities or connected to align with broader
documented action | broader institutional
items. institutional goals. | priorities.
The program has a clear L] The concept of L] A basic L1 A clear U] Academicleadership is broadly and deeply
sense of what academic academic leadership | understanding of understanding of understood within the program, supported by
leadership is and the within the program | academic academic leadership | a shared vision and well-defined roles.
succession plan to achieve | js not clearly defined | leadership is roles is established,
its goals. or understood. acknowledged with responsibilities
within the program, | outlined and
though it may be communicated. L] The succession plan is transparent, and
informal or loosely data-informed, ensuring continuity in
defined. leadership and alignment with the program’s
O Little to no O A formal strategic objectives.

investment in
developing future
leaders.

O Some informal
efforts toward
identifying future
leaders, but no
structured
succession
planning.

succession plan
details processes for
developing and
selecting future
leaders.

L1 Mentorship or
training
opportunities exist

L] Professional development and mentorship
programs foster leadership capacity in the
program.




foremerging

leaders.
4.3 Academic Governance | Unsatisfactory (0) Satisfactory (1) Good (2) Excellent (3) Explanation for
Self-
Assessment
Rating:
Faculty are involved in L1 Faculty input on L Faculty Ll There is a clear, L Faculty play a central and proactive role in

decision making related to
academic issues.

The academic program
provides senate with
regular program updates
and modifications.

academic matters is
minimal or sought on
an ad hoc basis or
only when problems
arise.

O Faculty do not
regularly participate
in orinfluence
curriculum changes,
program reviews, or
other important
academic decisions.

O Program updates
to Faculty
executive/council
and senate are
sporadic or missing
entirely.

involvement in
academic decision-
making occurs
periodically but is
largely at the final
stage.

U] Structures for
consultation with
all faculty are not
consistently
applied.

] Some program
updates and
modifications are
submitted to
senate, but the
timing or detail may
be inconsistent.

regular process for
involving faculty in
academic decision-
making (e.qg.,
standing committees
or working groups).

O Program updates
and modifications
are routinely
provided to Faculty
executive/council
and senate, adhering
to procedural
timelines and
requirements.

O Faculty
perspectives are
documented, and
input influences
program changes.

academic decision-making, supported by
consultative processes.

O The program provides Faculty
executive/council and senate with frequent,
detailed updates and well-communicated
program modifications.

O Discussions are evidence-based and reflect
continuous engagement and improvement.




O Faculty feedback
is acknowledged
but not always
clearly integrated.

COLUMN TOTALS

TOTAL SCORE




GRADUATE PROGRAM REVIEW: ANNUAL SELF-ASSESSMENT

Preamble:

The purpose of this annual program review exercise is to reflect on the current status and delivery of your
graduate program, with a goal of identifying what is working well and what areas require immediate versus
longer range attention. While cyclical program review (IQAP) processes provide a comprehensive review of the
program over a multi-year period, it does not provide an opportunity for programs to identify and respond to
challenges that can be addressed to improve student experience and program health in a shorter time frame.
The annual program review is meant to help you identify what you can take action on immediately so that the
program continues to evolve year to year. This is particularly important within graduate programs as master’s
programs are designed to have complete student turnover within 1-2 years. The relatively short graduate
program duration creates an opportunity to update, re-imagine, and address challenges quickly so that
elements that do not support student progression impact a minimal number of students and exciting program
changes can be implemented on a short time frame to improve the student experience and respond to timely
and topical challenges within our cognate disciplines and the world at large.

Instructions:

The graduate program review asks you to reflect on 5 elements of your program (adapted from Berdahl et al’s
2024 EDITS framework), each represented by several aspects. To what extent is your program Efficient?
Deliberate? Inclusive? Talent Developing? Student Focused? Each element contains 4-7 aspects. To complete
the program review, there are 3 parts:

1. Check the box(es) in the rubric (unsatisfactory-excellent) that best represents the current state of your
program for that specific dimension.

2. Fill in the narrative to explain your self-assessment of the program’s current state. This should be
evidence-based where possible. Reflect on potential data sources such as: graduate studies data in the
program review dashboard, graduate studies enrollment dashboard (time to completion), program
curriculum map, and the graduate program fact sheet.

3. Complete the Prioritization section to identify your program’s areas of priority and to set specific
goals to address those priority areas. |dentify the areas of greatest need for attention (i.e., which
element has the lowest ratings? Which dimensions of each element are rated lowest?). While filling in
the prioritization tab, consider the following:

e For each item that is rated unsatisfactory, consider what strategies can be applied to improve its
rating. Are they items where action can be initiated within the program?

e For items rated satisfactory, are there ways in which these can be improved to ‘good’?

e How might the information in the program fact sheet help to inform strategies for improving
your ratings?



Graduate Program Name:

Annual Program Review Completed By:

Date Submitted:

Comments:

Please provide comments that will help us to improve the forms and process of completing annual program
review, as we anticipate both will evolve as we gain experience with this exercise.



Section 1: Efficient

Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

Course Focus

O All elective
grad courses are
cross-listed with
senior
undergraduate
(UG) courses

[02/3 of grad
courses are
program-
specific (not
cross-listed with
UG)

[ Program is
comprised
primarily of core
required courses,
and electives are
limited

[ Elective
courses outside
program are
encouraged,
provided there is
a clear link to
program-level
learning
outcomes

Program
Connections

[ Students in
other programs
are prohibited
from enrolling in
program courses

[ Courses are
available to
students in
other programs,
and/or
arrangements
with other
institutions for
reciprocal
course
enrolment

[0 Where possible and appropriate,
program requires students to
participate in faculty- or university-
level offerings (e.g. professional
development) rather than program-

specific offerings

Is the program
meeting a
minimum
enrollment
requirement?

See Program
Review
Dashboard Table
1.4 and Table 2.1

[ Program has
consistently not
met the
enrollment target
(3yravg)

[ Program has
consistently met
the enrollment
target (3yr avg)

[ Program has consistently exceeded
the enroliment targets (3yr avg)




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

Capacity

See Program
Review
Dashboard Table
1.4

[CIProgram relies
on contractual
faculty to support
program delivery,
including
supervision and
advising

[ Program has
sufficient
permanent
faculty to
support
program
delivery,
including
supervision and
advising

[ Program has a multi-year
admissions plan that accounts for
anticipated changes in faculty
complement (sabbatical, retirement)
[ Graduate Faculty supervision and
advising limited to area of expertise

Replenishment
Ratio: Is the
program meeting
the graduating to
incoming ratio.
See Program
Review
Dashboard Table
1.4 and Table 2.1

[ The incoming
student to
graduate student
ratio is < 1.0 (3yr
avg).

[ The incoming
student to
graduate
student ratio is
>=1.0 (3yr avg).

[ The incoming
student to
graduate student
ratio is >=1.5 (3yr
avg).

[ The incoming
student to
graduate student
ratio is >=2.0 (3yr
avg).

Does the [0 No or little [ Administrative support adequate.
program have administrative

access to support or

sufficient otherwise

qualified and inadequate.

skilled

administrative

support?

Does the O No or little tech | (I Tech support adequate.

program have support or

access to otherwise

sufficient skilled | inadequate.

technical

support?

Is the budget O Budget [ Budget allocation reflects program needs.
allocated based allocation

on program indicates poor

needs?




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

evaluation of
program needs.




Section 2: Deliberate

Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

Program mission
statement is
consistent with
the Strategic and
Academic Plans —
mission, vision,
values

[J Program
demonstrates little
or no link to the
Strategic and
Academic Plans

[J Program demonstrates strong and direct links to the
Strategic and Academic Plans and makes a convincing
case for its essentiality to the university.

unrealistic

guidelines

complete the

Purpose O Program's OPurpose of O Program [J Program's
purpose or program and learning purpose is linked
learning outcomes | learning outcomes are to broader
are unspecified outcomes are directly tied to societal goals

clearly stated program's (e.g. UN 17 SDG,
purpose TRC)

Program [ Connection O All program [ Program [J Program

Requirements between program | requirements requirements are | electives are
requirements and | are explicitly truly necessary limited and
program learning tied to program | for program explicitly tied to
outcomes is learning learning program learning
unclear outcomes outcomes outcomes

Curriculum map | 0 No curriculum O Clear, [ Students have | O Elective

(up to date, clear, map or unclear coherent consistent access | courses outside

and specific) curriculum map | to electives and program are

connecting streams (courses | encouraged,
courses to cycled provided there is
program adequately, etc.). | aclearlink to
learning program-level
outcomes learning
outcomes.

Timeliness [d Degree [ Program has | [ Program has 1 Program
completion explicit and explicit pathways | website provides
guidelines are realistic degree | for students to clear information
unstated or completion realistically about degree

completion




Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
degree in a timelines over the
specified past five years
timeframe

Pedagogy O Pedagogical O Program [ Program uses 1 Program
approaches are explicitly research training | integrates
disconnected from | matches purposively, with | experiential
program learning pedagogical research products | and/or work
outcomes approaches to matched to integrated

program program level learning to

learning learning support program

outcomes outcomes level learning
outcomes

Research [ Faculty [ The majority | O Some faculty 1 Majority of
members in of faculty members in the faculty members

program are not
able to balance
teaching, research,
and service with
the majority
demonstrating
very low level of
research
productivity.

[ Faculty
members are not
seeking external
funding to support
graduate student
research

members in the
program are
demonstrating a
low level of
research
productivity.

[J Some faculty
members are
seeking external
funding to
support
graduate
student
research.

program are
demonstrating
high research
productivity while
on a research-
intensive or
regular teaching
load.

[J Some faculty
(10-30%) are on a
research-
intensive teaching
load.

in the program
are
demonstrating
high research
productivity while
on a research-
intensive or
regular teaching
load.

[J More than a
30% of faculty are
on a research-
intensive load.




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

Is there a
marketing and
recruitment plan
promoting the
characteristics
above — website,
social media?

1 Marketing and
recruitment plan
does not
communicate the
characteristics
above.

[ Program consults with marketing to develop and
implement a communication plan that highlights the
program characteristics above.

Is there a
demand for the
program?

Identify/Confirm
three to five
directly related
CIP Codes that
can be used for
forecasting and
trends analysis.

Some
suggestions are
pre-populated in
Program Review
Dashboard table
1.5

Consult: Statscan
CIP 2021 Guide
Additional
questions can be
fielded to
ir@nipissingu.ca

[J Programs have
not completed an
environmental
scan of similar
programs offered
at universities in
Ontario.

[ Programs
have completed
an
environmental
scan and
maintain an
ongoing index
of similar
programs
offered at
universities
across Ontario.

[ Programs have
completed an
environmental
scan and maintain
an ongoing index
of similar
programs offered
at universities and
colleges in
Canada.

[J Programs have
completed an
environmental
scan and maintain
an ongoing index
of similar
programs offered
at universities
Internationally.

Are there ways in
which the
program at NU
distinguishes
itself from

Identify 5-10 programs that would be direct competitors for the program at
NU. CIP codes above may assist with identifying relevant programs.
Collaborate with SGS to complete the Program Fact Sheet template.




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

comparator
programs in
Ontario
(positively or
negatively)?

Program Fact
Sheet (Appendix
A)

Reflect on completed Program Fact Sheet to identify potential areas that are

highlights of the NU program and those that require some rethinking.




Section 3: Inclusive

diversity goals

attention to

decisions have

completed anti-

Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
Admissions [J Program does [ Program's O All faculty and | OJ All faculty,

not have admissions staff involved in instructors, and

admissions goals include admissions staff have

student completed anti- racism training
diversity bias training
Events and Extra | [J Program does O Program [ Program offers innovative and
curriculars not host extra- ensures inclusive events
curricular events inclusion and
diversity in
invited speakers
and guests
Faculty and staff | (] No awareness O Program O Program's O Program's
complement of areas of non- balances areas faculty and staff faculty and staff
diversity of non-diversity | complement complement
with external plans include plans prioritize
expertise diversity as a key | diversity
criterion
Course materials | [J Course O Course O Course O Program-level
instructors are instructors have | instructors learning
unaware of how assessed their include outcomes include

representative course consideration of consideration of
their course materials with decolonization decolonization
materials are an eye to and anti-racism and anti-racism

inclusion of among course

students with learning

diverse abilities | outcomes

and from

diverse

backgrounds

Assessment O Program’s [ Course [ Course [ Course

assessment instructors have | instructors instructors allow
practices exclude assessed their communicate students to

course assessment choose among a




Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
or disadvantage assessments expectations and | number of
some students with an eye to grading criteria assessment

inclusion of clearly and in options

students with
diverse abilities
and from
diverse
backgrounds

advance




Section 4: Talent Developing

development
rather than

Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
Program learning | [J Program-level O Program- [ Program-level | O Program-level
outcomes learning outcomes | level learning learning learning
are limited to outcomes outcomes outcomes
content / explicitly explicitly include | explicitly include
knowledge include numerous human | numerous human
learning numerous literacy skillsand | literacy skills and
human literacy | some data numerous data
skills literacy and/or literacy and/or
technological technological
literacy skills literacy skills
Assistants [ Faculty O Faculty [ Faculty, university, and/or program
members view members view provide students with skills training
TAships and TAships and programs to support their TA and RA
RAships primarily RAships work
as teaching / primarily as
research support talent

recognize and
articulate their
literacy skills

teaching /
research
support
Connection to [J Program is not O Faculty, [ Offering unit regularly consults with
external world proof tested university, dominant industries that employ its
against the real and/or offering | graduates to understand emerging
world unit provide talent needs to inform its curriculum
students with refinements
tools to
explicitly




Section 5: Student Focused

considerations

over the entirety of
the of their degree

Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
Student needs O Connection O Program's O Program O Student TA and
between program's | stated purpose | admissions are RA assignments
purpose and clearly based on and prioritize student
student needs in prioritizes limited by program's | training over
unclear student needs capacity to meet other
over other students' needs considerations

Career
Connection

[ Program is not
positioned as tied
to career
preparation of any
sort or is limited to
academic career
preparation

[ Program
explicitly
promises to
prepare
students for
diverse careers

[ Faculty,
university, and/or
offering unit provide
students with tools
for explicitly tying
their literacy skills
to diverse careers

[ Faculty,
university, and/or
offering unit
provide students
with
opportunities for
work-integrated
learning, network
development,

Consultation

does not consult
with current and
former students to
obtain feedback on
the program

consults with
current and
former
students,
including
students who

consults published
literature for best
practices in
graduate
programming and
uses this

and alumni
connection
Milestonesand | OJ Program O Program O Faculty members | O Supervisors are
Support milestones cannot | milestones are are responsive to trained and
realistically be achievableina | students' concerns appropriately
achievedin a reasonable and unique mentored to
reasonable timeframe situations provide student
timeframe support and
meaningful
feedback
Student [ Offering unit [0 Offering unit | I Offering unit O University

and/or faculty
provide support
for regular
program reviews




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good

Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

discontinued
studies, to
obtain feedback
on the program,
and users this
information to

information to
refine its program

refine its
program
[ Faculty input on | O Faculty [ There is a clear, [ Faculty play a
The program academic matters involvement in regular process for central and
provides senate | is minimal or academic involving faculty in proactive role in
with regular soughton anad decision-making | academic decision- academic

updates and
modifications

hoc basis or only
when problems
arise.

occurs
periodically but
is largely at the
final stage.

making (e.g.,
standing
committees or
working groups).

decision-making,
supported by
consultative
processes.

[ Discussions are
evidence-based
and reflect
continuous
engagement and
improvement.

Student
Feedback

How well does
the program
solicit, respond,
and implement
students'
feedback?

How well does
the program

[J Offering
program does not
consult with
current and former
students to obtain
feedback on the
program.

[ Offering
program
consults with
current and
former
students,
including
students who
discontinued
studies, to
obtain feedback
on how well
their education

[J Offering program
has a clear
evaluation plan to
use student
outcomes to assess
program success
and inform
curriculum
refinement.

[J Offering
program openly
shares student
outcomes and
feedback data on
how it is
continuing to
refine curriculum.




Unsatisfactory

Satisfactory

Good Excellent

Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:

communicate

prepared them

results of for work they

feedback from are doing

students?

Classroom [ Classroom [ Classroom [ Classroom infrastructure easily
infrastructure is infrastructure is infrastructure is | accommodates new approaches to
sufficient to inadequate. adequate. learning and new technology.

support student

learning and

program

effectiveness.

Laboratory O Lab O Lab [ Lab infrastructure easily
infrastructureis | infrastructure is infrastructure is | accommodates new approaches to
sufficient to inadequate. adequate. learning and technology.

support student O Lab infrastructure allows for
learning and sufficient time to work independently or
program unsupervised during off hours.
effectiveness.

The IT O IT infrastructure | O IT O IT infrastructure easily accommodates
infrastructureis | inadequate. infrastructure new approaches to learning and new
sufficiently adequate. technology.

robust, scalable,
and efficient to
support the
academic
program.

What are
students'
perceptions
about key
components of
the program?

See Program
Review

[add qualitative response]




Unsatisfactory Satisfactory Good Excellent Explanation for Self-Assessment Rating:
Dashboard table
2.2and 2.3
(CGPSS for grad
data)
Does the O Program does O Program O Alumni O Alumni
university have a | not access alumni rarely (once sometimes regularly (more
well-established | service office. every 12+ (approximately 3—4 | than twice a year)
alumni service months) times a year) serve attend

office which the
program
accesses?

0 Alumni do not
serve as mentors,
volunteers,
ambassadors, and
advocates for the
program/university

accesses alumni
service office.

O Alumni rarely
(once every 12+
months) attend
recruitment /
graduation
events, attend
lectures/events
as speakers,
serve as a
resource to
students and
faculty in the
program.

as mentors,
volunteers,
ambassadors, and
advocates for the
program/university

recruitment /
graduation
events, attend
lectures/events
as speakers, serve
as a resource to
students and
faculty in the
program.




Section 6: Prioritization & Goal Setting

Items requiring
immediate attention:

Goal: (specific, measurable, adjustable,

Lead (who will be responsible for

(within 3-6 months) Action item: realistic, time-based) initiating and following up on action)
1
2
3
4
5
Items requiring short-
term attention: Goal: (specific, measurable, adjustable, Lead (who will be responsible for
(within 1 year) Action item: realistic, time-based) initiating and following up on action)

N WIN|[(F




APPENDIX A: GRADUATE PROGRAM FACT SHEET

The School of Graduate Studies and the graduate program will collaboratively complete the program fact sheet. This document is meant to provide
a snapshot of a specific graduate program at NU in relation to comparable programs in Canada to help identify some of the ways in which we may

be competitive with other programs and where we need to reconsider program characteristics.

Graduate Program:

Indicators for comparable programs in Canadian universities (up to 10 top competitors):

University | Type | Deadlines | Duration [Totalk:ost of Program Total # Courses Other Defence? | Part Experiential -
+Program | * (months) . datory f degree (Y/N) Time | Learning?
+
Name (Tuition + mandatory fees) components ? Identify
In-province Canadian International Core Elective (Y/N)
[add up to
10 rows]
Nipissing

*C = course-based; TH = thesis; MRP = Major Research Paper; P = Professional (terminal degree that does not lead to entry in a PhD program)

Other degree components = capstone project; exchange program; specialization; combined degree option

Experiential learning = co-op (duration); internship (duration) — note if mandatory (M) or optional (O)




NIPISSING

V E R S

Budget Report

2025 - 2026




Executive Summary

The 2025-26 Nipissing University budget in general represents another stage towards sustainability and, arguably, the early material
results of implementing the Academic and Operational Plan (APOP) emanating from the Pathways Strategic Plan, and the mobilization
of its strategic elements, including enrolment through Project Integrate. In past years, due specifically to its precarious financial
position, the university has operated and budgeted within the context of extensive external audit and review processes. This year is no
different. As we prepare for the shifting accountabilities and structuring influences of Strategic Mandate Agreement 4 (SMA4), the new
government grant framework, and continued emergence from required organizational changes in response to the Office of the Auditor
General, we also became subject in the past year to new operating efficiencies and governance reviews mandated by the province. In
many respects, such audits reflect the diminishing autonomy of public universities; but we also recognize that embracing the most
appropriate recommendations of such audits and reviews will eventually bring positive outcomes.

Without question, the greatest impact upon the 2024-25 and the 2025-26 financial position of the university is, and will be, the
unforeseen consequences of federal government policies in the past year, which have collapsed the market for international students
attending Canadian universities. These actions have directly impacted our 2024-25 financial results and, also, severely limit our
progress towards financial health in 2025-26, notably at a time when we were making significant gains towards improving the
university’s fiscal standing.

Thankfully, budget processes are always, in part, beholden to the strengths of internal, comprehensive strategic decision making but,
in the past decade, we have experienced shrinking autonomy in determining how resources are distributed and employed. We have
been more susceptible to the external pressures of funding freezes and one-time investments that reinforce the particular economic
priorities of our provincial government. Without a provincially established, stable funding framework, and a commitmentto a
permanent, equitable reallocation of the Northern Grant, we remain unable to chart with assurance a longer-term financial path for the
university. However, we have responded to ensure that we are maximizing the impacts of all government support. We have invested the
government support that we received into our Reserve Funds; as such, our investments have been very targeted and financially
prudent. We have necessarily accepted responsibility for increased alternative revenue streams, and we are taking steps towards
enhancing our academic programs and strategically modifying our structures and administrative processes to better respond to an
academic landscape that has shifted considerably over the past 20 years, one that continues to change markedly in real time. Indeed,
from pandemics, to freezes and cuts during periods of significant cost inflation, to an ever-increasing involvement by government in
university operations, the annual budgeting for Canadian universities has never been more challenging.



The 2025-26 budget reflects a continued tuition freeze, a distinct government focus on STEM enrolment, and some support,
characterized as investment in sustainability and, as stated above, a marked decrease in international student enrolment. During this
next fiscal year, we will be working diligently to consider and implement the appropriate recommendations of NOUS Group’s Efficiency
and Accountability Review Report and the governance review of Cheryl Foy of Strategic Governance Consulting Services. We will
continue to implement our Pathways plan through the Academic and Operational Plan (APOP); we will begin to implement the
recommendations forthcoming from an Equity Audit which will steer us towards a more inclusive campus for everyone and assist us to
take steps toward Reconciliation; and, through our annual assessments of program health, we will determine what actions are
required to build sustainable programs. We will continue to generate revenues through residence occupancy, meal plans, event
hosting, the sale of merchandise, and through fundraising. And we will attempt to rebuild our international recruitment capacity, within
the challenging environment which confronts us. We remain optimistic in, and committed towards, confronting these challenges,
buoyed by our newly appraised status of “low action plan” institution, though still at high risk, in part due to careful budgeting and
long-term planning and the investment of government grant funding into our Reserves which now are projected to exceed $15M, a
marked improvement over the past several years.

This budget represents some of the important work being completed, in phased approaches, to engineer the significant processual
transformations necessary to unlock the great potential of Nipissing University in the long term. Indeed, the changes are a testament
to the high quality of work which reflects the profound commitments of our staff and faculty to build a sustainable institution.



Overall Domestic & International FFTE Forecast

Domestic FFTE Forecast

2023/24 4438.45 4,438.45

4589.81

2024/25

2025/26 3132.27 1645.80 4,778.06
2026/27 1948.80 1381.48
2027/28 1177.37 2076.83

2,000 4,000 6,000

4,589.81

1621.00 4,951.27

2002.75 5,256.94

@ Historical FFTE @ Returning FFTE

Incoming Returning FFTE @ Incoming FFTE

International FFTE Forecast

2023/24 328.40 328.40
2024/25 315.27 31527
2025/26 123.52 43.11 PREYXE]

o7 lYrYAl 48.00 | 49.38 207.74

2027/28 306.82

0 100 200 300

@ Historical FFTE @Returning FFTE @ Incoming Refurning FFTE @ Incoming FFTE




NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
2025-2026 Budget - Operating

2024-2025 Projection to Budget
2025-2026 Annual 2024-2025 year| variance to %
Annual Budget Budget end projections |Variance

Revenue

Government Grants S 42,654,956 | S 36,422,619 | S 42,745,372 | S (90,416)] 0%
Domestic Tuition S 30,263,148 | S 27,573,130 | S 28,715,136 | S 1,548,012 5%
International Tuition S 5,012,805 | S 10,306,486 | S 8,355,309 | S (3,342,504)| -40%
Student Fees - Ancillary & Other S 4,270,269 | S 3,788,684 |S 3,975,257 | S 295,012 7%
Other S 2,456,237 | S 2,427,196 | S 2,427,196 | S 29,041 1%
Revenue Total S 84,657,415 |S$ 80,518,115 | S 86,218,270 | S (1,560,855) -2%
Expenses

Instructional Staff S 31,571,798 | S 30,308,595 | S 29,849,931 |S 1,721,867 6%
Non-Instructional Staff S 20,569,919 | $ 19,951,774 | S 19,370,000 | S 1,199,919 6%
Benefits S 10,692,398 | $ 10,051,829 | S 9,929,769 | S 762,629 8%
Salary recoveries $ (728,350)| $ (1,170,187)| ¢ (1,118,111)|$ 389,761 | -35%
Total salaries & benefits S 62,105,765 | S 59,142,011 | S 58,031,589 | S 4,074,176 7%
Non-staff expense S 18,437,450 | S 17,034,026 | S 18,034,026 | S 403,424 2%
Scholarships and Bursaries S 3,649,400 | S 3,320,775|S 3,320,775 | S 328,625 10%
Expenses Total S 84,192,615 |S 79,496,812 | S 79,386,390 | S 4,806,225 6%
Surplus (Deficit) Before Undernoted S 464,800 | $ 1,021,303 |S$ 6,831,880 | S (6,367,080)] -93%
Transfers

Transfers (to) from other funds S (367,588)| S (331,555)| S (331,555)| § (36,033) 11%
Transfers Total $ (367,588) $ (331,555)| ¢  (331,555) $ (36,033)] 11%
Total Operating Surplus/(Deficit) S 97,212 |$S 689,748 |$ 6,500,325 | $ (6,403,113)] -99%




Nipissing University
2025-2026 Budget - Ancillary

Campus Sales &

Conference

Projections to

Extended Servi C t 2025-2026 Budget vari
xten .e Services - 3rd party| Residences ervices (Corporate 2024-2025 year i .varl.ance
Learning i Events & Summer | Annual Budget to projections
and internal . end
Accommodations)

Revenue
Sales and Service, and other revenues | $ 521,641 | S 157,250 | $ 7,387,936 | S 456,900 | $ 8,523,727 | S 7,888,040 | S 635,687
Revenue Total S 521,641 | $ 157,250 | $ 7,387,936 | $ 456,900 [ S 8,523,727 | $ 7,888,040 | S 635,687
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits S 591,390 | $ 117,593 | $ 2,026,274 | $ 385,687 | $ 3,120,944 | § 2,498,000 | S 622,944
Operating & Occupancy S 24,610 S 139,300 | S 2,410,850 | S 55,640 [ S 2,630,400 | $ 2,858,969 | S (228,569)
Long term debt S - s - s 1,175,121 | S - s 1,175,121 | S 1,175,107 | S 14
Expenses Total S 616,000 | S 256,893 | S 5,612,245 | $ 441,327 [ S 6,926,465 | S 6,532,076 | $ 394,389
Total Surplus / (Deficit) $ (94,359)| $ (99,643)| $ 1,775,691 | $ 15,573 |$ 1,597,262 |$ 1,355,964 | $ 241,298
Transfers
Transfers to (from) Other funds S - S -5 - s - S - 1S - S -
Transfers Total $ - s - [S - [S -[S - 18 - 18 =
Total S (94,359)| $ (99,643)| $ 1,775,691 | $ 15,573 | $ 1,597,262 | $ 1,355,964 | $ 241,298




Nipissing University
2025-2026 Capital Budget

Total
Budget
FUNDING SOURCES:
Facilities Renewal Program S 2,637,900
Campus Safety Grant S 12,500
Investment in Capital Assets - Ancillary S 445,000
Donations and/or government grants S 1,000,000
Donations and/or Schulich Funds S 293,651
Training, Equipment & Renewal Fund S 293,651
S 4,682,702
PLANNED EXPENDITURES:
Campus Infrastructure
Outdoor Classroom S 1,000,000
Electrical Upgrades S 25,000
Residence Building Repairs S 300,000
HVAC Replacements S 665,000
Grounds Infrastructure S 700,000
Asphalt Repairs S 75,000
Renovation
Classroom Renovations S 360,000
Building Renovations S 900,400
Equipment & Furnishings
Furniture S 30,000
Equipment S 627,302

S 4,682,702




Nipissing University
2025-2026 Consolidated Budget

Total
Internally Trust Fund Research Specifically Consolidated
Operating Fund Restricted Ancillary Fund | Capital Fund | (Non-Endowed) Fund Funded Endowed Funds Employee Budget
10 11 15 40 50 60 70 51,80 related
REVENUE
Government Grants 42,654,956 1,123,455 3,495,785 47,274,196
Student Fees - Tuition 35,275,953 35,275,953
Student Fees - Ancillary fees and other income 4,270,269 4,270,269
Sales (Accommodations, Corporate events, etc) 8,523,727 8,523,727
Other 1,891,237 259,676 2,150,913
Amortization of Deferred Capital Contributions - 1,550,000 1,550,000
Investment 520,000 798,704 245,500 1,564,204
Donations 45,000 272,000 317,000
TOTAL REVENUE 84,657,415 - 8,523,727 1,550,000 1,070,704 1,123,455 3,755,461 245,500 - 100,926,262
EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 62,105,765 35,000 3,120,944 766,422 652,460 650,000 67,330,591
Operating and Research 13,030,305 613,257 2,630,400 177,535 569,533 270,465 5,500 17,296,995
Scholarships and Bursaries 3,649,400 400,000 240,000 4,289,400
Occupancy Costs 4,401,164 2,832,536 7,233,700
Amortization of Capital Assets - 3,950,000 3,950,000
Principal and Interest on Long Term Debt 1,005,981 1,175,121 (1,355,798) 825,304
TOTAL EXPENSES 84,192,615 648,257 6,926,465 2,594,202 577,535 1,335,955 3,755,461 245,500 650,000 100,925,990
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (EXPENSES OVER
REVENUE) BEFORE THE UNDERNOTED 464,800 (648,257) 1,597,262 (1,044,202) 493,169 (212,500) - - (650,000) 272
TRANSFERS
Transfers from donations and fundraising 493,169 (493,169) - -
Transfer to Fund 11 for negotiated allowances (648,257) 648,257 -
Transfer to Research initiatives (212,500) 212,500 -
TOTAL IN YEAR TRANSFERS (367,588) 648,257 - - (493,169) 212,500 - - - -
TOTAL EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES 97,212 - 1,597,262 (1,044,202) - - - - (650,000) 272




NIPISSING UN

IVERSITY

Budget Projections

Revenue

Government Grants $ 42,745,372 | $ 42,654,956 | $ 43,715,099 | $ 39,758,684

Domestic Tuition $ 28,715,136 | $ 30,263,148 | $ 31,582,273 | $ 34,080,163

International Tuition $ 8,355,309 |$ 5,012,805 | $ 6,417,163 | $ 10,454,516

Student Fees - Ancillary & Other $ 3,975,257 [$ 4,270,269 | $ 4,270,269 | S 4,270,269

Other S 2,427,196 | $ 2,456,237 | $ 2,456,237 | $ 2,456,237

Expenses

Instructional Staff $ 29,849,931 ($ 31,571,798 | $ 33,571,458 | $ 35,750,031

Non-Instructional Staff $ 19,370,000 [ $ 20,569,919 | $ 21,694,141 | $ 23,028,848

Benefits $ 9,929,769 |$ 10,692,398 | $ 11,495,245 |$ 12,226,007

Salary recoveries $ (1,118,111)[ S (728,350)] $ (728,350)| $ (728,350)
Total salaries & benefits $ 58,031,589 | $ 62,105,765 | S 66,032,494 | $ 70,276,536

Non-staff expense $ 18,034,026 [$ 18,437,450 | $ 18,888,425 | S 19,227,162

Scholarships and Bursaries S 3320775 |S 3,649,400 | S 3,649,400 | § 3,649,400

Surplus (Deficit) Before Undernote| $ 6,831,880 | $ 464,800 | $ (129,278)| $  (2,133,229)
Transfers

Transfers (to) from other funds S (331,555)[ S (367,588)| $ (367,588)| $ (367,588)

)|

)

Projections to 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028
2024-2025 year Updated Projected Projected
end Budget Budget Budget

Revenue
Residence $ 7,300,000 | $ 7,344,936 | $ 7,565,284 | $ 7,792,243
Campus Sales & Services - 3rd party & Inte| $ 78,144 | $ 150,400 | $ 154,912 | $ 159,559
Conference Services (Corp.orate events s 425,000 | § 506,750 | 521,953 | § 537,611
and Summer Accommodations)
Extended Learning S 84,896 | $ 521,641 | $ 537,290 | $ 553,409
Total Ancillary Revenues $ 7,888,040 | $ 8,523,727 | $ 8,779,439 | $§ 9,042,822
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits $ 2,498,000 |$ 3,120,944 | S 3,269,189 | $ 3,416,302
Operating $ 2,858,969 | $ 2,630,400 | $ 2,761,920 | $ 2,900,016
Long term debt $ 1,175,107 | $ 1,175,121 | $ 1,174,959 | $ 1,762,439
Total Ancillary Expenses $ 6,532,076 [$ 6,926,465 |S 7,206,068 | S 8,078,757
Net Ancillary Surplus $ 1355964 |9 1597,262|$ 1573371 |$ 964,065
Capital adjustments $ (1,175,000)| $  (1,044,202)| §  (1,044,202)| §  (1,044,202)
Employee Future benefits adjustment | $  (650,000)| $  (650,000)] $  (650,000] $  (650,000)
Consolidated Surplus $ 6,031,289 | $ 272 |8 (617,697)| $  (3,230,954)




Ministry Financial Accountability Framework ratios

Thresholds 2023-2024 Confirmed 2024-2025 Projected 2025-2026 Projected 2026-2027 Projected 2027-2028 Projected
Medium Overall Overall Overall Overall Overall
risk High-risk | Weight Ratio Category Ratio Category Ratio Category Ratio Category Ratio Category
calculation| Rating | rating calculation| Rating | rating calculation| Rating | rating calculation| Rating | rating calculation| Rating | rating
Liquidity Ratios:
: R 9

Prlma_ry reserve (days): <90 <30 50% 49.54 1 05 69.45 1 05 65.01 1 05 61.69 1 05 47.19 1 05

Working Capital <1.25 <1 50% 1.50 - 1.50 - 1.50 - 1.50 = 1.50 o
Sustainability Ratios

Viability ratio < 60% < 30% 25% 42% 1 58% 1 61% - 64% = 55% 1

i 9 > 559 o

Debt ratio >35% 55% 25% 08 54% 1 05 54% 1 03 54% 2 05 08

Debt to revenue ratio >35% > 50% 25% 31% - 28% - 29% - 26% - 24% -

Interest burden ratio >2% > 4% 25% 1% - 1% - 1% - 1% = 1% =
Performance

Surplus (deficit) ratio <15% | <0% | 50% 3.7% - 05 6.0% - 0.1% 1 10 [ o6 [ 2 .

Net operating revenue ratios <7% <2% 50% 6.1% 1 : 8.2% - 2.5% 1 ) 1.8% 1 i
Credit rating

Third party credit rating BBB Stable 1 1 BBB Stable 1 1 BBB Stable 1 1 BBB Stable 1 1 BBB Stable 1 1
Overall Risk Score Action Plan Low Action Low Action Low Action | Medium Action | _

10



25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

Spendable net assets

AN

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

11

2028



Cash Flows

35,000,000

30,000,000

25,000,000

20,000,000
w7 (02 3-2024 Actual

15,000,000 s )02 4-2025 Actual and Projected
e 7(025-2026 Projected

10,000,000

5,000,000

<%
%,

12



Appendix 1: Expenses by department

NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Arts & Science

Expenses

§ 15,711,288 | S 16,114,348 | S (403,060) -2.50%
S 132,970 | $ 142,304 (9,334)

Salaries & Benefits

Operating costs

Transfers

S 229,667 | S 246,654 | S (16,987) -6.89%

Transfers to (from) other funds




NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Education and Professional Studies

Expenses

Salaries & benefits

S

24,365,856

s

21,864,474

S

2,501,382

11.44%

Operating costs

Transfers

s

1,257,491

S

1,152,849

104,642

Transfers to (from) other funds

s

254,840

s

226,773

s

28,067

12.38%

14



Expenses

Academic Support & Library

NIPISSING UNIVERSITY

Salaries & benefits

s

7,621,917

S

6,772,915 | S

849,002

12.54%

Operating costs

Transfers

3,684,421

4,146,217 | $

(461,796)

Transfers to (from) other funds

s

374,250

s

563,050 | $

(188,800)

-33.53%

15



NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Office of Indigenous Initiatives

Expenses

700,407 | $ 758,140 | S (57,733) -7.62%
104,090 - 0.00%

Salaries & benefits S

Operating costs 104,090

Transfers

Transfers to (from) other funds S - 1S -|S - 0.00%




NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Student Services

Expenses
Salaries & benefits S 3,789,438 | S 3,614,412 | S 175,026 4.84%

Operating costs 2,975,004 2,831,946 143,058

Transfers
Transfers to (from) other funds S (182,000)| $ (182,000)




NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Athletics

Expenses

Salaries & benefits S 1,788,331 | S 1,669,594 | S 118,737 7.11%
Operating costs 1,827,732 1,399,249 428,483

Transfers

Transfers to (from) other funds S (233,169)| S (39,922)| $

(193,247) 484.06%




NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
Administration

Expenses
Salaries & benefits S 8,001,548 | S 8,348,129 | S (346,581) -4.15%

Operating costs S 12,105,142 | S 10,578,146 1,526,996

Transfers

-84.27%

(483,000)| $ 407,000

$ (76,000)| $

Transfers to (from) other funds




Appendix 2: Fund descriptions

Separate funds are setup for activities, with each fund comprised of its own revenue and expenses. The following funds are used:

Operating Fund (Fund 10): Revenues and expenses that are directly related to the mission of the University, education and activities supporting research.

Internally restricted (Fund 11): This fund accounts for expenses that are funded from various allowances negotiated through the collective agreement and
Appointment letters such as Personal Expense Reimbursement, Research Allowance, Professional Development allowance, etc.. Transfers from the
Operating fund increase the funds available in internally restricted net assets. Expenses are accounted for when expenses are incurred (i.e. conference
fees, travel, etc..). Amounts in this fund are carried forward annually until fully spent or no longer available for spending.

Ancillary Fund (Fund 15): Sales of goods and services by departments that are defined as being supplementary to the University’s primary operating
activities of education and research. Such sales may be made to the University community and/or to external clients.

Capital Fund (Fund 40): Funding and expenditures for capital projects.

Trust (Non-Endowed) Fund (Fund 50): Donations and fundraising revenues with internal or external restrictions are recorded in this fund. Income
generated from investments is also recorded as revenue in this fund. Donation revenue is recorded when expenses are incurred.

Research Fund (Fund 60): Research-related funds externally restricted by an agreement or contract for specific research purposes. The use of these funds
is restricted by the donor or granting agency.

Specifically Funded (Fund 70): Funding provided by an external entity, or internally restricted by an agreement outlining expenditure of the funds and a
requirement to return unspent funds at the end of the term.

Endowments (Fund 51): Donations or bequests received by the University that have a non-expendable requirement as well as other legal requirements for

use as agreed upon by the donor and the University. This fund also includes internal endowments which are unrestricted donations that have been endowed
by action of the Board of Governors.

20



COU Academic Colleagues
Report by Lanyan Chen

April 15-16, 2025

Meeting Notes

Evening meeting, April 15, 2025, 6:00 to 8:30 pm

The Academic Colleagues listened to a presentation in relation to “Discussion on Impacts of US
Policies on Academic Activities at Ontario Universities” by guest, Dr. Sarah Laframboise,
Executive Director of Evidence for Democracy. She shared The Evidence for Democracy
tracker on the effects of American policies on Canadian research, and discussed:

The activities underway in other countries to recruit American researchers, through
relocating grants, fast-tracking of visas and direct recruitment.

Challenges within Canada that may limit its ability to benefit from a “brain gain” of
American researchers, such as its declining percentage of GDP expenditure on research
and development, financial constraints in Ontario universities and international student
caps.

The equity, diversity and inclusion landscape, with an overall growing interest in the
commitment to EDI within institutions, but some signals of waning interest at the federal
level.

The results of polling which show that Canadians are very supportive of science and
research, with 90% of Canadians supporting investments in research even without
immediate benefits.

During the discussion of the presentation, the following points were made:

The possibility that international undergraduate students may choose to study in Canada
rather than the US as a result of American policies.

Concerns about American promotion of a merit-based system spilling over into Canada,
and the importance of collecting evidence on the positive impacts of EDI across
research and teaching activities as a pre-emptive measure.

The reality that the US is Canada’s top source for research collaboration but the reverse
is not the case.

Concern about future missed career opportunities for researchers in light of travel
advisories for the US, and the measures universities may take should researchers
traveling to the US find themselves in difficult situations.

The Colleagues met on April 16, 2025 to prepare for the Members Meeting of April 17

Drawing on the presentation and discussion afterwards, Colleagues planned their presentation
to the Members, grouping the topic into the following themes and speakers:

Introductory remarks, Kim Hellemans, Carleton

Impacts on research and researchers, Alison Flynn, Ottawa

Impacts on undergraduate teaching and training, Mike Eklund, Ontario Tech
Social impacts, Mary-Helen Armour, York

Recommitting to equity, diversity and inclusion (EDI), Lanyan Chen, Nipissing


https://evidencefordemocracy.ca/trumps-war-on-science-how-his-policies-affect-canadian-research/

Information Sharing

Colleagues shared updates on topics and issues that were front-of-mind at their respective
institutions, including ongoing institutional reviews on the topics of equity and civil discourse;
continuing fiscal pressures due to budgetary constraints; changes in senior administrative
positions; and ongoing and upcoming collective bargaining.

COU Update

An update was provided in relation to advocacy leading up to the provincial budget, anticipated
in May, and recent signals from the provincial government, in its platform, about targeted
funding for STEM programming.

Topics for future meetings
The following topics were suggested for future Academic Colleagues meetings:

Revisiting the Scarborough Charter

Collaboration across units within universities

Academic freedom

Future of work and skills development

Ethics and integrity in academia

Quality assurance processes

Climate change/sustainability

Accommaodations with the Ontario Human Rights Commission
Collegial governance

Upcoming meetings

Academic Colleagues: Tuesday, May 13, 6:00 to 8:30 pm, and Wednesday, May 14, 9:00 am to
12:00 noon (hybrid).

Earlier, the 2023-2024 Annual Report of the Ontario Universities Council on Quality Assurance
was shared with Academic Colleagues which you can access at this link:
https://oucga.ca/wp-content/uploads/OUCQA-Annual-Report-2023-2024-Accessible.pdf

Ensuring Quality in Ontario Universities

1 THE FIRST and most obvious is what's inelegantly called the massification of university
education. When | began my graduate work there were 14 publicly assisted universities in
Ontario; now

Among the new programs that have been approved, congratulations to our colleagues at
Nipissing University on the approval of the new Environmental Science program!

A notable point highlighted in the report is the forthcoming appointment of a new Chair of the
Quality Council. This change may represent an opportunity to reflect on the future direction of
Ontario’s quality assurance system for university degree programming. The recent approval of
programs in areas such as health care, mental health, social justice, the environment and
emerging technologies may offer insight into the evolving priorities and areas of emphasis within
the province’s postsecondary landscape.


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foucqa.ca%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2FOUCQA-Annual-Report-2023-2024-Accessible.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Clanyanc%40nipissingu.ca%7Cccca77f0d91a4f83ba1d08dd78250fc5%7Cb13086d8996b40658b63786a925860b5%7C0%7C0%7C638798822757897224%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=N9I87o90F%2BNk3QBer5ejxvhYo%2FRhMy4Bi9Vno5DV39A%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Foucqa.ca%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2FOUCQA-Annual-Report-2023-2024-Accessible.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Clanyanc%40nipissingu.ca%7Cccca77f0d91a4f83ba1d08dd78250fc5%7Cb13086d8996b40658b63786a925860b5%7C0%7C0%7C638798822757916718%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QHDWIrZ9JS9vRfXXoq%2F5ZkBv5wTg2Yt2kxkmzLhiLT8%3D&reserved=0

NIPISSING UNIVERSITY STUDENT UNION

NUSU Student Centre
221 College Drive, North Bay, ON PIB 0G1
Tel: (705) 474-3450 ext. 4801 Fax: (705) 474-7732
Web: www. nusu.com

NUSU Academic Senate Report: April 2025

NUSU Executives Start May 1st

As of May 1st, the new NUSU Executive team has officially begun their term. We are
incredibly excited to kick off this year and are looking forward to working collaboratively
with students and faculty to make it a productive and engaging term. Our team is
enthusiastic about building on past successes and fostering a strong sense of student
community. The 2025-2026 Executive and staff members are as follows:

e President: Matthew Suszter

e Vice-President, Finance & Administration: Nicholas Botham
e Vice-President, Student Life: Owen Remillard

e Vice-President, Advocacy & Awareness: Jaden Martin

e Executive Director: Warren Lindsay

e Operations Manager: Nicole Seeley

e Events Coordinator: Sav Searle

e Summer Interns: Abby Noonan & Carter Jessup

Conferences & Development

AMICCUS-C 2025

From May 24-30, NUSU staff will be attending the AMICCUS-C (Association of
Managers in Canadian College/University Student Centres) conference. This national
gathering provides valuable training and networking opportunities through workshops
focused on student services, programming, leadership, and operations. This is a great
chance for our staff to build capacity and bring new ideas back to campus.



NIPISSING UNIVERSITY STUDENT UNION NUSU Student Centre
221 College Drive, North Bay, ON PIB 0G1
Tel: (705) 474-3450 ext. 4801 Fax: (705) 474-7732
Web: www. nusu.com

Summer Operations

Building & Food Pantry Hours

During the summer term, NUSU will operate on a four-day work week. The NUSU
Student Centre office will be open from 8:30AM to 4:30PM, Monday through Thursday,
and the NUSU Food Pantry will be open from 9:00AM to 4:00PM.

Student Programming

Summer Series: Goose Chase Challenge

We’re excited to bring back our Summer Series, which will run for 10 weeks. The series
will feature a GooseChase-style challenge, where students can complete various
activities and missions each week to earn points and win prizes. The initiative aims to
keep students connected, active, and engaged throughout the summer months.

Upcoming Events

Gallery Showing

From May 30 to June 20, NUSU will be hosting a Gallery Showing in the Student Centre
featuring artwork from local high school students. The exhibit will showcase paintings,
sculptures, and other creative pieces. We’re excited to give young artists in our
community the opportunity to display their work in a public setting, and we encourage
everyone to stop by and take a look!



NIPISSING UNIVERSITY
REPORT OF THE SENATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
May 1, 2025

A meeting of the Senate Executive Committee took place in person and by Zoom conference on
May 1, 2025.

The following members participated:
K. Wamsley (Chair), A. Graff, B. Law, G. Raymer, D. lafrate, T. Sibbald (Speaker), J. Allison,
S. Landriault (Recording Secretary, n-v)

Regrets: N. Colborne, G. Phillips, S. Renshaw

The purpose of the meeting was to set the agenda for the May 9, 2025, Senate meeting.
Dr. Sal Renshaw will serve as Acting Speaker at the May 9, 2025 Senate meeting.

The President confirmed that he will address the Governance Review and the NOUS Report in
his Senate report.

The 2025-26 Budget Report will be included in the Senate agenda and presented at Senate.

The report of the Graduate Studies Committee dated March 19, 2025 was provided to the Senate
Executive for inclusion in the Senate agenda.

The reports of the Senate Research Committee dated March 5 & 14, 2025 were provided to the
Senate Executive for inclusion in the Senate agenda.

The following elections were provided to the Senate Executive for inclusion in the Senate agenda:
o Speaker of Senate (one faculty Senator)

e Council of Ontario Universities (COU) Academic Colleague (one faculty Senator)

e Council of Ontario Universities (COU) Academic Colleague - Alternate (one faculty Senator)
All positions are for three-years terms effective July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2028.

A motion that Senate grant approval to graduate the students who have completed their degree

requirements will be presented under New Business.

Moved by K. Wamsley, seconded by A. Graff that the Senate Executive Committee approves the
May 9, 2025, Senate agenda.
CARRIED

Respectfully submitted,

7{(“'53
amsley

Chalr Senate Executive Committee

Motion 1: That Senate receive the Report of the Senate Executive Committee dated May 1,
2025.



Nipissing University
Graduate Studies Committee Report
March 19, 2025

The Graduate Studies Committee met on March 19, 2025.

Members in attendance: B. Law (Chair), S. Hansen (Vice-Chair), N. Black, K. Clausen, N.
Colborne, L. Hoehn, D. lafrate, B. Kelly, J. Murton. Regrets: G. Raymer. Guests: H. Brown, A.
McCarthy, D. Walters.

Recording Secretary: L. Snoddon

Updates included:

e Project Integrate — Graduate Studies report and recommendations is being reviewed.

e Admission offers were sent by March 4, 2025. Admissions are currently below target.
Applications remain open to late applicants.

¢ Graduate student funding for 2025-2026 was approved. Funding letters will be sent in
early April.

Discussions Included:
¢ Residence pilot to allow graduate students to apply for 2025-2026 residence
accommodations.
e Planning for spring GSC retreat.

New business included:

¢ Review of both Graduate Studies and Graduate Program vision and mission statements.

Respectfully submitted,
Do bdlau )
B. Law
Chair, Graduate Studies Committee

MOTION 1: That Senate receives the report of the Graduate Studies Committee, dated
March 19, 2025.



Nipissing University
Senate Research Committee Report
March 5, 2025

The SRC met on March 51" 2025.

Members in attendance: B. Law (Chair), N. Black (Vice-Chair), C. Byers (non-voting), C. Cho, K.
Sarginson (non-voting), M. Sullivan, D. Zarifa, H. Zhu. Recording Secretary: L. Snoddon,
Regrets: M. De Vuono. Absent: B. Brown.

Reports from the Office of Research, Innovation & Graduate Studies were distributed prior to
the March 5" meeting. Updates included:
e January and February OCUR meetings and the January OCUR EDI working group
meeting
e Strategic Research Planning, policies, and budget updates
¢ Internal research grants competition schedule
e Research Rendezvous and Research Month events

New Business included:
o Draft revisions to Responsible Conduct of Research Policy
e Development of guidelines related to Al in Research

Discussion topics included:
e Hiring of research staff and trainees

For information topics included:

Research Security Quick Guide
Policy & Process Map

CRC Call for Proposals

IP Policy - Stakeholder Engagement

Respectfully submitted,
B. Law
Chair, Senate Research Committee

Motion 1: That Senate receives the report of the Senate Research Committee, dated
March 5, 2025.



Nipissing University
Senate Research Committee Report
March 14, 2025

The SRC met on March 14t 2025 to review the results of the SSHRC Small Institution Grant
Award Competition.

Members in attendance: N. Black (Vice-Chair), C. Byers (non-voting), C. Cho, K. Sarginson
(non-voting), M. Sullivan. Recording Secretary: L. Snoddon, Regrets: B. Law (Chair), D. Zarifa,
& H. Zhu.

The committee considered the recommendation of the SIG Review Committee for SSHRC
Explore, Exchange, and Capacity-Building grant recipients in camera. The recommendations
were passed in camera and were forwarded to the PVPA for approval.

Respectfully submitted,
B. Law
Chair, Senate Research Committee

Motion 1: That Senate receives the report of the Senate Research Committee, dated
March 14, 2025.



	Senate Agenda
	Acknowledgement of the Traditional Territory
	Approval of the Agenda
	Adoption of Minutes
	April 11, 2025 Draft Senate Minutes and Reports.pdf

	Business Arising from the Minutes
	FINALUpdatedNipissing IQAPfinalMarch 2025.pdf

	Reading and Disposing of Communications
	Reports from Other Bodies
	President
	Provost & Vice-President Academic
	May 2025 Provost Senate Report.pdf

	Vice-President Finance and Administration
	Budget Package 2025-2026 - Final.pdf

	Board of Governors
	Alumni Advisory Board
	Council of Ontario Universities (Academic Colleague)
	COU Academic Colleague Report April 2025.pdf

	Joint Committee of the Board and Senate on Governance
	Nipissing University Student Union (NUSU)
	NUSU Academic Senate Report - May 2025.pdf

	Other

	Question Period
	Reports of Standing Committees and Faculty Councils
	Senate Executive Committee
	Senate Exec Report May 1, 2025.pdf

	Graduate Studies Committee
	GSC Report to Senate - March 2025.pdf

	Senate Research Committee
	SRC March 5, 2025 Report to Senate.pdf
	SRC March 14, 2025


	Other Business
	Amendments of By-Laws
	Elections
	New Business
	Announcements
	Adjournment

